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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ITHEBREE

Dear Shareholders, Partners and Colleagues,

Since its listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited in 2004, Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer
Company Limited (“Weigao Group” or the “Company”) has
witnessed over two decades of remarkable and blossoming
development. Starting from ordinary consumable products,
Weigao Group has gradually built a comprehensive medical
industry ecosystem encompassing clinical care, orthopedics,
pharmaceutical packaging, intervention, and blood
management with the trust and support of all sectors of
society, becoming a leading enterprise in the medical device
industry in China. On behalf of the Board of Weigao Group, |
would like to express my sincere gratitude to all of you.

In the past year, facing the complicated and ever-changing
macro-environment both domestically and abroad, as well as
the challenges of accelerated reform in the medical device
industry, Weigao Group made concerted efforts to achieve
progress by adhering to the three-pronged strategies of
"platform-based”, "internationalised”, and “digitalised”
development, and also the dual assurance strategies
underpinned by “talents” and “innovation” to overcome
difficulties, thus achieved steady development.

In 2024, the media device industry was at a key node of
structural adjustment:

At the policy level: the normalization of centralized
procurement continued to be promoted, exerting downward
pressure on product prices and compelling enterprises to
accelerate innovation while reducing costs and improving
efficiency. Meanwhile, the government continued to intensify
its supporting efforts for innovative medical device and
equipment, and encouraged enterprises to increase R&D
investment to promote the domestic substitution of high-end
medical devices.

At the market level: the aging population and escalating
health awareness among residents drove structural changes
in the market demand for medical devices. On the one
hand, with the acceleration of the aging process and the
implementation of hierarchical diagnosis and treatment
policies, the primary medical demand was growing day
by day. On the other hand, consumers' demand for high-
end medical devices was also increasing as time goes by.
This required us to keep up with market development more
precisely and provide diversified products and services.
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At the technical level: innovative achievements
continued to emerge with deep integration of emerging
technologies such as artificial intelligence and big data
with medical devices, which facilitated the development of
intelligent, precise, and holistic solutions.

At the competitive level: along with the increasing
market participants and intensifying industry competition,
price competition still existed and brand advantages became
increasingly prominent. The enterprises with core technology
and brand advantages will be more competitive.

In 2024, through the concerted efforts of all staff of Weigao,
we have achieved significant progress across every strategic
initiative:

1. Platform-based strategy level: achieving
ecosystem synergy and in-depth expansion

(i) Constant deepening of total solutions: the
LONG-series anesthesia machines have obtained
certification and entered the market, with rapid
promotion of sports medicine, artificial bone and
other products. The automatic safe drug delivery
system has begun mass production, and the
thrombus removal series have been launched to
the market, thereby expanding the product lines
and achieving more diversified growth.

(i) Restructuring of operation model: the first
sales platform pilot was implemented and the
domestic sales channels were integrated through
the construction of four major domestic sales
platforms, aiming to achieve resources sharing and
improving customer satisfaction.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ITHEBREE

At the internationalised strategy level:

by expanding globally, we achieved
breakthroughs in four aspects in terms of
global layout

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Blooming in multiple overseas markets:
our diversified product lines achieved initial success
in overseas layout, with strategic cooperation
established with a number of large overseas
companies. Distribution channels continued
to expand, driving robust growth in exported
products.

Dual focus on academic promotion
and market penetration: by strengthening
academic exchange and cooperation with
international medical experts, we enhanced the
influence of the Weigao brand in the international
market. At the same time, we grasped a thorough
understanding of overseas market demand,
promoted the registration and certification of our
products abroad, and developed differentiated
marketing strategies for different regions.

Steady progress in constructing overseas
production bases: Through the practice of
collaborative factory establishment in Southeast
Asia, we actively explored the opportunities for
overseas investment in factory construction to
optimize the global product and service layout,
whilst providing high-quality and safe products and
services for local people.

Expediating development of international
talent team: we attracted outstanding talents
with international vision and experience, while
strengthening the internationalised training of
internal talents, providing robust support for our
overseas business development.
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Digitalised strategy level: empowering for 3.

improving efficiency and leading the future
with intelligence

(i) Exploring intelligent hospital solutions:
we actively carried out deep cooperation with
medical institutions to explore new models for
intelligent hospital construction, and offered better
services for medical staff and patients through the
application of digital products.

(i) Al digital application: in the sector of Al
application, Weigao Group is conducting research
on the integration of Al technology with scenarios
such as “closed-loop control of anesthesia depth
during perioperative period” and “intelligent
vascular evaluation”. In the future, it will also
focus on more innovative research such as
“intelligent monitoring and early warning system”
and "intelligent multi-device linkage”.

(i) Improving intelligent manufacturing
standards: we continued to push forward
the digital transformation of production
and manufacturing by introducing advanced
automation equipment and intelligent
management systems and establishing unmanned
factories, aiming at enhancing both production
efficiency and product quality.

(iv) Upgrading digital operation system: the
application of digital tools such as sales cockpit,
management cockpit, energy management
platform and Al business assistant has significantly
enhanced operational efficiency and management
standards.

We firmly believe that the talent pool and innovative
mechanism are important forces and engines supporting
Weigao Group to move forward.
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In terms of talent strategy, we have always
adhered to the principle of attracting talents

and stimulating vitality:

EAAERBRGE  RMBRERERFR
B BEEn:

8

Adhering to introduction of professional
talents: we continuously introduced top-tier
talents in R&D, management, sales and other
sectors, injecting new vitality to our corporate
development.

Emphasizing cultivation of internal
talents: we established a comprehensive talent
cultivation system, provided diversified study and
development opportunities for our staff through
the five-star talent development programme to
stimulate their creativity and potential.

In terms of innovation strategy, we adhered
to the R&D driven approach and pioneering
innovation, achieving significant results:

Constantly emerging innovative
achievements: we obtained a total of 127
new patents and 150 new product registration
certificates for the whole year. We made significant
progress in multiple key projects, including
anesthesia machines, absorbable interface screws,
self-administration drug delivery systems, and
thrombus removal series products.

Deepening industry-academic-research
cooperation: while carrying out the
transformation of scientific research achievements,
we established clinical research bases and
built research and development platforms for
institutions and enterprises. We planned to
build key laboratories in Shandong Province and
introduced leading talents in the industry.

Continuously increasing investment in
R&D: over the past 6 years, R&D expenses grew
at a compound growth rate of 12%, and with the
R&D expense ratio constantly rising, we provide
solid financial support for innovation.
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Looking forward to 2025, Weigao Group will adhere
to its established strategic approaches, actively tackle
challenges, execute initiatives in five aspects and seize
development opportunities, to achieve higher quality
and more sustainable growth.

(i) Striving for market share: by fully leveraging
the Company's advantages in branding, channels,
products and other aspects, we will actively
participate in centralized procurement and strive to
become the top in terms of market share of major
products.

(i) Accelerating the layout of new products
and businesses: we will increase investment
in new technologies, new products, and new
businesses to build multiple new business
segments such as perioperative period, urology,
and endocrinology.

(il Building a comprehensive customer
ecosystem: we will fully integrate the Company's
existing channels and platform advantages
and combine online and offline resources to
provide customers with a one-stop sales model
from products to services, and then to hospital
operation management.

(ivy Strengthening development of an
overseas platform: we will integrate the
overseas advantages of various segments,
establish an overseas platform under centralised
management, intensify our efforts in expanding
overseas markets, and build a strong overseas
talent team. We will adapt to local conditions,
fully leverage local resources, and combine the
Company's superior products to form a synergistic
strategy to deeply tap into the target country’s
market.

(v) Proactively seeking investment and M&A
opportunities: by fully utilizing the Company's
healthy balance sheet and robust cash flow,
we will focus on the deployed product lines to
anchor the world's cutting-edge technologies
through approaches including external investment,
cooperation, and M&As. We will expand product
lines and business segments to increase our size
and strengthen our capabilities.
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2024 is not only a year full of challenges and opportunities,
but also a year of tremendous significance in the
development process of Weigao Group. We are well aware
that the future development path is still full of challenges,
but we remain fully confident about the Company's future.
We will continue to adhere to the core corporate values of
“Conscience, Sincerity and Loyalty “ > and take innovation-
driven, talent-based, and market-oriented approaches to
constantly enhance our core competitiveness, create greater
value for shareholders, and make greater contribution to
society. Once again, | would like to express my gratitude to
all shareholders, partners and colleagues for their concerted
efforts and continuous support.

Long Jing
Chairman
26 March 2025
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

[=a=]
=
For the year ended 31 December
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
(restated) (restated) (restated)
HE+-B=+—HIEE
TECEF EBC-F EBI-HF BT ZENE
ARETT ARETT AR®BTT ARETT AREFR
(B E5) (B E5) <=}
RESULTS E4
Revenue WA 11,792,790 13,314,046 13,747,473 13,229,453 13,087,071
Profit before taxation BRFD AT & A 2,701,667 2,933,274 3,385,739 2,369,187 2,553,748
Taxation Ria (349,924) (430,829) (435,589) (307,585)  (391,032)
Profit for the year AN E A 2,351,742 2,502,445 2,950,150 2,061,602 2,162,716
Profit for the year FATHRIE
attributable to: FEAEER] :
Owners of the Company KRBEB A 2,226,367 2,320,595 2,764,093 2,001,906 2,066,668
Non-controlling interests JEERER 120,254 181,850 186,057 59,696 96,048
2,346,621 2,502,445 2,950,150 2,061,602 2,162,716
As at 31 December
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000
(restated) (restated) (restated)
®w+-—A=+—H
“ECEsF - E--F —T-=-F ZE-_NE
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT AREFR
(= E7)) Eg==xl)) EeS==l))
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BER&E
Total assets BB E 28,243,727 30,740,714 33,402,242 33,670,231 34,759,849
Total liabilities =R (9,184,650)  (9,614,597)  (9,819,957)  (9,677,526) (9,418,283)
Non-controlling interests JEER T (845,108)  (1,640,359)  (1,815,419)  (1,543,584) (1,589,923)
Equity attributable KABHEB A
to owners of the Company &1 1 2 18,213,969 19,485,758 21,766,866 22,449,121 23,751,643
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B

Segment Revenue Breakdown 53 BB UL A BR4H
% of sales
2024 SHEMSLE
:EZIEE @® Sale of medical device products
HEBRRSWNER 48.1
Y Sale of pharma packaging products
HEERERER 17.4
©® Sale of interventional products $§& 7Y A E M 16.8
Sale of orthopaedic products & B &l &R 11.0
Sale of blood management products
HEMRERER 6.7
Segment Profit Breakdown 53 BB s FI EA 4H
% of segment
_ ﬁzo_zf'mﬂi gprofit
- 3 EB A LE
® Medical device products BESRHER 46.3
@® Pharma packaging products &G 8 E R 38.8
Orthopaedic products &1 & 9.5
Blood management products Il & E 2 E MK 2.8
® Interventional products 77 A E M 0.1
©® Others Hfth 2.5

Segmental revenues (RMB’000)

FEBBWA (ARETFT)

2024 2023 % Change

—EZmE = 2EH oLt

Sale of medical device products iHE B R M E R 6,296,502 6,727,859 (6.4%)
Sale of pharma packaging products HEERVEER 2,278,608 2,023,809 12.6%
Sale of interventional products HEN AE 2,195,738 2,164,588 1.4%
Sale of orthopaedic products HE SR EMR 1,439,446 1,271,203 13.2%
Sale of blood management products HEMREIEE S 876,777 1,041,994 (15.9%)

13,087,071 13,229,453
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B E
Geographic breakdown 3h & B 4H
2024
—EmE
% of sales
HENSLE
® PRC [ 74.9
@® United States = 10.7
©  EMEA BUM >~ R IENM 6.5
Others EAth 7.9
% of sales
SHE ML L
® PRC F[ 77.1%
@® United States =E 9.8%
© EMEA BUN -~ R IEM 5.4%
Others E 7.7%
Segmental revenues (RMB’000)
DEWA (ARETF T
2024 2023 % Change
—EZmE T = EEHESL
PRC HR 9,799,577 10,204,472 (4.0%)
United States E[E 1,402,618 1,301,817 7.7%
EMEA BUM ~ R ER A2 JEM 850,886 709,686 19.9%
Others HAth 1,033,990 1,013,478 2.0%

13,087,071 13,229,453
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW
Optimisation of product mix

During the year ended 31 December 2024 (the “Year”), the
gross profit margin of the Group amounted to 50.3%, which
was similar to the 50.2% of last year.

The existing major products of the Group under each
business line are as follows:

e  The medical device products business includes clinical
care, medical testing equipment, anesthesia and
surgical-related products

e The pharmaceutical packaging business includes
prefilled syringes and pre-filled flush syringes

e The orthopaedic business includes trauma, spinal
implant, artificial joints, sports injury, soft tissue
repair, reconstruction implant, orthopaedic filling, and
orthopaedic related surgical tools

° Interventional business includes tumor intervention,
vascular intervention, and interventional imaging

e The blood management business includes blood
collection, storage, separation, and sterilization of
consumables and equipment
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIR B smE DT

Optimisation of product mix (continued)

1.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

During the Year, the medical device products
business recorded a turnover of approximately
RMB6,296,502,000, representing a decrease of 6.4%
over last year. Despite being affected by pricing
pressures, the core clinical care products have continued
to expand market share, and the competitive edge
remains robust. With continued sales growth and
further consolidation of market share, a rebound in
revenue is expected in the future. Several strategically
positioned product lines will provide new growth drivers
moving forward.

During the Year, the pharmaceutical packaging
business recorded a turnover of approximately
RMB2,278,608,000, representing an increase of 12.6%
over last year. Prefilled syringes demonstrated strong
growth, and as an industry leader, we continued to
enhance our service capability to bio-pharmaceutical
downstream customers and improved customers’
dependence. Sales of flushing syringes continued
to grow, but revenue declined due to the impact of
centralized procurement pricing.

During the Year, the orthopaedic business recorded
a turnover of approximately RMB1,439,446,000,
representing an increase of 13.2% over last year.
The terminal surgical implantation volume of major
orthopaedic products experienced high growth,
continued to increase market share. Sports medicine,
orthopedic biomaterials, and other business lines have
seen robust growth.

During the Year, the interventional business recorded
a turnover of approximately RMB2,195,738,000,
representing an increase of 1.4% over last year. Global
business progressed in a steady manner, and the
gradual launch of new products into the market will
drive sustained revenue growth for the interventional
segment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group obtained
product registration certificates for 150 new products in the
PRC. The research and development for 44 products were
completed for which applications for product registration
certificates are underway. 127 new patents were obtained
and 147 patents are under the application. For the year
ended 31 December 2024, the Group had over 873 product
registration certificates and 1,040 patents, of which 198
were patents on invention, in the PRC.

For the overseas market, 14 patents are under application
and the research and development for 26 products were
completed for which application for product registration
certificates are underway. For the year ended 31 December
2024, the Group had over 749 product registration
certificates and 183 patents.

The strategy of placing a strong emphasis on research and
development has enhanced the competitiveness and laid a
foundation for the Company to fully leverage on its customer
resources and provided the Group with new profit growth
drivers.

In view of the need for strategic adjustments to the product
mix, the Group continued to increase efforts on the
improvement and subdivision of product layout in existing
product series, so as to maintain its leading position in
research and development capability in China.

In addition, the prices of major products decreased due
to the impact of volume-based procurements. To adapt to
the demand for cost reduction, the Group has strategically
“reduced costs through R&D and design” and upgraded the
design of some of its major products to better improve its
competitiveness in the market and increase its profitability.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, total research
and development expenses amounted to approximately
RMB625,233,000 (2023: approximately RMB592,850,000),
representing 4.8% (2023: 4.5%) of the revenue of the
Group.

EEEFT A DM

pA i) e
BE_Z_WE+_-_B=+—HL=E
FE > A& B E B AR EAS E SR 5E R
15018 ERAE TN B EEBRE
RN E4418 ; HHESEF12718 E7E
FREFMI47TE - BE S _NFE+_
B=Z+—HLEE ~xEBBERNES A
873IBE Mt M:E > 1,040 BFF] » Hrh
19815 2 EHAEF

BINHS EERBRNEFNI4IE E
KSR MAERGEBREPNE S

MEB26B-BHE_ZT _UE+_H
=+ —HIEFE  BINEBERTIIOEHE
fhEEfEE > 1831 A o

TEMENRBREAT ABNRF S
RAEDNBAEREREAETER U A
ERBMNEHRT BRI

ENERGRBEBRMERARNER K&
EEENMAEREERRIERATE
MoEMGR FEEFTEALIAEED
BY<R S AL o

o THERBITE TE2EMD
BRAEMRMTE HERBREEMENT
Ko AEBREEE TEH R LK
Py HER D EEE MRS EITTH
moUBFRATSHRFD TRAR
FBEA

BEE_T_NME+_B=+—H
IEEE Eﬂéffzwﬁa-ﬁi HAHANRK
625,233,0007C (ZE_=F : Y ARKE
592,850,0007T) * fh A& B U A BI4.8%
(ZEZ=F:45%)°




18

MANAQEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIR B smE DT

PRODUCTION

During the Year, to expand production capacity, the Group
continued to expand its production facilities to satisfy the
sales demand for future market growth. Meanwhile, the
Group proactively promoted the improvement of production
processes and enhanced intellectualization and automation
of production equipment. The production costs were reduced
through efficiency enhancement and scientific management,
maintaining the Company’s overall profitability.

SALES AND MARKETING

During the Year, the Group consolidated the marketing
management system and further adhered to the strategy of
sales channel integration and product mix adjustment and
focused on marketing resources on customer development
and maintenance in the core healthcare market. The
Group achieved substantial results in key client accounts
management. For the year ended 31 December 2024,
the Group newly added 196 hospitals, 26 other medical
institutions, and 174 distributors to its PRC customer base,
and the Group has a PRC customer base of 10,166 in
aggregate (including 3,998 hospitals, 419 blood stations,
1,204 other medical units, and 4,545 distributors) and an
overseas customer base of 7,685 in aggregate (including
3,290 hospitals, 2,053 other medical units, and 2,342
distributors).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEmAEDN

SALES AND MARKETING (continued) HERTDISHE @

Sales comparison by geographical regions when compared

KBEMEAAMENEERXFHL

with the last year is set out as follows: mr
Turnover by Geographical Information BEERPRAMEEZH
Increase or
decrease
over
corresponding
2024 2023 period %
—ENE —E= 8 [EHAIE R %
Regions HE RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
The PRC Eil
— Eastern and Central —FERMEEAH 5,163,133 5,510,891 (6.3%)
— Northern — 4L 1,729,337 1,915,805 (9.7%)
— Southern —FEFE 1,115,331 956,456 16.6%
— Northeastern —&db 800,575 856,722 (6.6%)
— Southwestern —7mE 757,938 742,105 2.1%
— Northwestern —rit 233,263 222,493 4.8%
PRC sub-total B /st 9,799,577 10,204,472 (4.0%)
Overseas V=AU
— USA —EH 1,402,618 1,301,817 7.7%
— Europe, Middle East and Africa — BN ~ A0 88 Kz FEM 850,886 709,686 19.9%
— Asia and others — o R E At 1,033,990 1,013,478 2.0%
Overseas sub-total BININET 3,287,494 3,024,981 8.7%
Total 4Bt 13,087,071 13,229,453 (1.1%)

The integration of sales channels has strengthened
the Group’s market penetration and influence over the
customers. It enhanced sales contribution per customer and
continued to drive up the product penetration to high-end
customers and was an important approach in generating
revenue growth for the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEES A

SALES AND MARKETING (continued)

Turnover by Geographical Information (continued)

Adjustment in product mix was another important factor in
enhancing the results for the Year. Comparison of revenue of
principal products with that in last year is as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+-HILEE

HERTIBHEE @
EERAEERN (@)

EmGEBNRAERREAFEREENS —
HEZAZR SETEERWARLFYH

EEB R

For the six months ended
31 December

BE+-A=+-BL<ER

Over Over
corresponding corresponding
Product category EmER 2024 2023 period 2024 2023 period
ZZCmE CSC=F BEH “F-mE C—Z”=F 5
RMB'000 RMB'000 % RMB'000 RMB'000 %

AEBTR ARETT ARBTRT AR®TR
Medical device products BRERER 6,296,502 6,727,859 (6.4) 3,107,877 3,273,519 (5.1)
Pharma packaging products ERAEER 2,278,608 2,023,809 126 1,111,003 962,690 15.4
Blood management mEEE 876,777 1,041,994 (15.9) 456,662 518,506 (11.9)
Orthopaedic products BRER 1,439,446 1,271,203 13.2 694,455 474,100 46,5
Interventional products NAEm 2,195,738 2,164,588 14 1,081,386 1,102,938 2.0
Total st 13,087,071 13,229,453 (1.1) 6,451,383 6,331,753 1.9
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group employed a total of
12,719 employees. The breakdown by departments when
compared with last year is as follows:

EEES DN

ADER

R_E_NEFE+_HA=+—H ' &£H
HEEMR12,719%EE > A F LA
FIMun T

Department & P9

2024 2023

—EFME T

Production HE 6,440 6,183
Sales and marketing HE KT HERE 3,180 3,265
Research and development bt 2% 1,386 1,370
Finance and administration M5 RITIE 622 626
Quality control =R=gziysll 650 653
Management E18 354 336
Purchasing ®EE 87 86
Total AR5t 12,719 12,519

There are a total of 1,381 overseas employees who reside in
Hong Kong, USA and Europe. Other employees of the Group
are resided in Mainland China. During the Year, the total
cost of salaries, welfare and social benefits of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB2,431,338,000 (2023:
approximately RMB2,209,253,000).

REMUNERATION SYSTEM

The Group’s remuneration policy has been determined
based on its performance, changes in the local consumption
power and competition in the human resources market.
The remuneration policy so determined has become the
basis of determining the salary level of employees recruited
for different positions. The salary of each employee is
determined according to the employee’s performance,
ability, employment conditions and the salary standards set
by the Company. Remuneration of directors is proposed
by the Remuneration Committee with reference to the
operating results of the Company, personal performance
of the directors and market competition. The proposed
remuneration of directors is proposed by the Board subject
to approval by shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

BIMEEN,381% DR E B EE
EUNEMEF AERNEMEE SN
RAREARM - ER AEBEETIHE
B HEEREENRSBLELOS AR
#2,431,338,000c (CE-=F 1 95
AR #2,209,253,0007T) °

#r B 57 32 %1 E
AEENFMBRERFEKRER 4
BUH B FEIEMANERTZHRF N
METE - ZEENHFWBEREASBES
FrEAEEHREKTHNEE - SUES
WHERFREBENTRER BN ERIF
TRERBNAEHEREME -EF
WM ERHmMEEEE2EARTHN
KEXE BEFEAARBATHRFE
B EEE EHIE RN S R WAARER
RRBFAGLREEEGET

HIE A




MANAQEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIR B smE DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
recorded a turnover for the year of approximately
RMB13,087,071,000, representing a decrease of
1.1% over the previous financial year. Net profit
attributable to the owners of the Company was
approximately RMB2,066,668,000 (2023: approximately
RMB2,001,906,000), representing an increase of
approximately 3.2% as compared with the previous year. Net
profit attributable to the owners of the Company (excluding
extraordinary items) was approximately RMB2,066,668,000
(2023: approximately RMB1,982,432,000), representing an
increase of 4.2% over the previous year.

A1 %5 [o] BE
BE_Z_HWWE+_"_ABA=+—H
TEFE FEEXHEEZTNAR
13,087,071,00070 ' R E—HAKEFEET
fE1.1% RABHEAE ABGHAFOAR
#%2,066,668,0007c (ZZE-=F : A
EE#£2,001,906,0007T) > & F—FE g
£3.2% A HFHRIEENAABHEE A
FE(L AR 49 N R #62,066,668,0007T (—
T =F I ARYE1,982,432,0007T) °
RE—FEBIEEA2%-

FINANCIAL SUMMARY MBHRE
Increase
2024 2023 (decrease)
—EZmME = & )
RMB’'000 RMB'000 %
ARBTR AREF T
Turnover =EE 13,087,071 13,229,453 (1.1%)
Gross profit EF] 6,580,631 6,643,033 (0.9%)
Net profit attributable to KRBEB A
the owners of the Company P& 1 4l 7] 2,066,668 2,001,906 3.2%
Net profit attributable to Rt REHRIEBEE AR AT
the owners of the Company B AL AR
(excluding extraordinary items) 2,066,668 1,982,432 4.2%

There was no extraordinary item in 2024 (extraordinary items
in 2023: the one-off post-tax gain attributable to the owners

_7_

mMEEKHKER (TTE =%
BIER I ARBEA AEG—

RIEME

of the Company of approximately RMB19,474,000). W4 AR 119,474,0007T) ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has maintained a sound financial position. As
of 31 December 2024, the Group's cash and bank balance
amounted to approximately RMB7,780,310,000. For the
year ended 31 December 2024, the net cash flow from
operating activities of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB2,789,971,000, representing a sound cash flow position.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the total interest
expenses of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB249,572,000 (2023: total interest expenses of
approximately RMB272,971,000).

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio of the Group as of the end of 2024
reduced to 17.7% (2023: 18.6%).

As of 31 December 2024, the total net cash of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB3,587,164,000 (2023: net
cash of approximately RMB2,819,414,000). The gearing
ratio represents total debt as a percentage of total capital.
Total debt is calculated as total borrowings. Total capital is
calculated as the Group’s shareholders’ fund.
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MANAQEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIR B smE DT

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The Group’s purchases and sales are mainly conducted
in the PRC and the United States. Assets, liabilities, and
transactions in the PRC are denominated in RMB, while
overseas assets and transactions are mainly denominated
in US dollars. Foreign exchange risk mainly arises from
outstanding borrowings denominated in foreign currencies.
The Group has adopted foreign currency hedging
instruments to better manage foreign exchange risk.
The objective of the hedge is to minimise the volatility
of the RMB expenditures expected to be incurred in the
future to meet foreign currency liabilities. The Group’s risk
management policy is to partially hedge the forecasted cash
flows in foreign currencies by considering the appropriate
hedging instruments and costs of hedging. The Group uses
foreign exchange structured derivative financial contracts
to hedge its foreign currency risk. For the year ended 31
December 2024, the Group had not encountered any
material difficulty due to the fluctuation in exchange rates
nor had it affected its funds for operation purposes.

Due to the fluctuation in exchange rates, the Company
realised a foreign exchange gain equivalent to approximately
RMB56,436,000 for the year ended 31 December 2024
(2023: foreign exchange loss equivalent to approximately
RMB16,602,000).

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS/FUTURE
MATERIAL INVESTMENT PLANS

1. During the Year, the Group continued to invest
approximately RMB612,810,000 in the purchase
of properties and production facilities and plant
construction for the purpose of enhancing the overall
construction of the industrial zone for the Group’s
medical consumables.

2. The Group planned to invest RMB770,000,000 to
acquire the 38.5% interest in the Songyuan Healthcare
Industry Fund (fRREZFEEEEZEESE), which focuses
on the investments in the medical and healthcare sector
mainly covering medical devices, biopharmaceuticals,
medical services and rehabilitation and elderly care,
of which a total of RMB308,000,000 has been
contributed.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS/FUTURE
MATERIAL INVESTMENT PLANS (continued)

3. In January 2023, Weigao Orthopaedic, a subsidiary
of the Company, acquired 100% equity interest
in Shandong Weigao Newlife Medical Device Co.,
Ltd., a fellow subsidiary of the Company, which is
principally engaged in the research and development,
manufacture and sale of tissue repair product lines, at
a consideration of RMB1,030,000,000. The transfer
price is payable in installments, with a payment of
an aggregate of RMB824,000,000 being made and a
payment of RMB103,000,000 expected to be made in
2025.

4. In 2025, the Group planned to invest approximately
RMB250,000,000 in a new production line for pre-filled
syringes and a production line for auto-injectors, which
is under the construction process, and is expected to be
successively put in operation by 2026.

5. In 2025, the Group planned to further invest
approximately RMB340,000,000 in the upgrading and
reconfiguration of the single-use consumables and
orthopaedic consumables equipment to further enhance
the level of production automation.

Save for the above material investments and investment
plans, the Group had no future plans involving significant
investments or capital assets acquisition as of 31 December
2024.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As of 31 December 2024, the capital commitment
including acquisition, investment, and purchase of
property, plant and equipment which the Group and the
Company had contracted for but not provided amounted
to approximately RMB1,152,555,000 (2023: approximately
RMB1,151,986,000). The above amounts will be financed by
the internal resources of the Group.

EEES DN

BERRE RREKREAGE
(&)

3. TE=ZF—RB ' ARBENRBAE
e ER U AER1,030,000,000
TWEERARABRAKBRAZLWE
BB REBMAERAT100%
B ZAB TERFHBEBEE
AR RSN E - EEE
APHEIN BEREFAZNTARE
824,000,000 — 2 - RETE
x4 AR #103,000,0007T °

4., “E_HEFEGFEREHARKE
250 000,00070° AR EIEEERE
EPEWEEQ,I%H%%@ )~4=E3)
ANZESG At T ZRFo bk
I.E&J\/:_EJ%O

5. “E_HFFEEBEEBERANARE
340,000,00070 FFEBR — XM
EMREREMNREEMENS
BE E—TRAEENBEIEK

7 o

frREMBERKRERRESEIN R T
“ME+ZRA=+—R xEETES
HEARKENBAELEE Z KK

%lJ o

BARRE

ﬁ\_v_lﬂlﬁ‘f' B=+—H &x&H
A AT B ELE M R 1E L B EH W
Eﬁ\?ﬁﬁ&ﬁ%%%%*ﬁfﬁ%&%ﬁ LW
BAREENAS ANE®1,152,555,0007T
(CE-=F 8 AE¥1,151,986,000
7)) P RIBEBRUARER A E RS
N




26

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIR B smE DT

PLEDGE OF THE GROUP’'S ASSETS

On 6 December 2024, the Company and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into loan agreements
with International Finance Corporation ("IFC") for a
seven-year long-term loan facilities with a loan amount of
UsD210,000,000 and USD40,000,000 respectively. As of 31
December 2024, the relevant loan remained undrawn.

As of 31 December 2024, the Group had pledged the equity
interest in Weihai Jierui Medical Products Company Ltd.,
Shandong Financial Leasing Company Ltd., and Shanghai
Financial Leasing Company Ltd., wholly owned subsidiaries
of the Group, as well as certain buildings and land use rights
of the Company, to secure the long-term borrowings from
IFC, and pledged/restricted bank deposits of approximately
RMB395,089,000 (2023: approximately RMB754,975,000)
to secure short-term borrowing, bills and letters of credit
granted to the Group.

The lease financing company pledged account receivables
of approximately RMB1,397,000 (2023: approximately
RMB8,913,000) to secure bank facilities.

As of 31 December 2024, the loan principal of Argon
Medical Devices Holdings, Inc. (“Argon”) amounted to
UsD169,750,000, which was secured by the equity interest
in subsidiaries of Argon, with the property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, inventories, trade receivables,
cash and bank balances of Argon as collateral. The loan
principal of WW Medical and Healthcare Company Limited
("WW Cayman”) amounted to RMB975,000,000, which
was secured by the Company, Argon Medical Devices (Hong
Kong) Company Limited and Argon (Shanghai) Medical
Devices Company Limited.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As of 31 December 2024, the total reserves of the
Group amounted to RMB23,294,580,000 (2023:
RMB21,992,058,000).

Under the PRC laws and regulations, the Company’s
distributable reserves will be based on the lower of the
amount calculated according to the PRC accounting
principles and rules and the amount calculated according
to Hong Kong's generally accepted accounting principles.
As of 31 December 2024, the distributable reserves of the
Company were approximately RMB9,513,833,000 (2023:
RMB9,212,316,000).

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

In 2024, the global market of medical devices continued to
grow, with the sales volume of products of each business
segment of the Company maintaining an increasing trend,
the market share of core products further consolidated, and
brand influence continued to strengthen.

The impact of the centralized volume-based procurement
policy in public hospitals in China on the prices and profits
of certain products of the Company has gradually stabilized.
The Company regards this policy as a normalized measure
in the PRC healthcare market, and proactively seeks to
expand its market share and enhance competitiveness by
participating in bidding and optimizing market strategies.

Committed to the dual-engine strategy driven by product
layout and business layout, the Company achieved a steady
growth in its performance. In terms of new products, the
Company continued to advance innovative research and
development, and constantly improved and enriched its
product portfolio. It has also established a clear medium-
long-term product planning, building a solid foundation
for future development. In terms of business layout, the
Company has established differentiated expansion strategies
customized to the characteristics of various regions of the
PRC and overseas markets and deployed corresponding
resources to comprehensively enhance market penetration
and competitiveness.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIR B smE DT

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

Meanwhile, certain macroeconomic factors continue to
exert pressure on the Company’s performance, such as the
persistently high US dollar interest rates, which pushed up
the finance costs. Also the prolonged accounts receivable
period of some domestic medical institutions increased
operating costs and lowered the asset turnover efficiency.

In the generic medical device segment, centralized volume-
based procurement for different products will continue to
advance across various provinces. Leveraging its rich product
portfolio and extensive market coverage, the Company
possesses the ability to respond to risks. Through measures
such as product upgrading and iteration, refined cost
control and common consumption market development,
the Company actively seizes market opportunities, further
enhances its market share, and strengthens its industry
competitiveness. Moreover, the Company’s long-cultivated
perioperative series of consumables and equipment and
businesses such as hospital department information systems
will serve as significant drivers for sustained performance
growth.

In the orthopedic segment, facing the deepening of volume-
based procurement policies and industry reshaping, the
Company has proactively adjusted its business strategies,
facilitated marketing model transformation, and significantly
improved its terminal service capabilities and customer
coverage. By optimizing the product line, strengthening the
management efficiency of core customers, and exploring
diversified channels, its market share has steadily increased.
At the same time, the Company focuses on the research
and innovation of new materials, new technologies, and
new horizons, continuously improves the upstream and
downstream orthopedics industrial layout, and advances
product iteration and clinical procedures upgrades to further
enhance market competitiveness.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

In the pharmaceutical packaging business, the Company’s
market position has been further reinforced. By continuously
increasing production capacity and enhancing its ability
to serve downstream pharmaceutical manufacturers, the
Company has effectively strengthened customer loyalty. At
the same time, the Company proactively seizes opportunities
such as the demands of downstream enterprises for product
upgrades and business layout adjustment, and continuously
expands its pharmaceutical packaging product portfolio to
drive sales growth. Among these, the series of products of
pen injectors applied in the household injection scenarios for
autoimmune diseases, with their promising market prospects,
will become a significant driver for the stable growth of
its business's performance. In addition, the Company has
continued to optimise its production and supply chain
management, further reduce its costs, and elevate its
operational efficiency to better adapt to changes in the
market environment.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

B ZERSREBAS

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. LONG Jing, aged 51, is an executive director and the
chairman of the Board of the Company. Mr. Long joined
the Company in July 2005 and served as the manager of
sales management department and vice-general manager
of sales of the Company until August 2018. He was the
chief executive officer of the Company from August 2018
to March 2021. He has been an executive director of the
Company since December 2018 to date, a director of
Shandong Weigao Orthopaedic Device Company Limited
("Weigao Orthopaedic”) (a subsidiary of the Company,
stock code: 688161.SH) from March 2020 to date and the
chairman of the Board of the Company from March 2021
to date. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Long served
as the sales chief of Shandong Plastic Materials Industry
Company (LUERBER TH4AE) from 1996 to 2002.
Mr. Long obtained a bachelor degree in marketing from
Shandong Economic University and a master degree in
business administration from Shandong University. He also
obtained the Chinese professional qualification of Certified
Public Accountant (CPA), with nearly 20 years of experiences
in sales and operation management in the medical device
industry.

Mr. CONG Rinan, aged 44, is an executive director and
chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Cong joined
the Company in August 2003. He served as supervisor,
deputy manager and manager of the syringe production
workshop until December 2013. During the period from
January 2014 to December 2014, Mr. Cong served as the
assistant to the chief executive officer of the Company.
From January 2015 to December 2018, he served as the
deputy general manager of the clinical care business unit of
the Company; from January 2019 to March 2021, he has
been the general manager of the clinical care business unit;
he has been the chief executive officer of the Company
from March 2021 until present; he has been the executive
director of the Company from May 2021 until present; and
he has been a director of Weihai Huadong Automation
Co., Ltd., ("Huadong Automation”) (Stock code: 002248.
SZ)from March 2024 until present. Mr. Cong obtained a
bachelor’s degree in applied chemistry from Yantai University
and a master’s degree in engineering from Harbin Institute
of Technology. He completed the Master of Business
Administration (MBA) program at Renmin University of China
in 2019 and obtained the title of senior engineer of medical
device professional, with nearly 20 years of experience in
production and operation management in the medical device
industry.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. LU Junqgiang, aged 51, is an executive director of the
Company and a director and a general manager of Weigao
Orthopaedic (stock code: 688161.SH), a subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. Lu joined the Company in October 2000 and
served as the regional manager, sales manager of Eastern
China and deputy general manager of the medical devices
products until January 2018. Mr. Lu was the deputy general
manager of sales of Weigao Orthopaedic from January 2018
to September 2019; and the director of Weigao Orthopaedic
in September 2018 and the general manager of Weigao
Orthopaedic from September 2019 until present. Mr. Lu
obtained a master’s degree of business administration from
the University of Wales in the United Kingdom and has
more than 20 years of experience in sales and operation
management in the medical device industry.

Mr. WANG Daoming, aged 45, is as executive director
of the Company and a director and a general manager
of Shandong Weigao Puri Pharmaceutical Packaging Co.,
Ltd.* (“Weigao Puri”). Mr. Wang joined the Company in
July 2009 and has served as sales, sales manager, assistant
to the general manager in the pharma packaging materials
division of the Company until February 2016. He worked
as the sales director for the pharma packaging materials
division from March 2016 to December 2019, and served as
the vice president of sales of Weigao Puri from January 2020
to December 2022. From January 2023 to January 2024,
he served as the executive vice general manager of Weigao
Puri. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Wang had started his
own business for more than ten years, being responsible for
the sales promotion and independent operation for multiple
brands in Weihai. Mr. Wang graduated from China University
of Geosciences majoring in visual communication design,
and he has been engaged in the pharma packaging industry
for nearly 20 years. He has extensive experience in industry
marketing and corporation operations.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

B ZERSREBAS

DIRECTORS (continued)
Non-executive Directors

Mr. TANG Zhengpeng, aged 54, is a non-executive
director and the vice chairman of the Board of the Company.
Mr. Tang joined the Weigao Holding in December 2017 and
currently is a director and the general manager of Weihai
Weigao International Medical Investment Holdings Co., Ltd.
and the vice chairman of Weigao Holding; and a director and
vice chairman of Huadong Automation (stock code: 002248.
SZ) in March 2018 and from July 2018 until present; and a
non-executive director and the vice chairman of the Board
of the Company from March 2021 until present. Prior to
joining Weigao Holding, Mr. Tang was the assistant to the
president of Bank of Communications, Weihai Branch, the
president of Minsheng Bank, Weihai Branch and the assistant
to the president of China Minsheng Bank, Qingdao Branch.
Mr. Tang graduated from Shandong University majoring in
business administration and completed the EMBA program
of China Europe International Business School, with over
20 years of experience in banking and corporate finance
management.

Mr. CHEN Lin, aged 49, is a non-executive director of the
Company. Mr. Chen joined Weigao Holding in September
2000 and has served as assistant general manager and
general manager of Weigao Holding and currently is the
chairman of the board of Weihai Weigao International
Medical Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. and the chairman
of Weigao Holding. Mr. Chen is a non-executive director
of the Company from March 2021 until present. Mr. Chen
graduated from Weihai University majoring in economic
management and completed a Master of Business
Administration (MBA) program at Renmin University of
China, with over 20 years of operation management
experience in the medical device industry.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS (continued)
Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mrs. YAN Xia, aged 50, is a non-executive director of the
Company. Ms. Yan joined Weigao Holding, a controlling
Shareholder of the Company, in January 2021, and is
currently a director of Weigao Holding. From December
2022 to March 2024, Ms. Yan was a director of Shandong
Weigao Orthopaedic Device Company Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company (Stock code: 688161.SH). Prior to joining
Weigao Holding, Ms. Yan was a director and president of
Beijing Wandong Medical Technology Co., Ltd. (JtREE
BEMEKMBERASB) (Stock code: 600055.5H) from
December 2018 to December 2020; the vice president of
China region of Thermo Fisher Scientific from August 2017
to November 2018; the vice president of Shanghai Fosun
Health Technology (Group) Company Limited (/818 2 #
BRI (@) BMRAE) and a director of United Family
Healthcare (FIEERBEEEE) from July 2016 to August
2017. From July 2001 to June 2016, she had successively
served as the senior application development expert of
the global CT marketing department, global CT product
manager, customer project manager of China marketing
department, product manager/distribution sales manager
of China MR product department, global surgical product
manager and general manager of surgical and interventional
sector of Greater China in GE Healthcare Group. Ms. Yan
was a radiologist in Weifang Asthma Hospital from July
1998 to July 1999. Ms. Yan holds a medical bachelor’s
degree in clinical medicine and a medical master’s degree in
medical imaging and nuclear medicine from Weifang Medical
University. She completed the EMBA program in Finance at
Tsinghua PBCSF. Ms. Yan has over 25 years of experience
in product sales, operations and brand management in the
medical device industry.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SEH BEERSHREEAE
DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LI Guohui, aged 53, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company and joined the Company in June
2022. Currently, Mr. Li is the executive director, chief strategy
officer, chief financial officer and company secretary of China
Aircraft Leasing Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1848.
HK) and an independent non-executive director of Space
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 2448.HK).

From July 2019 to December 2022, Mr. Li worked in
Zhongsheng Group Holdings Limited (“Zhongsheng
Group”, stock code: 0881.HK). His last position was joint
chief financial officer. He was also an executive director
of Zhongsheng Group from June 2020 to December
2022. From August 2013 to July 2019, Mr. Li was the vice
president, chief financial officer and executive director of
China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited (stock code:
3320.HK), a non-executive director of Dong-E E-Jiao Co.,
Ltd. (stock code: 000423.5Z) and China Resources Double
Crane Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600062.SH) and
a supervisor of Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(stock code: 000999.57). He was the accounting director
of the finance department of China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited from September 2009 to August 2013; a
senior analyst of IMC Development Management Company
in Hong Kong from April 2006 to September 2009; and
a M&A investment analyst in IMC Fanya, Singapore from
October 2005 to April 2006.

Mr. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in naval architecture and
marine engineering from Wuhan University of Technology,
a master’s degree in business administration from Wuhan
University, a master’s degree in financial management from
Nanyang Technological University in Singapore and obtained
professional qualifications as a Chartered Financial Analyst
(CFA) qualified by the CFA Institute of Chartered Financial
Analyst and a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) qualified by
the Singapore Institute of Chartered Accountants.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR I\/IANAGEI\/IENT

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mrs. MENG Hong, aged 59, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company and joined the Company
in September 2022. Mrs. Meng is currently an associate
professor of the Accounting Department of the Business
School of Shandong University (Weihai). She has over 30
years of experience in research and teaching at university.
From 1994 to 1999, Mrs. Meng worked at Auditing Firm of
Weihai High-tech Industrial Development Zone (B /&S
MEXBEEBAMEFT), where she was responsible
for auditing and appraising. From 2016 to 2022, she served
as an independent director of Shandong Weida Machinery
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 002026.5Z) and Zhuhai Winbase
International Chemical Tank Terminal Co., Ltd. (stock
code: 002492.57). From 2021 to 2023, she served as an
independent director of Sunfly Intelligent Technology Co.,
Ltd. (stock code: 300423.SZ). Currently, Mrs. Meng is also
an independent director of Weihai Guangwei Composite
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 300699.5Z) and Tianrun Industrial
Technology Co., Ltd (stock code: 002283.57). Mrs. Meng
obtained a bachelor’s and master's degree in economics from
Shandong University and a doctorate degree in economics
from Hoseo University in South Korea. She is an asset
appraiser in China.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SEH BEERSHREEAE
DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. LI Qiang, aged 49, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Company and joined the Company in
December 2022. Mr. Li is currently the executive partner of
Grandall Law Firm and the managing partner of Grandall
Law Firm (Shanghai). Mr. Li is mainly engaged in the
legal practice of capital markets, including private equity
investment, corporate listing and M&A restructuring. Mr.
Li is also a member of the Financial Business Committee of
the All China Lawyers Association, an arbitrator of Shanghai
Arbitration Commission and an arbitrator of Suzhou
Arbitration Commission. Prior to joining Grandall Law Firm
(Shanghai), Mr. Li worked as a paralegal at the Shanghai
office of Boss & Young from March 2003 to April 2005;
as a marketing manager at Lenovo Group Limited from
September 1999 to August 2000; and as a staff member
at China National Arts & Crafts (Group) Corporation from
July 1997 to June 1999. Mr. Li has provided legal services
to more than 40 companies in their domestic and overseas
listing and restructurings. He has nearly 20 years of extensive
legal experience in listing. Mr. Li was an independent director
of Anhui Gourgen Traffic Construction Co.,Ltd. (stock code:
603815.SH). Currently, Mr. Li is as independent directors of
Shanghai Anoky Group Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 300067.52)
and Impulse (Qingdao) Health Tech Co., Ltd. (Stock Code:
002899.57).

Mr. Li obtained a bachelor of laws degree and a master
of laws degrees from Shanghai University of International
Business and Economics; a master of law degree from
Chicago-Kent College of Law and EMBA degree from China
Europe International Business School (CEIBS).

Mr. SUN Heng, aged 61, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Sun has been the associate
professor of the Finance Department of the Business School
of Shandong University, Weihai since July 2003. Prior to
that, Mr. Sun was a lecturer at Harbin Finance University
(formerly known as Harbin Finance College affiliated with
People’s Bank of China) from July 1989 to July 2003. Mr. Sun
obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in English from Harbin
Normal University and a Master of Economics degree in
Finance from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics,
and has over 30 years of experience in teaching and
researching in financial English and finance programmes in
universities.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SUPERVISORS

Mrs. GU Meijun, aged 48, is a shareholder representative
supervisor and the chairman of the Supervisory Committee
of the Company, and is currently the chief accountant of
of Weigao Holding. Ms. Gu joined Weigao Holding in 1996
and held positions such as accounting supervisor, accounting
manager, assistant to general manager of Weigao Holding.
Ms. Gu has been a supervisor of Huadong Automation
(stock code: 002248.57) from March 2021 to date. Ms. Gu
graduated from Beijing Information Technology Institute
majoring in financial management and passed the middle-
level accountant title examination.

Mr. SONG Dapeng, aged 47, is a shareholder representative
supervisor of the Company and is the director of the audit
center of Weigao Holding. Mr. Song joined Weigao Holding
in November 2009 and has served as the supervisor of the
audit and risk management department, manager of the
audit and risk management department and assistant to
general manager of Weigao Holding. Prior to joining Weigao
Holding, Mr. Song worked as the manager of the audit
department of Weihai Jinzheng Accountancy* (B /&% 1E
GEHEMEF5FT) from January 2006 to October 2009. Mr.
Song has been the chairman of the supervisory committee of
Huadong Automation (stock code: 002248.5Z) from March
2021 to date. Mr. Song graduated from Shandong University
of Finance and Economics* (LUERAEEPE) majoring in
accounting.
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B ZERSREBAS

SUPERVISORS (continued)

Mr. ZHANG Zhuanggqiu, aged 48, is an employee
representative supervisor of the Company and is currently
the vice general manager of the clinical care business division
of the Company. Mr. Zhang joined the Company in January
2016 and successively served in different positions in the
Company such as the assistant to general manager of the
clinical care business division and vice general manager
of production department. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Zhang worked for Samsung Electronics (Shandong)
Digital Printers Ltd. (ZE2&BF (WUR) BT ERA
&) from July 1997 to January 2012 and worked for Weihai
Weigao Medical Systems Co. Ltd. (Ei/BE e EBBERHZERA
7)), a subsidiary of the Company’s controllmg shareholder,
Weigao Holding Company Limited, as the vice general
manager of production department from February 2012 to
December 2015. Mr. Zhang graduated from University of
Science and Technology Liaoning CGEERF KZ) in July
1997 majoring in mechanical manufacturing.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. WU Xuefeng, aged 47, is the chief financial officer
of the Company. Mr. Wu joined the finance department of
the Company in July 2001. He served as the manager of
the manufacturing finance department and the manager
of the sales finance department of the Company until July
2012; from July 2012 to October 2013, he was the manager
of the risk management department of Weigao Holding;
from October 2013 to February 2017, he was the financial
controller of the pharmaceutical distribution business
department of Weigao Holding; and from February 2017 to
present, he has been the financial controller of the Company.
Mr. Wu obtained a bachelor degree in finance management
from the University of QiQiHar in Heilongjiang Province and
obtained a master degree in business management from
the Missouri State University, the United States, with more
than 20 years of experience in the accounting and finance
management.

Mrs. WONG Miu Ling, Phillis, aged 56, is the company
secretary of the Company. Ms. Wong joined the Company in
May 2006. She is a Chartered Secretary and fellow members
of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and
the Chartered Governance Institute. Ms. Wong has over 25
years of experience in corporate finance and management.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

To all shareholders:

The Supervisory Committee (the “Supervisory Committee”)
of Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company
Limited, in compliance with the relevant requirements of
the Company Law and the articles of association of the
Company, has conducted its work in accordance with the
fiduciary principle, and has taken up an active role to work
seriously and with diligence to protect the interests of the
Company and its shareholders.

During the Year, the Supervisory Committee had reviewed
cautiously the development plans of the Company and
provided reasonable suggestions and opinions to the Board.
It also strictly and effectively monitored and supervised the
Company's management in making significant policies and
decisions to ensure that they are in compliance with the
relevant requirements of the Company Law and the articles
of association of the Company, and in the interests of its
shareholders.

We have reviewed and agreed to the report of the Directors,
audited consolidated financial statements and the dividend
to be proposed by the Board for presentation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. We are of the opinion
that the Directors, the chief executive officer and other
senior management of the Company are able to strictly
observe their fiduciary duty, to act diligently, to exercise their
authority faithfully in the best interests of the Company and
to work in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the Company. The transactions between the Company and
connected parties are in the interests of the shareholders as
a whole and under fair and reasonable price.

As of today, none of the Directors, chief executive officer
and senior management staff had been found to have
abused their authority, damaged the interests of the
Company or infringed upon the interests of its shareholders
and employees. None of them was found to be in breach of
any laws and regulations or the Articles of Association of the
Company.
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EEGHLSE

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the achievement
and cost-effectiveness of the Company in 2024 and has
great confidence in the future prospect of the Company.

By Order of the Supervisory Committee
Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer
Company Limited

GU Meijun

Chairman of Supervisory Committee

Weihai, Shandong Province, the PRC

26 March 2025
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The Directors are pleased to present this Annual Report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Principal Activities

Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company Limited
(the "Company”) is principally engaged in the research
and development, production and sale of medical device
products, orthopaedic products, interventional products,
pharma packaging products, blood management products,
and operates financing business.

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised
into six operating divisions — medical device products,
orthopaedic products, interventional products, pharma
packaging products, blood management products and
others, among which interventional products were produced
by Argon Medical Devices Holding, Inc.. These divisions are
the basis of the internal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating
decision maker (Managing Director) in order to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance.

Principal activities of the Group’s operating and reportable
segments are as follows:

production and sale of clinical care,
medical testing, anesthesia and
surgical related products and other
consumables

production and sale of orthopaedic

Medical Device
Products

Orthopaedic

Products products
Interventional — production and sale of tumour
Products and blood vessel interventional

instruments

Pharma Packaging— production and sale of pre-filled

Products syringes and flushing syringes
Blood — production and sale of blood
Management collection, irradiation, storage,
Products separation and sterilization products
Others — finance lease and factoring business
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Business Review

A fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
and the material factors underlying its results and financial
position are provided in the Chairman’s Statement, Business
Review and Financial Review sections respectively from pages
4 to 10, 15 to 21 and 22 to 27 of this Annual Report. The
future development of the Group's business is discussed
throughout this Annual Report including in the Review
and Outlook sections from pages 28 to 29 of this Annual
Report. In addition, more details regarding the Group’s
performance by reference to environmental and social-
related key performance indicators and policies, as well
as compliance with relevant laws and regulations which
have a significant impact on the Group, are provided in the
Corporate Governance Report and the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report (the "ESG Report”), which will be
published separately.

Dividend

The Board proposed the distribution of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2024 of RMBO0.1235
(2023: RMB0.0943) (before considering any tax effect)
per share totaling approximately RMB564,473,000 (2023:
RMB431,011,000), subject to the approval of shareholders
of the Company at the Annual General Meeting. The final
dividend will be denominated and declared in Renminbi.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the Year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the Year, the combined value of the Group's contracts
with its five largest suppliers, which were not of a capital
nature, was less than 30 per cent of the total value of
supplies purchased. The Group's five largest customers
combined contributed less than 30 per cent of its total
revenue and other income during the Year.
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During the Year, none of the Directors, their associates or
any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Director
owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
has a beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers
or suppliers.

Results

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2024 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on pages 95 to 96 of
this annual report.

Donations

During the Year, the Group made charitable donations
amounted to RMB3,900,000 (2023: RMB939,000).

Share Capital

As at 31 December 2024, the total share capital of
the Company was RMB457,063,232.4 divided into
4,570,632,324 ordinary shares with a nominal value of
RMBO.1 per share, of which 4,522,332,324 shares were
H shares and 48,300,000 shares were non-listed domestic
shares.

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statement.

Closure of Register of Member

For the purpose of determining who may attend the Annual
General Meeting to be held on Tuesday, 27 May 2025,
the register of holders of H Shares of the Company will be
closed from Wednesday, 21 May 2025 to Tuesday, 27 May
2025 (both dates inclusive), during which no transfer of H
Shares will be registered. In order to qualify for entitlement
to attending and voting in the Annual General Meeting, all
transfers of H Shares accompanied by the relevant share
certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company’s H Share registrar, Tricor Investors Services Limited
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 20 May
2025.

REPORT OF THEEIRECTORS
EETRG

KEER > AABESF  HBBRANE
EEFABEEARRATBETRAS% U
EREAREBERAERLRER K
HEFRTRESESEEE -

E 315

rEESEE_T_NFEF+-"H=+—H
IEFERNEEHN A FRFEISHEF6
BRRaEm REMERRTE

KEERN  AEBFHEEZEE AR
#3,900,000 0 (ZCE_=F: AR
939,0007T) °©

Az s

A —E_OME+_—_B=+—H ' &QH
RIRE R 4BZE A N R #457,063,232.47T
N 7#4,570,632, 324 EREEAAE
Mo 1T E @A HH4,522,332,324
B& B 1D A HRG K 48,300,0000% B 19 2 3E
EHRER-

RABEFEARNBRELEFIBHIGR
BB HRAMEE3T7 -

EEMERMBRERFE

AETERYESRN_Z_HAFHA
“TH+EtHEBRD) 2T 2REBEKX
EMAT ARBEBR _E_EFHA
—+—H(EHRD)E_ZE-_FFHA
“—+tR (B2 (BEmMHEEERN)
EEHRBRERL  NEPBE AT B
EBHREFREXRFE - ATEENRHE
REBERSUTNE LKEMEHRK
BANHERBEREREZRIZELR
BR _Z_AFRB_-_+H(EHE T
FORF=Z+9EXEARBHIHRBERE
DBJ;?!%& BEBLARAT  UIHEE
SoFE

43



44

BEPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETIRG

In order to qualify for attending the Annual
General Meeting:-

Latest time to lodge in transfer instrument

accompanied by the share certificates

forHShares ... ... .. ... ... . ... ... ... 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 20 May 2025

Closure of register of members of the

Company for attending and voting in the

Annual General Meeting Wednesday, 21 May
2025 to Tuesday, 27 May 2025

Date of Annual General Meeting ... Tuesday, 27 May 2025

For the purpose of determining who may be entitled
to receive the final dividend of the Company (subject
to approval by the Shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting), the register of holders of H Shares of the Company
will be closed from Wednesday, 4 June 2025 to Tuesday,
10 June 2025 (both dates inclusive), during which no
transfer of H Shares will be registered. In order to qualify for
entitlement to the final dividend, all transfers of H Shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer
forms must be lodged with the Company’s H Share Registrar,
Tricor Standard Limited for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 3 June 2025.

In order to qualify to entitle the final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2024:-

Latest time to lodge in transfer instrument accompanied

by the share certificates for H Shares and

Domestic Shares . ............... 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday,
3 June 2025

Closure of register of members of the Company

for entitlement of the final dividend for the year

ended 31 December 2024. . ... .. Wednesday, 4 June 2025
to Tuesday, 10 June 2025

Record date for the entitlement of the
final dividend . . .. ... ... ... ... Tuesday,
10 June 2025

Expected dispatch date of the final dividend . .. .. .. Friday,
11 July 2025

The final dividend will be despatched at the risk of those
entitled thereto to their respective registered addresses on or

before Friday, 11 July 2025.
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Reserves and Distributable Reserves

As of 31 December 2024, the total reserves of the
Group amounted to RMB23,294,580,000 (2023:
RMB21,992,058,000).

Under the PRC laws and regulations, the Company’s
distributable reserves will be based on the lower of the
amount calculated according to the PRC accounting
principles and rules and the amount calculated according
to Hong Kong's generally accepted accounting principles.
As of 31 December 2024, the distributable reserves of the
Company were approximately RMB9,513,833,000 (2023:
RMB9,212,316,000).

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company s Listed Securities

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold, or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

On 11 February 2025, the Company repurchased the H
shares of the Company ("H Shares") for the first time. As at
the date of this report, a total of 2,086,000 H Shares were
repurchased and were held as treasury shares.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's articles of association and the laws of the PRC,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. LONG Jing (Chairman)

Mr. CONG Rinan (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. LU Jungiang

Mr. WANG Daoming (appointed on 28 May 2024)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. TANG Zhengpeng (Vice Chairman)
Mr. CHEN Lin
Mrs. YAN Xia (appointed on 28 May 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LI Guohui

Mrs. MENG Hong

Mr. LI Qiang

Mr. SUN Heng (appointed on 28 May 2024)
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Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts
(continued)

Mr. Long Jing, Mr. Lu Jungiang and Mr. Li Guohui shall hold
office to the 2025 AGM of the Company and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the 2025 AGM.

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2025 AGM has a
service contract with any member of the Group which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors and Senior Management’s
Emoluments

The remunerations of the Directors are reviewed from
time to time by the remuneration committee of the
Company with reference to their professional qualifications,
responsibilities, experiences, performances and the Group’s
operating results.

The Group’s emolument policy is designed to attract,
retain and motivate talented individuals to contribute to
the success of the business. The emolument policy of the
employees of the Group is formulated and reviewed by the
remuneration committee of the Company on the basis of
their merit, qualifications and competence.

Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the
year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Position

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
of any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) of
the Company, which will have to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which will be required, as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as contained in Appendix C3 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) were as follows:

(i) Long positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company:
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(i) REQABRMGKREMARGINETE:

% of the
% of total issued
% of Domestic share capital
H Shares Number of Shares in of the
Name of Nature of Number of in issue Domestic issue Company
director interest Capacity H Shares held (note 1) Shares held (note 1) (note 1)
fhH2aa
HEET R BE{THRE
HRES NERBSL aEasl
BEfs Enty & FrifsHIR# A (1)  FEREREE (H3£1) (GEN
Mr. Long Jing "¢ Personal Beneficial Owner 480,000 0.0106 6,000,000 12.42 0.1418
REAT o b ) A BREAA
Mr. Cong Rinan (o3 Personal Beneficial Owner 200,000 0.0044 2,000,000 4.14 0.0481
ERBRLE M BA BRERA
Mr. Wang Daoming "¢ Personal Beneficial Owner - - 500,000 1.04 0.0109
FERRE A BABGHEEA
Mr. Chen Lin Personal Beneficial Owner 196,000 0.0043 - - 0.0043
BRiEE BA BREAA
Notes: I
1. As at 31 December 2024, the number of total issued shares of 1. RIZEZWMNE+ZA=+—H &2

the Company was 4,570,632,324, comprising 4,522,332,324 H
Shares and 48,300,000 Domestic Shares.

BB E&ETRMBE#4,570,632,324
B> 8454,522,332,324HKR &
48,300,000 N &R °

Ffr 48 22 1 25 45(1)BE o A2 72 480,000 /% H
B A B9 ME A RE R 5 R (iR IR B AR (5
=t 22 H A96,000,00019 3F L LLE
W) YR 2 5 B PR e o

2. The interest disclosed represents (i) Mr. Long'’s personal interest 2.
in 480,000 H Shares; and (ii) 6,000,000 unlisted physically
settled incentive share options granted pursuant to the
Incentive Share Scheme.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Position (continued)

The interest disclosed represents (i) Mr. Cong’s personal interest
in 200,000 H Shares; and (ii) 2,000,000 unlisted physically
settled incentive share options granted pursuant to the
Incentive Share Scheme.

The relevant interests are unlisted physically settled incentive
share options granted pursuant to the Incentive Share Scheme.

(ii) Long positions in the shares and underlying
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T3 B8 e s 5 (1) 28 o &£ 52200,000 8% H
BE AP E AR 5 R RIE BN IR 15
24 H AY2,000,0005 JE L LLE
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(i) K222 E) A K B 2 B2 {7 Be AE RR AR

shares of the associated corporations of the REFE
Company
Amount of % of
equity interest
Name of interest held/ in the
Name of associated Capacity/Nature registered capital/ associated
director corporation of interest underlying interest corporation
FrfsiRiEH s/ K E
Bspty HBLEE B8 g/ RutE B YRl HEmzat
Mr. Chen Lin Weihai Weigao International Beneficial owner RMB1,100,800 6.90%
Medical Investment Holding
Co., Ltd. toted
BRI E BERsERER BB A AE#1,100,8007C
REERBRAF M
Mr. ChenLin Weigao Holding Beneficial owner RMB9,760,000 0.81%
Company Limited "o
BRI E BeEEBRAR " BB A AE#9,760,0007C
Mr. Lu Jungiang ShandongWeigao Orthopaedic ~ Beneficial Owner 400,000 A shares 0.10%
Device Company Limited (Note i
EfRRE \WREEERME KRR BB A 400,00082AR
HRAT (i)
Notes: P

(i)

Weihai Weigao International Medical Investment Holding
Co., Ltd. ("Weihai Weigao International”) holds 89.93%
equity interest in Weigao Holding Company Limited (“Weigao
Holding”), which is the controlling shareholder of the Company
holding 45.94% equity interest in the Company.

These underlying shares were incentive share options granted to
Mr. Lu Jungiang and were vested pursuant to the share award
scheme of Shandong Weigao Orthopadeic Device Company
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange.

(if)
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of the SFO) which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO (including the interests and
short positions which the Director is taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant
to the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2024, so far as the Directors are aware,
the following persons (other than the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company) or institutions have interests or
short positions of 5% or more in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:
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% of
total issued
share capital

Number of
H Shares held

Name of shareholder Nature of interest (Note 2) (Note 1)
EHEBITRE
FrfFHRR# B HEEHDLE
RERMR BB EmeE (Bfz¥2) (F33E1)
Mr. Chen Xueli Interest of controlled 2,099,755,676 (L) 4594
corporation
FREEF S TEAE R
Weihai Weigao International Interest of controlled 2,099,755,676 (L) 4594
corporation
8 = B R ZEAE R
Weigao Holding Beneficial owner 2,099,755,676 (L) 45,94

= E EmEBEA
Notes:
1. As at 31 December 2024, the number of total issued shares of the

Company was 4,570,632,324, comprising 4,522,332,324 H Shares
and 48,300,000 Domestic Shares.

2. The Company is owned as to 45.94% by Weigao Holding, which
is 89.83% owned by Weihai Weigao International. Weihai Weigao
International is 50.80% owned by Mr. Chen Xueli. Accordingly,
Mr. Chen Xueli and Weihai Weigao International are deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company held by Weigao Holding for
the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

1. RIZEZNE+"ZA=+—H'£&x2 8B
BITRMHHMRS A4,570,632,32488 614%
4,522,332,32488HA& % 48,300,000 R &

e

2. AREHEEEEFEA5.94%E 5 TE
SEEHEEESEKITEES9.83% M
BERSERRREN EERFAES0.80%#
o AL > IRIEE H R EIE KB EBEXVES » IR
BREEREERSEERBEARESE
BFfF A QAT IRMD h R o
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, no other
persons (other than the Directors and chief executives of the
Company) had any interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

Incentive Share Scheme

The Company adopted an inventive share scheme on
17 November 2014 (“Incentive Share Scheme”). The
purposes of the Incentive Share Scheme are to: (i) enable
the Company to provide incentive to the Eligible Participants
(as defined below) in order to recognise and motivate the
contributions they have made or will make to the Group; (ii)
attract and retain quality talents for the business operation,
management and development of the Group; (iii) align
the interests of the management, the employees and the
Group to ensure the realisation of the Group’s development
strategy and business objectives; and (iv) attain a long-term
relationship between the Group and its employees.

Subject to the relevant requirements under the Listing Rules,
Eligible Participants are persons eligible to receive awards
under the Incentive Share Scheme include any employee
(whether full-time or part-time, but excluding any Excluded
Employee as defined under the Inventive Share Scheme) of
any member of the Group, or any person who, in the sole
opinion of the remuneration committee of the Company,
will contribute or has contributed to any member of the
Group. The maximum number of the issuable Shares under
the specific mandate of Incentive Share shall not exceed
223,818,616 Shares, representing 5% of the number of
Shares in issue on the date of adoption of the Incentive
Share Scheme.
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GERZSEE (EER TN BTFREF
PHHB B ESEBEFH IR FL
WER(INATEENEHKEE BE
RERRS|IREEEF AT (iiFEE
BB Mm@ B TH m AR EEN mAS
GER REFCERERYBMNEEE
BER, R(VBIFEREST ~ [
RENBER %

ELHRBEBAERNRET  5ER
2 EZIERBERBIRMDTEEERERS
HEMAL aFEFAREBRRE AT
MERZBAEBRNES  BFREER
B st B R ENEMARIINAE
TNBEHNEETE2HRLBT TR I K
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AT o BB IR 45 R IRETE T o] 817K
MNERRZEAB1E223,818,6160% 7 14
HEBENRR Mt B BB T RN E R
BY5% o

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

' LEREERERAE S FRRBRHERAT 2024 £§R



Incentive Share Scheme (continued)

The Company issued 94,260,000 Shares in total under the
specific mandate. As at 31 December 2024, 129,558,616
outstanding Shares remain available to issue under the
specific mandate, representing approximately 2.83% of the
total issue share capital of the Company. The maximum
number of Shares that may be granted to the Eligible
Participant selected by the remuneration committee of
the Company to participate in the Inventive Share Scheme
(“Selected Employees”) must not exceed 0.5% of the
issued share capital of the Company at the date of the
grant. The length of the vesting period, vesting and other
conditions (such as the length of the lock-up period) that
must be satisfied for the exercise of the subscription right
will be determined by the remuneration committee of
the Company at its discretion, and may vary among the
Selected Employees depending on their position, length of
service with the Group and performance. No exercise period
for awarded shares was set. The Selected Employees can
exercise the share awards in anytime upon vesting. Save
for the subscription price, participants are not required to
pay any amount upon participation of the Incentive Share
Scheme. The subscription price represents the net asset
value per Share as set out in the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company in the last financial year
immediately preceding the grant date of the share awards.
Subject to an early termination of the Incentive Share
Scheme as determined by the Remuneration Committee,
the Incentive Share Scheme will be effective for a term
of 10 years commencing from the Adoption Date, until
16 November 2024. Details of the Incentive Share Scheme
of the Company is set out in Note 38(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Incentive Share Scheme (continued)

Details of the movement of the share awards granted
pursuant to the Incentive Share Scheme during the Year were

RS
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as follows:
Number of share awards Weighted
BUELEL] average
closing price
of the shares
immediately
before the
Exercisable Exercisable dates the
as at Vested Exercised Cancelled Lapsed asat  Subscription awards were
Name of 1 January during during during during 31 December  price upon  exercised or
grantee Date of grant 2024 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2024  grant (RMB) vested (HKD)
RIOREBER
RZgZmE RZE-mE EffEdRE
-A-H tIRAZ+-H EHRZOBE  ABAOmE
AREAS RHAH O FAEEE  EREAE  FREHE  FABRR A1 (AE%7) F9WHE (#5)
Directors
g3
Mr. Long Jing 1111212015 (batch 1) 480,000 - - - - 480,000 22 5.59
Bis 11122015 (F—H#)
2411212021 (batch 2) 3,600,000 1,200,000 - - - 4,800,000 3.58 9.48
240120021 (BZ#)
Mr. Cong Rinan 111212015 (batch 1) 200,000 - - - - 200,000 22 5.59
E{lyna 1111202015 ($—4)
2411212021 (batch 2) 1,200,000 400,000 - - - 1,600,000 358 9.49
241202021 (BZH)
Mr. Wang Daoming 2411272021 (batch 2) 300,000 100,000 - - - 400,000 3.58 6.86
TERRE 24120021 (EZH)
Other Eligible Participants
A ERSAE
employees 117122015 (batch 1) 430,000 - - - - 430,000 22 5.59
fe8 111202015 (E—H#)
2411212021 (batch 2) 23,880,000 7,960,000 - - - 31,840,000 3.58 9.50
241202021 (EZH)
Notes: B 5E
1. With respect to batch 1 of the share awards granted in 2015, a total 1. MIZ—hAERENE—H#HRH ﬁf’b ﬁ'ﬁ
of 1,110,000 shares were exercisable as at 31 December 2024. Such = ’E(‘ ZE_NME+ZBA=+—H &a#
shares, together with (i) 8,812,000 shares that were repurchased by 1,110,000 KB eI 1T - BRAR G > ER
the trustee upon exercise by the directors and employees before 31 (W Z—ZEZMFEF+ZB=+—HZAIEEK
December 2024; (i) 4,534,000 shares that were lapsed and retained BETFEEHZEALERS, 812,000
by the trustee prior to 1 January 2024 pursuant to the Incentive 7 RVBEZBERMAEN S ZMFE—
Share Scheme, represent the total outstanding incentive shares of B—HAIRM RBZFEARE 4,534,000

14,456,000 held by the trustee for the benefit of the Incentive Share
Scheme (batch 1).

The number of share awards and the shares are calculated on a 1:1
basis (i.e. 1 share award = 1 Shares).
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Internal Control

Directors are responsible for reviewing the internal control
and risk management system of the Company periodically to
ensure its effectiveness and efficiency. With the support of
the internal audit department, they will review the practices,
procedures, expenditure and internal control of the Company
and its subsidiaries on a regular basis. The management will
regularly monitor the concerns as reported by the internal
audit department to ensure appropriate remedial measures
have been implemented. The Board or senior management
can also request the internal audit group to review the
specific scope of concerns and report the significant findings
of such review to the Board and the audit committee.

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, as at 31 December
2024, none of the Directors or their respective associates
had engaged in or had any interest in any business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements and Contracts

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
subsisted in which a Director or an entity connected with
a Director was materially interested, whether directly
or indirectly, during or at the end of the year ended
31 December 2024.

Independence of Independent Non-
Executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save for the share options granted to the Directors, at
no time during the Year was the Company, or its holding
company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Management Contracts

No contracts in respect of the management or administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company and its subsidiaries were entered into or subsisted
during the Year.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Details of the continuing connected transactions of the
Group which required reporting and annual review in 2024
were as follows:

1. Supplemental Purchase Framework
Agreement

The Company and Weigao Holding entered into a
purchase framework agreement dated 5 December
2018 (as supplemented by supplemental agreements
dated 27 September 2019, 18 December 2019, 26
August 2020, 28 October 2020, 16 November 2021
and 23 August 2023) (the “Purchase Framework
Agreement”) in relation to the purchase of the medical
based products, including but not limited to, medical
equipment, medical raw materials, medical packaging
materials, pharmaceutical and medical devices by the
Group from Weigao Holding Group.
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Continuing Connected Transactions FEMERS ®

(continued)

1. Supplemental Purchase Framework 1. WHRRBIERTGE (B
Agreement (continued)
On 23 August 2023, the Company entered into a RIEZ=FN\BZ+=H &2
supplement framework agreement with Weigao B EE R AT AT ERG
Holding (the “2023 Supplemental Purchase Framework EZ((TE_=FHTHRBERD
Agreement”) to extend the agreement term for two &) O RBEAREEMFE SR
years to 31 December 2025 and propose new annual ThAFE+ZTA=+t—HUEZREE
caps of RMB1,500 million for each of the financial years —ECNMEREZRFTA
ending 31 December 2024 and 2025. =+ —HUEMBFESENHFE

LR #A AE®1,500,000,0007T ©

During the Year, the actual amount of transactions FR> ZEZ=ZFRAREERW
contemplated under the 2023 Supplemental Purchase ZEMTRETXRZNEREEN
Framework Agreement was approximately RMB892.0 # AR 1£892,000,0007t0 (ZE - =

million (2023: RMB1,201.8 million). F : AR¥1,201,800,0007T) °
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Supplemental Logistic Support Services
Framework Agreement

On 16 November 2021, the Company entered into
a logistic support services framework agreement
("Logistic Support Services Framework Agreement”)
with Shandong Weigao Medical Company Limited
(LREEBZEARAT) (the “Logistic Company”),
a subsidiary of Weigao Holding, for a term of two years
commencing from 1 January 2022. Under the Logistic
Support Services Framework Agreement, Weigao
Holding Group shall provide logistic support services
to the Group by delivering the Group’s products to its
customers (such as hospitals), collecting payment from
the customers on behalf of the Group and settling
the amount paid by the customers (net of the logistic
service fees charged by Weigao Holding Group) with
the Group on a back-to-back basis. Annual caps for
transactions contemplated under the Logistic Support
Services Framework Agreement in respect of the total
amount settled by the Logistic Company Group for the
Group’s sales to hospitals through Logistic Company
Group were RMB5,000 million and RMB6,000 million
for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023,
respectively. Annual caps in respect of the logistic
service fees charged by the Logistic Company were
RMB155.0 million and RMB186.0 million for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2023, respectively. The
Logistic Support Services Framework Agreement expired
on 31 December 2023.
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Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

Supplemental Logistic Support Services
Framework Agreement (continued)

On 30 August 2023, the Company entered into a
supplemental logistic support services framework
agreement with the Logistic Company (“Supplemental
Logistic Support Services Framework Agreement”) to
extend the agreement term of the Logistic Support
Services Framework Agreement for two years to 31
December 2025, proposed new annual caps in respect
of the total amount settled by Logistic Company
Group for Group’s sales to customers through Logistic
Company Group of RMB4,400 million and RMB5,200
million for the financial years ending 31 December
2024 and 2025 respectively and adjusted the pricing of
the logistic service fee to not more than 3%. Annual
caps for the logistic service fees charged by Logistic
Company are RMB132.0 million and RMB156.0 million
for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2025,
respectively.

During the Year, the total amount settled by the Logistic
Company Group for the Group’s sales to customers
through Logistic Company Group was RMB3,169 million
(2023: RMB3,542.5 million) with a logistic service fee of
RMB73.5 million (2023: RMB105.9 million).
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Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

3.

Supplemental Deposit Services Agreement

The Company entered into a deposit services agreement
dated 23 August 2017 with Weihai Lanhai Banking
Corporation (B /BEBRITRMNEMRAE) (“Lanhai
Bank”) (as amended by the supplemental agreement
dated 20 December 2019 and 16 November 2021)
("Deposit Services Agreement”), pursuant to which
Lanhai Bank agreed to provide deposit services to the
Group and the Group agrees to utilise such deposit
services. In accordance with the supplemental deposit
services agreement entered with between the Company
and Lanhai Bank dated 16 November 2021 ("2021
Supplemental Deposit Services Agreement”), the
annual cap for the maximum daily balance of deposits
(including the interests accrued thereon) for the year
ended 31 December 2023 was RMB300 million. The
2021 Supplemental Deposit Services Agreement expired
on 31 December 2023.

On 30 August 2023, the Company entered into
a supplemental deposit services agreement with
Lanhai Bank (“2023 Supplemental Deposit Services
Agreement”) to extend the agreement term for
two years to 31 December 2025. Pursuant to the
2023 Supplemental Deposit Services Agreement, the
proposed annual caps for the maximum daily balance of
deposits (including the interests accrued thereon) shall
not exceed RMB200.0 million for each of the financial
years ending 31 December 2024 and 2025.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the actual
maximum daily balance of deposits (including the
interests accrued thereon was approximately RMB102.5
million (2023: RMB80.7 million).
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Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

4.

Supplemental Finance Leasing and Factoring
Framework Agreement

The Group entered into an agreement dated
5 December 2018 (as supplemented by the
supplemental agreements dated 27 September
2019, 2 November 2020, 16 November 2021 and
30 August 2023) with Weigao Holding, pursuant to
which the Group agreed to provide finance leasing
and recourse and non-recourse factoring and other
commercial factoring services to Weigao Holding
Group. In accordance with the supplemental finance
leasing and factoring framework agreement dated 30
August 2023 (“2023 Supplemental Finance Leasing
and Factoring Framework Agreement”), the annual
cap for transactions contemplated under the 2023
Supplemental Finance Leasing and Factoring Framework
Agreement for each of the financial years ending 31
December 2024 and 2025 were RMB600.0 million.

During the Year, the actual aggregate value of finance
leasing and factoring amount was RMB353.8 million
(2023: RMB130.6 million).
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Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

5.

Supplemental Sales Framework Agreement

The Company entered into an agreement dated
5 December 2018 (as supplemented by the
supplemental agreements dated 18 December 2019,
2 November 2020, 16 November 2021 and 30 August
2023) ("Sales Framework Agreement”), pursuant
to which the Company agrees to sell or procure its
subsidiaries to sell, and Weigao Holding agrees to
purchase or procure its subsidiaries or associates to
purchase products including but not limited to, medical
devices, carton box and moulding. In accordance with
the supplemental sales framework agreement dated 30
August 2023 (“2023 Supplemental Sales Framework
Agreement”), the annual cap for transactions
contemplated under the 2023 Supplemental Sales
Framework Agreement for each of the financial years
ending 31 December 2024 and 2025 was RMB600.00
million.

During the Year, the actual amount of transaction
contemplated under the 2023 Supplemental Sales
Framework Agreement was RMB434.0 million (2023:
RMB452.2 million).
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Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

6.

Supplemental Services Framework Agreement

The Company entered into an agreement dated
5 December 2018 (as supplemented by the
supplemental agreements dated 2 November 2020 and
16 November 2021) (“Services Framework Agreement”)
with Weigao Holding, pursuant to which in relation
to the provision of services by Weigao Holding Group
to the Group; the Company agrees to purchase or
procure its subsidiaries to purchase, and Weigao
Holding agrees to provide or procure its subsidiaries
or associates to provide services including but not
limited to, transportation, dormitory, premises, security,
catering services and hotel services. In accordance
with the supplemental services framework agreement
dated 16 November 2021 (“2021 Supplemental
Services Framework Agreement”), the annual cap
for transactions contemplated under the 2021
Supplemental Services Framework Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2023 was RMB50.0 million.
The 2021 Supplemental Services Agreement expired on
31 December 2023.

On 30 August 2023, the Company entered into
the supplemental services framework agreement
with Weigao Holding (“2023 Supplemental Services
Framework Agreement”) to extend the agreement term
for two years to 31 December 2025; and propose new
annual caps of RMB65.0 million for each of the financial
years ending 31 December 2024 and 2025, respectively.

During the Year, The actual transaction amounts for
the services provided by Weigao Holding Group to the
Group contemplated under the Services Framework
Agreement was RMB64.5 million (2023: RMB48.9
million).
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Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

7.

Supplemental Tenancy Framework Agreement

The Company entered into an agreement dated
5 December 2018 (as supplemented by the
supplemental agreements dated 2 November 2020
and 16 November 2021) (“Tenancy Framework
Agreement”) with Weigao Holding, pursuant to
which the Group agrees to lease its premises located
at industrial zone at Chucun Town, Weihai, Shandong
Province, the PRC and sublease its leased premises in
various sales market areas to Weigao Holding Group
and receive rentals therefrom. In accordance with
the supplemental tenancy framework agreement
dated 16 November 2021 (“2021 Supplemental
Tenancy Framework Agreement”), the annual cap
for transactions contemplated under the 2021
Supplemental Tenancy Framework Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2023 was RMB25.0 million.
The 2021 Supplemental Tenancy Framework Agreement
expired on 31 December 2023.

On 30 August 2023, the Company entered into
the supplemental tenancy framework agreement
with Weigao Holding (2023 Supplemental Tenancy
Framework Agreement”) to extend the agreement term
for two years to 31 December 2025; and propose new
annual caps of RMB38.0 million for each of the financial
years ending 31 December 2024 and 2025, respectively.

During the Year, the actual transaction amounts for
the rental received by the Group from Weigao Holding
Group contemplated under the Tenancy Framework
Agreement was RMB12.0 million (2023: RMB11.4
million).
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Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

Supplemental Services Provision Framework
Agreement

The Company entered into a services provision
framework agreement dated 16 November 2021
("Services Provision Framework Agreement”) with
Weigao Holding, pursuant to which the Company
agrees to provide or procure its subsidiaries to provide,
and Weigao Holding agrees to purchase or procure its
subsidiaries or associates to purchase medical related
services including but not limited to, sterilization,
examination, radiation validation, market management
and maintenance services for a term of two years. In
accordance with the supplemental services provision
framework agreement dated 16 November 2021
("2021 Supplemental Services Provision Framework
Agreement”), the annual cap for the transactions
contemplated under the 2021 Supplemental Services
Provision Framework Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2023 was RMB40.0 million. The 2021
Supplemental Services Provision Framework Agreement
expired on 31 December 2023.

On 30 August 2023, the Company entered into the
supplemental services provision framework agreement
with Weigao Holding (“2023 Supplemental Services
Provision Framework Agreement”) to extend the
agreement term for two years to 31 December 2025;
and propose new annual caps of RMB60.0 million and
RMB65.0 million for each of the financial years ending
31 December 2024 and 2025, respectively.

During the Year, the actual transaction amounts for the
for the medical related services provided by the Group
to Weigao Holding contemplated under the Services
Provision Framework Agreement was RMB13.6 million
(2023: RMB15.9 million).
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Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
transactions had been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s
business;

(i)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) in accordance with the terms of the respective
agreements governing such transactions that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, the auditor of the Company, have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and provided a
letter to the Board, confirming that nothing has come to
their attention that causes them to believe the continuing
connected transactions abovementioned:

(i)  have not been approved by the Board;

(ii) are not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group if the transactions involve
provision of goods and services by the Group;

(iii) have not been entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions; and

(iv) have exceeded the annual caps as disclosed in previous
announcements.
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Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with
the requirements set out under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules for the abovementioned connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions. Save as disclosed above,
other related parties transactions disclosed in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statement do not fall under connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”), whereby the shareholders of the Company are
entitled to the dividends declared by the Company. The
payment and any amount of dividends shall be formulated
at the discretion of the Board. Any dividend distribution
is subject to the approval by the general meeting of the
Company. Pursuant to the PRC Company Law and the
Articles of Association of the Company, all shareholders
of the Company shall be equally entitled to dividends and
distribution. Dividends paid to holders of Domestic Shares,
if any, shall be calculated and declared and payable in
Renminbi. Cash dividends paid to holders of H Shares, if any,
shall be calculated and declared in Renminbi and payable in
Hong Kong Dollars.

Corporate Governance

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
contained in this annual report.
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Change of Board Composition and Senior
Management

Mr. Wang Daoming was appointed as an executive director
of the Company with effect from 28 May 2024.

Mrs. Yan Xia was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company with effect from 28 May 2024.

Mr. Sun Heng was appointed as an independent non-
executive director and a member of each of the audit
committee, remuneration committee, nomination committee
and corporate governance committee of the Company, with
effect from 28 May 2024.

Save as disclosed above, there is no change of information
on directors and supervisors of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2024 pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the
Listing Rules.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

For the year ended 31 December 2024, so far as the
Company is aware, the Company has complied with relevant
laws and regulations that have material effect on the
Company in all material aspects. The Company’s compliance
with relevant environmental protection laws and regulations
are provided in the 2024 Environmental, Social, and
Governance Report separately issued by the company.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules as the standard
for securities transactions by Directors. The Company had
made specific enquiry of all Directors whether they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 31 December 2024 and all
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its Directors,
the Company has maintained sufficient public float as
required under the Listing Rules throughout the year ended
31 December 2024 and up to the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this annual report.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify the Directors of the Group and the persons
who served as the Directors of the Group in 2024 for their
liabilities arising out of corporate activities.

Auditors

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2024 have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, which
retires and, being eligible, offers itself for re-appointment at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
A resolution to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
auditors of the Company and to authorise the Board to fix its
remuneration will be proposed at 2025 AGM.

On behalf of the Board
LONG Jing
Chairman

Weihai, Shandong, the PRC
26 March 2025
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERERS

The Board is committed to high standards of corporate
governance and recognises that good governance is vital
for the long-term success and sustainability of the Group’s
businesses. The Company has adopted the code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
contained in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules. For the year
ended 31 December 2024, the Company has complied
with all the code provisions as set out in the Code. The
Company's key corporate governance practices and activities
during the year ended 31 December 2024 are highlighted in
this report.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules as the standard
for securities transactions by Directors. The Company had
made specific enquiry of all Directors whether they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 31 December 2024 and all
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code during the year ended 31 December 2024.

Board of Directors

The Board takes responsibility to oversee all major matters
of the Company, including the formulation and approval
of overall business strategies, internal control and risk
management systems, and monitoring the performance of
the senior management. The management is responsible for
the daily operations of the Group under the leadership of the
Chief Executive Officer. The Directors have the responsibility
to act objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business and regularly reviews the contribution
required from a Director to perform his/her responsibilities to
the Company and whether the Director is spending sufficient
time in performing them that are commensurate with their
role and the Board responsibilities. The Board includes
a balanced composition of executive directors and non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) so that there is a strong independent element
on the Board, which can effectively exercise independent
judgement.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board of Directors (continued)

The Board currently comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. LONG lJing (Chairman)

Mr. CONG Rinan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LU Jungiang

Mr. WANG Daoming

Non-executive Directors

Mr. TANG Zhengpeng (Vice Chairman)
Mr. CHEN Lin
Mrs. YAN Xia

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LI Guohui
Mrs. MENG Hong
Mr. LI Qiang

Mr. SUN Heng

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed "Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” on
page 30 to 38 of this report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of chairman and chief executive officer are
held by Mr. Long Jing and Mr. Cong Rinan respectively. The
Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the
effective functioning and leadership of the Board as well
as provides overall guidance on the business, strategy and
corporate development of the Group. The Chief Executive
Officer focuses on the overall management of the business,
strategy and corporate development of the Group.

The Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer and other
Directors do not have any financial, business, family, material
or other relevant relationships with each other.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Board currently comprises four independent non-
executive Directors. The Company has received written
annual confirmation from each of the independent non-
executive Directors in respect of his/her independence in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Induction and Development

Upon appointment to the Board, Directors are provided
with comprehensive induction training conducted by
senior executives and/or external legal advisers to ensure
that they have a thorough understanding of the Group’s
operations and governance policies, as well as their role and
responsibilities as Board members.

Ongoing training helps Directors keep abreast of current
trends and issues facing the Group, while enabling them to
update and refresh the skills and knowledge necessary for
the performance of their duties. The Directors are regularly
briefed on the amendments to or updates on the relevant
laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the Company has
been encouraging the Directors and senior executives to
enroll in a wide range of professional development courses
or and seminars relating to the Listing Rules, companies
ordinance or act and corporate governance practices
organised by professional bodies and independent auditors
so that they can continuously update and further improve
their relevant knowledge and skills. From time to time,
Directors are provided with written materials to develop and
refresh their professional skills. The company secretary also
organises and arranges seminars on the latest development
of applicable laws, rules and regulations for the Directors to
assist them in discharging their duties.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEELRS

Board of Directors (continued) BEET @

Induction and Development (continued) AREIENRER (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024, all directors have #HZEZEZZZ_MNHFE+-A=+—HIEF
participated in continuous professional development by E'2REZHERAHFHEZHEX
attending seminars and/or studying materials to director's EEEBZHNER IHEERUZR
duties and responsibility and provided a record of training EIFEREXLE > WEHEAQATIRMEE
they received to the Company. Pz 5l 2 508k o

Corporate Governance/Updates on
Laws, Rules and Regulations
EEERHRER BB RRG 2 EHR

Read materials Attend workshops

RIE M HEHRSE

Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Long Jing (Chairman) RREE (2F) 4 v/
Mr. Cong Rinan =AMEEE 4 4
Mr. Lu Jungiang BEHRiE 4 v/
Mr. Wang Daoming FTERALE (RZ2ZTNF 4 4

(appointed on 28 May 2024) EAZ+N\BEZM)
Non-executive Directors ERITER
Mr. Tang Zhengpeng (Vice Chairman) & IERBSCE (5] Z /%) 4 4
Mr. Chen Lin BRI A 4 4
Mrs. Yan Xia REZT (RZZ2ZMF 4 4

(appointed on 28 May 2024) EAZ+N\BEZM)
Independent Non-executive BiFRITESR

Directors
Mr. Li Guohui FEERE 4 4
Mrs. Meng Hong RALT v v
Mr. Li Qiang FREE 4 v/
Mr. Sun Heng BEXRE (R ZWE 4 4

(appointed on 28 May 2024) LAZ+N\BEZME)
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Board of Directors (continued)

Board Meetings

Regular Board meetings were held two times during
this year to review and approve financial and operating
performance, interim and annual results. Ad-hoc meetings
will also be convened if necessary to discuss the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance
of the Group. Notice of board meeting will be sent to all
Directors at least 14 days prior to a regular board meeting.
Reasonable notice will be given to Directors for ad-hoc
board meetings. Directors may participate either in person or
through electronic means of communications. The Company
will adopt the practice to provide relevant materials to all
the Directors relating to the matters brought before the
meetings. All the Directors will be provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties, and, upon reasonable
requests, the Directors will be able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses. All Directors will have the opportunity
to include matters in the agenda for Board meetings.

During the year, two board meetings were held. The
attendance of each Director is set out below:

FRCEAABDBRITWMRESTEENE
FoOUBRRMEMBREEER T
HAhFEXEE - BERTECMAERS
FoOUBNBERBURESERNESE
MUBRFE - 2RESFNETERE
FEEHEIRVTOREXETES TR
BE o MEREFggxESNGHE
RENKEFTEF - EFZRHRFABEB
BEFEMANHEFE - ARATRAKEHH
FFEEERMHELSRFENBEEE
H-2REEFREREINERUETT
HBS TTEAENERT EF9IRN
BEBRATEXBIEERSR EAMHA
KRB AE - 2REFHARENES

TEEEENMARE-

RAEFE BEFGHARAMRGHE S
EFHNHERBROT

Attendance
Name of Directors ERa SR
Executive Directors WITES
Mr. Long Jing (Chairman) B EE (£/%) 2/2
Mr. Cong Rinan =BmEE 2/2
Mr. Lu Jungiang Bt 2/2
Mr. Wang Daoming FERLEE (W2 TOF
(appointed on 28 May 2024) FEZ+N\HEZMH) 1/1
Non-executive Directors JERITES
Mr. Tang Zhengpeng (Vice Chairman) =IERS AL (B F/E) 2/2
Mr. Chen Lin PRARSE 4 2/2
Mrs. Yan Xia (appointed on 28 May 2024) MEBRZT (R HFE
ERZ+NHEZMD) 11
Independent Non-executive Directors HiIJFHITESR
Mr. Li Guohui FEESLE 2/2
Mrs. Meng Hong mALZ 2/2
Mr. Li Qiang FoRETE 2/2

Mr. Sun Heng (appointed on 28 May 2024)

BRIESEE R ZEZMF
EAZ+N\HEZD
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board of Directors (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee on
12 August 2005 in accordance with the requirement of the
Code. The remuneration committee currently comprises four
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Guohui
(chairman of remuneration committee), Mrs. Meng Hong,
Mr. Li Qiang, Mr. Sun Heng and one non-executive Director,
namely Mr. Tang Zhengpeng.

The remuneration committee has reviewed the remuneration
policy, the performance and the remuneration of executive
Directors and members of senior management, the existing
terms of service contracts of the executive Directors. The
objective of the remuneration policy is to ensure that the
Company is able to attract, retain and motivate high-caliber
staff, which is vital to the success of the Company.

In reviewing and determining the remuneration packages of
the executive Directors and members of senior management,
the remuneration committee considers their responsibilities,
skills, expertise and contribution to the Group's performance
and whether remuneration packages are competitive and
sufficient to ensure that the Group is able to attract and
retain the best available executive talent.

Remuneration of Directors is subject to annual assessment
and recommendation by the remuneration committee to the
Board for further review and approval, which is subsequently
subject to shareholders’ approval at annual general meeting.
The primary goal of the remuneration policy on executive
Directors’ remuneration packages is to enable the Company
to retain and motivate executive Directors by linking their
compensation with performance as measured against
corporate objectives. Under the policy, a Director is not
allowed to approve his own remuneration.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERERS

Board of Directors (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

During the Year, the remuneration committee has
convened one meeting to review the remuneration
package of directors, supervisors and senior management
of the Company for the Year. The chairman of The
remuneration committee reports the findings and provides
recommendations to the Board after each meeting. The
attendance of each remuneration committee member is set

BEET @

wMZEE (B

E\ZIKfEF FMEZEgHER—Rg
FUBH AR EFEEEF BEER
*?&EIE)\;ii‘ﬁ%E%O%ﬁﬁiﬂéégi
FREREZERNEZTZERS RS
ROTMRERMHBEZ -FNEEEZHEN
HEBRINTE

out below:
Attendance

Member of Remuneration Committee #MZEZSERE HEER
Non-executive Director EBITES
Mr. Tang Zhengpeng wIEMS T 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors JEHIIJEHITESE
Mr. Li Guohui (Chairman) TEELE (F/F) 11
Mrs. Meng Hong DAL 1/1
Mr. Li Qiang Fogsdt 1/1
Mr. Sun Heng (appointed on 28 May 2024) BIELEE (W2 MF

AEZ+/N\BHEZME 0/0
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board of Directors (continued)

Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee on 21
May 2012 in accordance with the requirement of the Code.
The nomination committee comprises four independent non-
executive Director, namely Mr. Li Guohui (chairman of the
nomination committee), Mrs. Meng Hong, Mr. Li Qiang,
Mr. Sun Heng and one non-executive Director, namely Mr.
Tang Zhengpeng. The terms of reference of the nomination
committee are of no less exacting terms than those set out in
the Code. The principal duties of the nomination committee
include:

(@) to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company's corporate strategy.

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

(c) to assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors; and

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive.

In assessing the Board composition, the nomination
committee would take into account various aspects as
well as factors concerning Board diversity as set out in the
Company’s Board Diversity Policy. The nomination committee
would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and
recommend them to the Board for adoption.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for
directorships, the nomination committee would consider
the candidate’s relevant criteria that are necessary to
complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board
diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation
to the Board.

During the Year, the nomination committee has convened
one meeting to review the structure, size and composition
of the Board, to consider the qualifications of the retiring
directors standing for election at the 2024 annual general
meeting and candidate who was proposed to be appointed
and re-elected as the Director. Attendance of each
nomination committee member is set out below:

BEET @

RBZEE (B

EMERBECENESREEARIZ
HEEGRERBEREAMEBZRE M
EREHNBRLARBREFREFES
TIEMENBYLE  REEBRBERT
MEFTIRHEZH
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REANER - RHEZEEEEHNENT
EIERT

Attendance

Member of Nomination Committee RBAZEEWE HEBR
Non-executive Director ERITES
Mr. Tang Zhengpeng  IEBE S 4 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors JEHIIJEHITESE
Mr. Li Guohui (Chairman) TENELE (F/E) 171
Mrs. Meng Hong DAL 1/1
Mr. Li Qiang Fagsdt 1/1
Mr. Sun Heng (appointed on 28 May 2024) BESE (W2 ZWHF

ERZ+N\BHEZT) 0/0
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board of Directors (continued)

Corporate Governance Committee

The Company established a corporate governance committee
on 30 May 2013. The corporate governance committee

comprises Mr.
governance committee),

Long Jing (chairman of the corporate
Mr. Li Guohui, Mrs. Meng Hong,

Mr. Li Qiang and Mr. Sun Heng.

The principal duties include:

(a)

to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and
environmental, social and governance (ESG) and making
recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the directors and the
senior management;

to review and monitor the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to the
Directors and the employees of the Group;

to review the Company’s compliance with Appendix C1
and Appendix C2 of the Listing Rules and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report and ESG Report as
required under the Listing Rules;

to review and monitor whether the Company is
operated and managed for the benefit of all its
shareholders;
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Board of Directors (continued)

Corporate Governance Committee (continued)

(9)

to discuss and respond to the impacts that the
Company's operation could pose to the economy,
environment, society, and stakeholders, especially
material ESG topics that the management of the
Company and stakeholders prioritise;

to review and monitor ESG-related risks and
opportunities that may pose significant impacts to
the Company, reporting to the Board and making
recommendations for annual ESG strategic targets;

to review and monitor the implementation and
improvement of ESG issues and ensuring the
management and decision-making mechanisms on key
sustainability issues, including but not limited to privacy
and data security, access to finance, human capital
development and opportunities in clean technology, are
in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
international standards and stakeholder requirements;
and

to seek to ensure effective and on-going
communication between the Company and its
shareholders, particularly with regards to the Company’s
compliance with Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules.
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During the Year, the corporate governance committee has EAZKfEf’ TEERZEGHAR—R

convened one meeting. The attendance of each corporate TxERZEGEMENEHER
governance committee member is set out below: ‘}Eﬁ@JﬂD—F :

Member of Attendance
Corporate Governance Committee Tt¥EREEENRE HEE R
Executive Director BMITES

Mr. Long Jing (Chairman) B EE (£/%) 171
Independent Non-executive Directors EHIIJFHITESR

Mr. Li Guohui FEE S 11
Mrs. Meng Hong mALZ 1/1
Mr. Li Qiang FogTE 1/1
Mr. Sun Heng BIESLE 0/0
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Board of Directors (continued)

Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee on 15 March
2012. Currently, the audit committee comprises four
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Guohui
(chairman of the audit committee), Mrs. Meng Hong, Mr. Li
Qiang and Mr. Sun Heng and one non-executive Director,
namely Mr. Tang Zhengpeng. The terms of reference of the
audit committee are of no less exacting terms than those set
out in the Code. The principal responsibilities of the audit
committee includes:

(a)

To be primarily responsible for making recommendations
to the Board regarding the appointment, reappointment
and removal of external auditors; to formulate the
remuneration and terms of engagement of external
auditors and to propose the Board to submit the same
at the general meeting for consideration. To approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditors when the general meeting is authorizing the
Board to determine the remuneration of the auditors,
and to address any questions regarding the resignation
or retirement of that auditor.

To review and oversee the independence and objectivity
of engaging external auditors and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards. The Committee shall discuss with the
auditors regarding the nature and scope of the
audit and the relevant reporting obligations before
commencing the audit.

To develop and implement policy in engaging external
auditors to provide non-auditing services. For the
purpose of this requirement, external auditors includes
any entity that is under common control, ownership
or management with that audit firm or any entity that
a reasonable and informed third party knowing all
relevant information would reasonably conclude to be
part of the audit firm domestically or internationally.
The Committee shall report to the Board, in respect
of any matters in which it considers that an action or
improvement is needed and to make recommendations
as to the steps to be taken.
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Board of Directors (continued) EEET®

Audit Committee (continued) BZEEE (B

(d) To monitor the completeness of the financial statements  (d) BERANATMNMHBRR KA ATE
of the Company and the annual report and accounts EREMEERYFERETNTE
and half-year report of the Company and to review the Mo G B E R PT A A B 7S B AR
significant opinion of the respective financial reporting NEARR - TEFHEH ZEGHE
contained therein. In this regard, the committee will BMEETRIXBHEALAQABDFERS
review the relevant statements and reports of the REEBRYFERESAIERBHR
respective annual report and accounts and half-year KRS o
report of the Company before submitting the same to
the Board.

(e) To oversee the financial reporting system and internal  (e) BB ZAA T FEERIRAE K AL EE
control procedures of the Company. ZEREF-e

During the Year, the audit committee has convened three E@ZIKEf EnZEagHdR =g
meetings, at which, they have primarily discussed and > & LT ElmEBETRREEE
reviewed the interim and annual results and have discussed ia ML A E B NS BRI T T 5
and considered the internal control procedures of the Group. HEEZ - BREZEGSHENLEERS
The attendance of each audit committee member is set out P N

below:
Attendance

Member of Audit Committee BEZETRE HEBR
Non-executive Director ERITES
Mr. Tang Zhengpeng wmIEMS ST 3/3
Independent Non-executive Directors i JFHITESR
Mr. Li Guohui (Chairman) TEELRE (£/E) 3/3
Mrs. Meng Hong Eatigegun 3/3
Mr. Li Qiang Fogitt 2/3
Mr. Sun Heng (appointed on 28 May 2024) BRESE (R HE

AR+ NBEZD 2/2
Directors’ Liabilities Insurance EEREERE

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ liability #ZEZE_ZT_WNME+_B=+—HILHF
insurance coverage for the Directors during the year ended E > AATDCAZEEZHKBEBEENS
31 December 2024, which is still in force. EFEERE ZRBIOHETEER -
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Re-election of Directors

In accordance with the articles of association of the
Company, the term of office for all Directors (including
the non-executive Directors) is three years. In accordance
with provision B.2.2 of the Code, Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Diversity of Directors

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy with
respect to the composition of the Board. In assessing
candidates running for directorships, the Nomination
Committee will consider a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, educational background,
professional experience, technical expertise and the ability
to fulfill the requirements of the Board. At present, the
Nomination Committee considered that the Board is
sufficiently diverse and the Board has not set any measurable
objectives. The Nomination Committee reviews the Board
Diversity Policy annually to ensure its effectiveness. The
Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that may be
required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.

Gender Diversity

The Company values gender diversity across all levels of
the Group. As at 31 December 2024, the gender ratio in
the workforce (including the senior management of the
Company) of the Group comprised 59.4% male and 40.6%
female.

As at 31 December 2024, the Board has two female
members, out of a total of eleven members. The Group
believes that the gender ratio of the workforce is within the
reasonable range. The Group will review the effectiveness of
the measures and practices against the actual circumstances
of the Group and will adopt new policies when considered
necessary. In particular, it will continue to monitor the
gender ratio and will aim at achieving a greater gender
diversity in hiring all positions across the Group.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

An analysis of the remuneration paid/payable to the external
auditors of the Company in respect of audit services and
non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2024 is
set out below:

2 2L BT A <=

BE_Z_NF+_HB=+—HLEF
B RRBMIZBRB RIFZBRB 2
2/ e A T AN A B S BB A% BT Y B
ETAMUWME :

Fees Paid/

Payable

Service Category Bl 75 48 B gt &R
RMB'000

AR¥ET T

Audit services for the Group AAREEREZBIRT 8,440
Audit services for subsidiaries of the Group AERERZ B A B R EZEARTE 8,205
Non-audit services (Note) JEZEART (FYsh) 5,954

Note:

Non-audit services included due diligence services for the Group's potential
acquisition and tax advisory services.

Company Secretary

Mrs. Wong Miu Ling, Phillis was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company with effective from 26 May 2006.
All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary. During the year ended 31 December
2024, Mrs. Wong Miu Ling, Phillis has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training to update her skills
and knowledge.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibility for
the risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness, and such systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives. The Audit Committee assists the Board
in fulfilling its oversight and corporate governance roles in
relation to the Group’s financial, operational, compliance,
risk management and internal controls, and internal audit
functions. The Board has responsibility to ensure the Group
maintains sound and effective controls to safeguard its assets
and shareholders’ investment.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)

The Group has internal control systems to formalize the
risk management of the Group, to build up a standard
and effective risk management system to manage risk and
to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. Appropriate policies and
controls have been designed and established to ensure
the assets are safeguarded against improper use or
disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered to and
complied with, reliable financial and accounting records are
maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards
and regulatory reporting requirement and key risks that
may impact on the Group’s performance are appropriately
managed.

The Group has established an organizational structure with
defined levels of responsibility and reporting procedures.
The Company has retained an independent professional
firm as external advisor to assist the Company to perform
an assessment on risk management and internal control
mechanism of the Group. We have our own Internal Audit
Department to fulfil the requirement of internal audit
function. Together with the supports from the external
advisor, the internal audit function can facilitate the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors in ascertaining the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems on an annual and ongoing basis. During the
year ended 31 December 2024, the Group has conducted an
annual risk assessment which identified respective strategic
risks, operational risks, financial risks, and compliance risks
for each of the major business segment of the Group. Risk
factors were analyzed and consolidated at the Group level.
Based on the risk assessment results, following a risk-based
methodology audit approach, an annual internal audit
plan was devised which prioritized the risks identified into
annual audit projects. The Group's internal audit department
performed the annual reviews in accordance with the
audit plan with a view to assisting the Board and the Audit
Committee to evaluate the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)

The Group strictly regulates the handling and dissemination
of inside information as set out in information disclosure
policy to ensure potential inside information remains
confidential until such information is appropriately approved
and the dissemination of such information is efficiently and
consistently made.

Based on the risk management and internal control systems
established and maintained by the Group, the work
performed by the internal audit department, the Audit
Committee and the Board are of the view that the Group
has maintained adequate and effective risk management and
internal control system during the year ended 31 December
2024.

Directors’ Responsibilities In Respect of
the Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2024.

The Directors have prepared the financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Appropriate accounting policies have also been
used and applied consistently except the adoption of revised
standards, amendments to standards and interpretation.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 89 to 94 of this annual report.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to the provisions of the Articles, the specific rights
of shareholders of the Company in the following three
aspects are as follows:

Convening Extraordinary General
Meetings

When two or more shareholders collectively holding ten
percent or more of the issued and outstanding voting
shares of the Company request in writing to convene an
extraordinary general meeting, the Board shall convene an
extraordinary general meeting as soon as practicable and
include the proposals put forward by the requestor in the
agenda of the meeting.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals
at General Meetings

Where a general meeting is being convened by the
Company, shareholders individually or collectively holding
three percent or more of the total voting shares of the
Company shall be entitled to put forward and submit interim
proposals in writing ten days before the date of the general
meeting to the convener of the general meeting, who shall
issue a supplementary notice of the general meeting within
two days after receipt of the same to all other shareholders
and include matters in the proposals that fall within the
scope of duties of the general meeting in the meeting
agenda for consideration by the general meeting.

Proposals for a general meeting shall satisfy the following
conditions: (1) the contents of the proposals shall not
contravene the provisions of laws and regulations and shall
fall within the scope of business and the duties of the
general meeting of the Company; (2) the proposals shall
have clear topics for discussion and specific matters to be
resolved upon; and (3) the proposals shall be submitted or
delivered to the Board in writing.

Such proposals and the written requisitions from the
aforesaid requestors calling for the convening of an
extraordinary general meeting may be delivered to the
Board or company secretary of the Company by hand, mail
or courier at the following address: 29/F., Two Chinachem
Central, 26 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.
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Procedures for Making Enquiries to the
Board and Information Available Thereon

Shareholders of the Company may obtain such relevant
information as stipulated in the articles of association of the
Company after payment of fees at cost in accordance with
the provisions therein, and may raise their concerns with or
make enquiries about the aforesaid information to the Board
via the email address, postal address and telephone numbers
posted on the Company’s website.

If shareholders have any enquiries in respect of their
shareholdings and entitlements to dividends, they may
contact Tricor Investors Services Limited, the Company's H
share registrar, from time to time.

Communication with Shareholders and
Investors

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-
going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings and other general meetings.
At the general meetings, directors (or their delegates as
appropriate) are available to meet shareholders and answer
their enquiries.
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Communication with Shareholders and Bl RIREENEBE @
Investors (continued)

During the year, two general meetings were held. The WRAXAEE > REAFHEABEMAGHE-

attendance of each Directors is set out below: BREEHFEERAOT
Attendance
Name of Directors EENs HEER
Executive Directors BMITES
Mr. Long Jing (Chairman) R EE (£/F) 2/2
Mr. Cong Rinan =BmEE 2/2
Mr. Lu Jungiang ESak: P 2/2
Mr. Wang Daoming FERLEE (W2 TEF
(appointed on 28 May 2024) EEZ+N\HEZMHF) 1/1
Non-executive Directors JEMITESE
Mr. Tang Zhengpeng (Vice Chairman) wIERS A E (B F/E) 2/2
Mr. Chen Lin BeR M 5t 2 2/2
Mrs. Yan Xia (appointed on 28 May 2024) MEXZLT (W2 MmHF
ERZ+NBHEZMF) 11
Independent Non-executive Directors JHIIJEHITESE
Mr. Li Guohui TEESLE 2/2
Mrs. Meng Hong DAL 2/2
Mr. Li Qiang Fegd 2/2
Mr. Sun Heng (appointed on 28 May 2024) BIELRE (W2 MF
ERZ+NBEZMD) 11

The independent non-executive Directors and non-executive B FHTEERIFRNTESZELE
Directors have attended general meetings of the Company ZAATREAZG ' UEETHRIRENE
to gain and develop a balanced understanding of the view of VA o

the Shareholders.

The Company maintains a website at www.weigaogroup.com 74~ A & % AT | 2
as a communication platform with shareholders of the = www.weigaogroup.com’ {E% B 74/ 5
Company and investors, where the financial information and BEEAEEENEE TS KATKEH
other relevant information of the Company are available for — #5 & Kl & H fth #8 B8 & & 7 & 72 22 48 15
public access. Ao B HARER -
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Communication with Shareholders and
Investors (continued)

The Company actively responds to enquiries raised by the
shareholders and investors through emails and phone calls.
The Company collects and analyzes, in a timely manner, the
respective opinions and recommendations on the operations
of the Company given by securities analysts and investors
and compiling them into reports periodically, and selectively
adopting them in the operations of the Company. During
the Year, the Company had arranged company meetings,
telephone conferences, investors meetings, site visits,
held a number of non-deal road shows and organized
briefings, press conferences and one-on-one interviews with
investment institutions.

Constitution Documents

During the Year, the Company proposed to amend its articles
of association which has been approved by the shareholders
of the Company by a special resolution at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 28 May 2024. An up-to-
date version of the articles of association of the Company
was published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER
COMPANY LIMITED
LWRESEEBAS Y FRaRBERARE

(A joint stock limited company established in the People's
Republic of China)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 95 to 260, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

REEZER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional RIS BZEEAEENFEHE D =B
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the IZABGREMERRTIREENEE-
consolidated financial statements of the current period. ZA{TNBRERGESHBRERLIMILE
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit MERNEBILEEE MAZHMILESE
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and FIEBEZEXRER-

in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

MBEZER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REMBERERZAE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

8 R T

We identified impairment assessment of
the goodwill of interventional products
cash-generating unit with amount of
RMB3,345,486,000 including Argon Medical
Devices Holding, Inc. (“Argon”), as a key
audit matter due to its significance to the
consolidated financial statements and the
significant management estimate involved in
assessing the impairment of goodwill.
EEERINAERREELEAZHEHE (£
RE 2 N #63,345,486,0007T) iR BT (B
BIRBEBMIZRERLE ((EIR))) 1FARH
BEZFR DHRERNGEHHRERES
BEATERFLHERERIREANEE
B 15t e

In estimating the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated, the management has made a
number of significant assumptions in the value
in use calculation. The key assumptions mainly
include discount rate and growth rate applied.
REstEEBEDENRSELEMAZ A B
T EEENERAEEFERERETE
AERH - -FARBREIEZCEMMEANRREEN

R

Details of goodwill and the corresponding
key estimation uncertainty on its impairment
assessment are disclosed in Notes 5 and 18 to
the consolidated financial statements.
BENGTNEERERBARMGS AEE S
HBER G EMBPRRM TS R18FIE

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of the goodwill of interventional products
cash-generating unit from acquisition of Argon
included:
EENMBBERINAERRCELEAU2BHERE
SHENEZEFEE

e Understanding the internal controls relevant to the
impairment assessment of goodwill;

o THRABRBRENLARZAIBIES

e  Evaluating the valuation methodology and long-
term growth rate with the assistance of our
internal valuation specialists;

s TALEBEERNHE Pl bbER ERERIG
BX;

e Evaluating the discount rate, including developing
a range of independent estimates and comparing
those with the discount rate selected by the
management, with the assistance of our internal
valuation specialists; and

e HAERMAEBMEEBZERNHE THGERERER GF
HE—RINBEUIGE TR EEAEEEEZENR
WEER ; &

e  Evaluating the growth rate by comparing with
historical performance and industry data.

. EBEAERRRTEMBLETEEER.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within
the group as a basis for forming an opinion on the
group financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and review of the audit work
performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BINZHENRE =

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safequards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor's report is Lam Kam Chiu.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
March 26, 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
m ;e Bt 2 m U AR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 éﬁz:t_v “ME+ZA=+—HLFE

|:1

\\/ N

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
NOTES RMB'000 RMB'000
8= HE
—FEIME 2=
+=A +_A
=+—H =+—H
IEFE IEFE
B 5% ARBFTRT ARETT
Revenue WA 6 13,087,071 13,229,453
Cost of sales EI=R=0 ) Wi (6,506,440) (6,586,420)
Gross profit EF] 6,580,631 6,643,033
Other income, gains and losses HAUW A~ Wz K518 7 410,757 352,682
Impairment losses under expected TEHREEEERET 2
credit loss model, net of reversal BB IR (BR#EE]) 8 (8,813) (5,343)
Selling expenses HERR (2,335,184) (2,582,237)
Administrative expenses THERX (1,293,603) (1,249,983)
Research and development expenses 3R (625,233) (592,850)
Finance costs AL E R A 9 (249,572) (272,971)
Share of results of associates FEEEENT 113,015 86,079
Share of results of joint ventures ﬁ%fﬁé%ﬂé%% f (38,250) (9,223)
Profit before tax PRI AT & A 2,553,748 2,369,187
Income tax expense FTiEMF 2 10 (391,032) (307,585)
Profit for the year FERRH] 11 2,162,716 2,061,602
Other comprehensive income Hh 2 mUl A
Item that may be reclassified HEOEM 7 EEEm
subsequently to profit or loss: ZHEE
Exchange differences arising on MBBIINEFEE
translation of foreign operations PE 2 = %8 101,996 58,182
Total comprehensive income FREEUALLZE
for the year 2,264,712 2,119,784




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROHT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

I\T:'

m R EMEEWAZRE

For the yearended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_MNHF+_A=+—HIFE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
NOTE RMB'000 RMB'000
5 aBHE
—E-MEF _=E =
+=A +—A
=+—H =+—H
IEFE IFFE
B 5 ARBFTRT ARETT
Profit for the year attributable to: THRIBEELFEANGF
Owners of the Company ZiN/NETEZZ =N 2,066,668 2,001,906
Non-controlling interests JEERER 96,048 59,696
2,162,716 2,061,602
Total comprehensive income for the —F@JRIEFEEEEW%E
year attributable to: N E-E
Owners of the Company PN/ T%ﬁ)\ 2,163,594 2,051,260
Non-controlling interests IR 101,118 68,524
2,264,712 2,119,784
Earnings per share srR&ER 14
Basic (RMB per share) HEK (SKRAR®ET 0.46 0.44
Diluted (RMB per share) g (BR AR 0.45 0.44
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e IR

At 31 December 2024 B ZZE-MFE+_B=+—H

31/12/2024 31/12/2023
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB’000
—EmE — T "=
+=A _tT=E
. =+TH =i-&
B 5E ARBTR ARBTT
Non-current assets EREBMBE
Property, plant and equipment L EN Nk 15 6,533,346 6,512,423
Right-of-use assets FCREEE 16 550,771 494,308
Investment properties "EM= 17 122,023 135,611
Goodwill B 18 3,830,629 3,727,790
Deposits paid for acquiring property, FtUREEYIE B = K&
plant and equipment mEZENEE 258,356 328,302
Other intangible assets HittmEEE 19 1,304,780 1,507,337
Interests in associates RS AT Em 20 1,604,557 1,461,381
Interests in joint ventures RestErEn 21 311,068 349,318
Financial assets at fair value through A FE5t AEm
profit or loss TR EMEE 22 72,987 86,910
Deferred tax assets EIETRIAE B 23 248,543 207,102
Finance lease receivables FEULRE & 7H BRI 24 12,970 15,302
Loan receivables W E = 25 413,391 147,191
Prepayments TERIE 27 53,888 62,965
15,317,309 15,035,940
Current assets MEEE
Inventories =58 26 2,528,425 2,495,352
Loan receivables FEU &R 25 314,427 642,476
Trade and other receivables & UK B8 53 BR R R H At
PR R IR 27 7,832,235 7,365,212
Financial assets at fair value through 3 AF{Est AET
profit or loss SEZEMEE 22 230,701 371
Debt instruments at fair value BN TGS A Hfth
through other comprehensive 2 e
income HW@mstEZ
BHIA 28 310,797 344,211
Finance lease receivables FE W R E TH BRI 24 50,556 42,963
Pledged/restricted bank deposits TR SR ERT
T 29 395,089 754,975
Cash and bank balances B4 KIRTER 30 7,780,310 6,988,731
19,442,540 18,634,291
Current liabilities mEEaE
Trade and other payables FET B 5 AR R E At
FEAIRIA 31 4,294,068 4,319,784
Contract liabilities 58868 32 349,943 424,492
Borrowings (EEA 33 1,202,862 2,546,750
Financial Tiabilities at fair value BAFEST ABmS
through profit or loss STEzEMERE 22 - 7,653
Tax payable FEIIRIE 178,792 239,964
Deferred income 3R SEU A 35 9,053 7,369
Lease liabilities MHEaE 36 38,937 26,587
Provisions tEgic] 6,849 9,442
6,080,504 7,582,041
Net current assets MENE EF 8 13,362,036 11,052,250
Total assets less current liabilities WEERMEIEE 28,679,345 26,088,190
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B R
At 31 December 2024 - ZZMFE+"F=+—H
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
—EmE ==
+=8 +ZA
=+-—H =+—H
B = ARBTR ARBTT
Capital and Reserves BAR KK #E
Share capital i < 37 457,063 457,063
Reserves (B 23,294,580 21,992,058
Equity attributable to owners of the AAB#HEE AE(L#ER
Company 23,751,643 22,449,121
Non-controlling interests JEERER 1,589,923 1,543,584
Total equity AR R 25,341,566 23,992,705
Non-current liabilities JERBEE
Borrowings A 33 1,803,471 499,894
Bonds payable B ES 34 996,833 995,405
Trade and other payables S B SRR E M
ENES ! 31 179,783 226,363
Deferred income R FEUT A 35 55,956 59,977
Deferred tax liabilities FIEIRIBE A 23 89,628 165,794
Lease liabilities HE&RE 36 151,043 100,681
Contract liabilities aH8E 32 8,382 9,730
Provisions i 52,683 37,641
3,337,779 2,095,485
28,679,345 26,088,190

The consolidated financial statements on pages 95 to 262
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on March 26, 2025 and are signed on its behalf by:

LONG Jing
REAE
DIRECTOR
BF

N — < —

BT THUATEEFAREFERE!

EISE22EMNREMBRREEES
aR T

EFE=ZAZ+REftERK

CONG Rinan

=0

DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AR RTRE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_MF+_HA=+—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LYGE TP
Share-
Share  Statutory based Non-
Share  premium surplus Translation  payments Other  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve  reserves profits Total interests Equity
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RIMB'000
(note a) (note b)
Nt
RiVEE  EERE AERfR

k% i i ERER B HfEE  REE &t FmRER  EEAE
ARETR  ARBTR ARETR ARWTR ARETR ARETZ ARBTR ARETR AR®TR ARET:

(Hizka) (GE)

At 1 January 2023 RZEZZ£-A-H 457,063 2,743,144 261,211 166,760 21,627 604375 17312626 21,766,866 1815419 23,582,285
Profit for the year REEEH - - - - - S2000906 2000906 596% 2061602
Other comprehensive income for the year EREMZANA - - - 49354 - - - 49,354 8,828 58,182
Total comprehensive income FR2ENALE

for the year - - - 49,354 - - 2001906 2,051,260 68524 2,119,784
Consideration for business combination under  ZEZ=FF— R THERAHZ

common control in 2023 B - - - - - (743,407) - (743,407) (286,593)  (1,030,000)
Reduced upon vested of incentive shares REBRNBBEAR (33800

(Note 38 (a) (c)) - - - - - 46,958 - 46,958 - 46,958
Recognition of equity-settled share-based ANEREEZNRAAERNR

payments (Note 38 (338) - - - N F1L - - B 1482 55459
Repurchase of shares of a subsidiary (Note 38 (d)) EIE—FEMBAR KA (H&38(d) - - - - - (19.962) - (19962 (16,568 (36,530)
Dividends recognised as distribution (Note 13) ~ BRAAZKEIRE (H513) - - - - - - (6870000 (687,000) (45632) (732,632
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 39) WE-BHEAT (H539) - - - - - (19,571) - (19,571) 6,95 (12,619)
At 31 December 2023 RIZZZE+ZA=1-H 457,063 2,743,144 261,211 216,114 275,604 (131,607) 18,627,532 22,449,121 1,543,584 23,992,705
At 1 January 2024 T_mE-B-H 457,063 2,743,144 261,271 216,114 275,604 (131,607) 18,627,532 22,449,121 1,543,584 23,992,705
Proitfor the year KEEEH - - - - - - 2066668 2066668 %6048 216716
Other comprehensive income for the year EREMRENA - - - 96,926 - - - 96,926 5,070 101,99
Total comprehensive income for the year ER2ENALE - - - 96,926 - - 2,066,668 2,163,594 101,118 2,264,712
Reduced upon vested of incentive shares REBRA S (H:38()

(Note 38 (a)) - - - - - 34,583 - 34,583 - 34,583
Recognition of equity-settled share-based BRNEREEZURNAERAR

payments (Note 38 (H338) - - - L - YL 133 %00
Modification of share options (Note 38 (b))~ BERE 2183 (Hi:38(b) - - - - (69,145) - - (69,145) (7845 (76990)
Repurchase of shares of a subsidiary (Note 38 (d)) @& — i BAF K1 (H338(d) - - - - - (21,820) - (21,820) (21,65) (43,476)
Dividends recognised as distrioution (Note 13) ~ BEANRNRS (F313) - - - - - - (839367)  (839367)  (26621) (865988
Appropriation of statutory surplus reserve RIEERIRERE - - 2415 - - - (2,415) - - -

At 31 December 2024 RZE-mE+ZAZ+-A 457,063 2,743,144 263,686 313,040 1,136 (118,844) 19,852,418 23,751,643 1,589,923 25,341,566
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

I\‘7[_ =)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

Notes:

(a)

B mEEHRK

The Articles of Association of the Company and its subsidiaries
established in the PRC (as defined in Note 1) require the appropriation
of 10% of profit after taxation (prepared under the generally
accepted accounting principles in the PRC) each year to the statutory
surplus reserve until the balance reaches 50% of the registered share
capital. According to the provisions of the Articles of Association of
the PRC companies, in normal circumstances, the statutory surplus
reserve shall only be used for making up losses, capitalisation into
capital and expansion of its production and operation. For the
capitalisation of statutory surplus reserve into capital, the remaining
amount of such reserve shall not be less than 25% of the registered
capital.

Other reserves mainly includes the difference between the amounts
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid to acquire the additional interest in
subsidiaries, and the reserves arised from differences between the
consideration of business combination under common control and the
net assets of the combining entities.

B 5E
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 éﬁz?:_

CONSOLIDATED STATEI\/IENT OF CASH FLOWS

Ei-f— A=+—HILFE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB'000 RMB'000
8E BHE
—EomME —E—=
+=8 +ZA
=+—H =+—H
ILEE IEFE
ARBFRT ARETT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REER
Profit before tax FRI2 A A 2,553,748 2,369,187
Adjustments for: KIEHTH]ABEE
Interest income F B A (86,039) (130,087)
Finance costs RE A 249,572 272,971
Depreciation of property, ME- -BERREITE
plant and equipment 628,270 587,745
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 50,119 42,322
Depreciation of investment properties KREVEITE 5,849 5,399
Allowances for credit losses EEBERE 8,813 5,343
Impairment losses on property, ME R REREREERE
plant and equipment 173 1,679
Impairment losses on inventories EFERERE 44,966 32,223
Impairment losses on other Hihmf & ERERE
intangible assets - 8,020
Amortisation of other intangible assets H{th#m i & E# A 287,558 276,238
Share-based payment expenses MRRHBAER RS 36,020 55,459
Share of results of associates el =N (113,015) (86,079)
Share of results of joint ventures BEEEShEES 38,250 9,223
Gain on disposal of financial HERAFEF ABHEGTE
instruments measured at FVTPL 22T ANkaE (262) (5,968)
Gain on deregistration/disposal of RIEFESE  HERKB AT
investments in subsidiaries 2B W - (593)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HENE- -BERKEZ
plant and equipment (Wz) 518 (2,912) 2,147
Release of deferred income AR SE WL PR BR (31,219) (29,741)
(Gain)/loss from changes in fair value BATEtABRAEZ
of financial assets at fair value THEEQATEES
through profit or loss (W) H518 (22,670) 28,037
Exchange (gain)/loss R (km) 18 (56,883) 14,422
3,590,338 3,457,947
Movements in working capital EEBSTED
Increase in inventories FE1gm (78,040) (202,090)
Increase in trade and other receivables FE U B 5 BR 7R K EL A FE UK
FRIEE N (398,139) (234,753)
(Increase)/Decrease in finance lease F& U ik B 7 B 7RI
receivables (g ) R (1,902) 38,926
Decrease in loan receivables FE W & TR 72,875 21,974
Decrease in debt instruments at fair value 2 AFEFAHMEE
through other comprehensive income WAStEZEH AR 33,414 177,440
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and e B 5 BRI At FE{T
other payables ?’Rlﬁi‘ﬁﬂ/ GRIZL) 131,554 (175,273)
(Decrease)/Increase in contract liabilities af8aE (BL) /18 (75,897) 46,136
Increase in deferred income LLH&)U‘?JD 28,882 14,883
Decrease in provisions e TN (4,474) (2,475)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERE MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2024 B E_Z _NF+_B=+—HIEFE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB'000 RMB'000
5 BH=E
—gE@mE —ZT”=
+=B +=A
=+—8 =+-8
IEFE IFFE
ARBFTRT ARETT
Cash generated from operations REMBIRE 3,298,611 3,142,715
Income taxes paid BEPTER (508,640) (344,186)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ~ #REXEMEBREIBHE 2,789,971 2,798,529
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Purchases of property, plant and BEME -BREAXE
equipment (596,700) (319,275)
Purchases of other intangible assets BEHEHMEEEE (49,385) (38,087)
Deposits paid for acquiring property, MBI 2 BB &
plant and equipment REZ NS (1,346) (328,302)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEMZE - FBREREE
plant and equipment Fri§™I8 1,332 6,741
Proceeds from disposal of HEFRAEEEMSNRIE
right-for-use assets 4,030 -
Interest received BUF 2 52,060 130,547
Withdrawal of pledged/restricted RENEIRIRZ R H
bank deposits RITER 840,881 651,655
Placement of pledged/restricted FEABEE ZRH
bank deposits RITFEM (480,994) (712,546)
Withdraw of term deposits RINEHEMX 3,541,270 1,252,541
Placement of term deposits EREBRER (4,187,428) (2,000,376)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEEATESAEGRZ
through profit or loss ETRMEE (217,509) -
Disposal of financial assets at fair value HERAFEFAEBGR
through profit or loss THEE 19,907 18,604
Net cash outflow on acquisition of WHE—RBNBABMmEEN
a subsidiary (Note 39) WML P58 (5E39) - (43,217)
Investments in joint ventures REaEtENKE - -
Investment in an associate R—EMECENKRE (30,533) -
Disposal of an associate HE S b - -
Deregistration/disposal of subsidiaries BRIEFESS HERB AR - 593
Payments of loan receivables S TREKRENR - (8,548)
Repayment of loan receivables BERKENR - 1,078
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES IR BX¥MEFrAREFE (1,104,415) (1,388,592)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEI\/IENT OF CASH FLOWS

="
/\7[_ |:| EEBE /ﬁ%#ﬁ%
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE _Z _UF+_B=+—HLEFE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000
8= BH=E
—EME —T_—_=
+=R +—H
=+—-B =+-—8
ILEE EFE
ARBFrT ARETT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RLE R
Repayments of borrowings BEE™N (2,939,359) (757,234)
Repayments of lease liabilities BEBEEAR (47,672) (44,982)
New borrowings raised FrIg 0z Bk 2,837,357 392,704
Interest paid B F B (210,559) (258,183)
Dividends paid B E (870,588) (732,633)
Repurchase of shares under a share TR 35 B 17 B B 51 8 Bl g i 17
award scheme (30,434) -
Repurchase of shares of a subsidiary ClRE—ENB ARG, (43,476) (36,530)
Net cash flow on business combination HEEFTHEBEHZ
under common control Bene 358 (291,200) (721,000)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES RIEXEFAAZRE 3T (1,595,939) (2,157,858)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND HEhkHEEEEWHLBEE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 89,617 (747,921)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REVMNRERIAEEEY
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 4,797,461 5,521,051
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SNEEPE R BB R E 55,804 24,331
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REXRNIRERIASLEY
AT END OF YEAR 4,942,882 4,797,461
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

1.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

GENERAL INFORMATION

Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company
Limited (the “"Company”) was established and
registered as a joint stock company with limited liability
in the People's Republic of China (the "PRC") under
the Company Law of the PRC on 28 December 2000
and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock
Exchange”). Its immediate holding company is Weigao
Holding Company Limited (“Weigao Holding”),
and its ultimate holding company is Weihai Weigao
International Medical Investment Holding Company
Limited (“Weihai Weigao International”). Both Weigao
Holding and Weihai Weigao International are registered
in the PRC with limited liability. Its ultimate controlling
party is Chen Xueli. The address of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company is No.
1, Weihai Road, Weihai Torch Hi-Tech Science Park,
Weihai, Shandong Province, PRC.

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the research and development, production
and sale of medical device products, orthopaedic
products, interventional products, pharma packaging
products and blood management products, and operate
financing business.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“"RMB"), which is the functional currency of
the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE _Z _UF+_B=+—HLEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERAM:IEAMBFEHREER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG (rEAMBFHREGEN]) RE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS Y
("HKFRSs")

2.1 Amendments to HKFRSs that are 2.1 REFEERFIERE BT

mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the Group's
annual period beginning on 1 January 2024 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sale

HKFRS 16 and Leaseback
Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as
HKAS 1 Current or Noncurrent and

related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)

Amendments to Non-current Liabilities with

HKAS 1 Covenants

Amendments to Supplier Finance
HKAS 7 and Arrangements
HKFRS 7

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on
the Group's financial positions and performance
for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. [EA#MTERAMZEREGER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG (rEAMZEREEN)) RiE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS s14 (@)

("HKFRSs") (continued)

2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective

2.2 EEMEEKERNONITE
AMBHREENRIETS
rEBREBARREFERATIE
PR B E R EMBYE] B A
MBS ER MBS A

The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective:

Amendments to
HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

Amendments to

Amendments to the
Classification and
Measurement of Financial
Instruments?

Contracts Referencing Nature

EEMBREEL RMIBNNER
FIRRER it (E3]%)°
MHREE
75 (EFT %)

BEMBREEL SREBEAER

HKFRS 9 and - dependent Electricity? FIORKREE YEEINEL
HKFRS 7, MBREER

7% (5T )
EENBREED REEEHBENT
FIORREE  HAEZELEZEE

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture' ] HEFBRA
F28%; (B2 %)
Amendments to Annual Improvements BENBRE EEMBREENG
HKFRSs to HKFRSs Accounting 8 (B37%) SERZEER
Standards — Volume 113 E-FNE
Amendments to Lack of Exchangeability? EHRGHER Bz AR
HKAS 21 F215% (B3] F)
HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in ERUBREEL MBRRNZIK
Financial Statements* F185 E
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date ! REETHRNZBREBHNE
to be determined EHA 43
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 RIE_AF—RB—H=Z#%E
January 2025 FvAB A EHARE £ 3K
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 3 RIZEZRFE—A—H=z#
January 2026 BIE N FE B E XN
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 4 RIE_tF—A—H=iz%&
January 2027 RGN FE AR 42K
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Except as described below, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of all
other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements, which sets out requirements on
presentation and disclosures in financial statements, will
replace HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements.
This new HKFRS Accounting Standard, while carrying
forward many of the requirements in HKAS 1,
introduces new requirements to present specified
categories and defined subtotals in the statement of
profit or loss; provide disclosures on management-
defined performance measures in the notes to the
financial statements and improve aggregation and
disaggregation of information to be disclosed in
the financial statements. In addition, some HKAS 1
paragraphs have been moved to HKAS 8 and HKFRS 7.
Minor amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows
and HKAS 33 Earnings per Share are also made.

HKFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will
be effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2027, with early application permitted. The
application of the new standard is expected to affect
the presentation of the statement of profit or loss
and disclosures in the future financial statements. The
Group is in the process of assessing the detailed impact
of HKFRS 18 on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

2.
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Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

3.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary users.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (”Listing Rules”) and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets
which includes an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs. The acquired processes are considered
substantive if they are critical to the ability to continue
producing outputs, including an organised workforce
with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience
to perform the related processes or they significantly
contribute to the ability to continue producing outputs
and are considered unique or scarce or cannot be
replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the
ability to continue producing outputs.

4. GRETEBGHBREHEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

4.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
Business combinations (continued)

Acquisitions of businesses, other than business
combination under common control, are accounted
for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of an asset and a liability
in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
(the "Conceptual Framework”) except for transactions
and events within the scope of HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, in which the Group applies
HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead of the Conceptual
Framework to identify the liabilities it has assumed
in a business combination. Contingent assets are not
recognised.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
Business combinations (continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary's net assets in the
event of liquidation are initially measured at the non-
controlling interests' proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree's identifiable net
assets or at fair value.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group's relevant cash-
generating units (“CGUs"”) (or group of CGUs) that
is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes and not larger than an operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or group of CGUSs).

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate and joint venture is described
below.
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4.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.

The revenue of the Group mainly comes from sales
of goods. Revenue is recognised at a point in time
upon control of the goods has been transferred, being
when the goods have been accepted by the customers.
Following acceptance, the customer bears the risks of
obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains
a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception of the contract. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments
on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the
lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet
the definition of investment properties as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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4.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities

The commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at that
date. In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the option;
and

e payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising an
option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
Leases (continued)
Sale and leaseback transactions

The Group applies the requirements of HKFRS 15
to assess whether sale and leaseback transaction
constitutes a sale by the Group.

The Group as a buyer-lessor

For a transfer of asset that does not satisfy the
requirements of HKFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale
of asset, the Group as a buyer-lessor does not recognise
the transferred asset and recognises a loan receivable
equal to the transfer proceeds within the scope of
HKFRS 9.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of
the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise, except for exchange differences
on monetary items receivable from or payable to a
foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of
the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or
partial disposal of the Group's interests in associates
and joint ventures.
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4.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB) using
exchange rate prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed arising on an
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of that foreign operation and translated
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Shares/Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar series are measured at the fair
value of equity instruments at the grant date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (continued)

Shares/Share options granted to employees (continued)

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration of all non-market vesting
considerations is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period based on the Group's estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share-based
payments reserve).At the end of the reporting period,
the Group revises its estimates of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest based on assessment
of all relevant non-market vesting condition. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to share-based payments
reserve.

When the award shares/share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in share-based
payments reserve will be transferred to other reserve.
When the award shares/share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share-based
payments reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

When shares granted are vested, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payments reserve will be
transferred to other reserve.
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SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Modification to the terms and conditions of
the share-based payment arrangements

When the terms and conditions of an equity-settled
share-based payment arrangement are modified, the
Group recognises, as a minimum, the services received
measured at the grant date fair value of the equity
instruments granted, unless those equity instruments do
not vest because of failure to satisfy a vesting condition
(other than a market condition) that was specified
at grant date. In addition, if the Group modifies the
vesting conditions (other than a market condition) in a
manner that is beneficial to the employees, for example,
by reducing the vesting period, the Group takes the
modified vesting conditions into consideration over the
remaining vesting period.

The incremental fair value granted, if any, is the
difference between the fair value of the modified equity
instruments and that of the original equity instruments,
both estimated as at the date of modification.

When the Group settles a grant of equity instrument:
(a) if the settlement occurs during the vesting
period, the Group accounts for the settlement as an
acceleration of vesting, and recognises immediately the
amount that would otherwise have been recognised
for services received over the remainder of the vesting
period, (b) any payment made on settlement is
accounted for as the repurchase of equity instruments
as a deduction from share-based payments reserve,
except to the extent that the payment exceeds the
intrinsic value of the equity instruments, measured at
the repurchase date. Any such excess is recognised as a
share-based payments expense.

4.

MNETEGHERENEE

(&)

KRgin R E#RAR (&)
1E25 I R 19 3% 1 22 HE BY 15 7% % 15 1

EEAUEREFERRMD T 2k
AU TR B 15 By A B = DR
REeRHEmETARKEARENA
FESENCSWRE  FRIFXEE
m TREREZEMIE L HERER
BB IR (HHERAERIN) MKRER
Bl MAEEREMNRET
By 75 VB LB B IR 1 (T35 1% 14 B
5N (BB LEEER B o BIAE
B R A1 CRBY BR B AR 1 5T AR BR R
[BHA -

EREMEATE WA /EEN
R TENATEERERZTARN
NEE(CEARNENBBGLE) 2
BHER-

EXAEREERLRAT AR (a)
HEEREBRABEE SEEF
EEARRSIENNRER S > X217 B FE
SOIR AR R AR T B B AR AR 1 2 AR
BHESR &  (D)MEEIER 2T
MARRIIEREERATA (R X
TREGINR) EMRBBRAT
B2z RNEEERI ERER B
StE-ERAERBHTRERSK
PSR

' LERSERRESH FTRIBMERAT 2024 £



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Cash-settled share-based payment
transactions

For cash-settled share-based payments, a liability is
recognised for the goods or services acquired, measured
initially at the fair value of the liability. The fair value of
the cash-settled share-based payments is determined
without taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions.

At the end of each reporting period until the liability
is settled, and at the date of settlement, the liability
is remeasured to fair value. For cash-settled share-
based payments that are already vested, any changes in
fair value are recognised in profit or loss for the year.
For cash-settled share-based payments which are still
subject to non-market vesting conditions, the effects of
vesting and non-vesting conditions are accounted on
the same basis as equity-settled share-based payments.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and
deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
tax because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit
and at the time of the transaction does not give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and an associate and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes (other than
properties under construction as described below).
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Freehold land is stated at cost less any recognised
impairment loss. Freehold land is not depreciated.

4. GRETEBGHBREHEE

(&)

wiE (&)

RIEMIBEERBRDRBERERS
HREBRIAARLEBHmNRE
(RiE) - REBEREEBEN

FIERMIBEEEREENE KR
BIRASE R HR S RE R
WEEEEMRERKREENS IR
EEMBER -

ERZEANNTEANSENREER
ERFEEMNRBERR  UREE
PEFE -G REANR—ERRE
REWRFENERE  ELPMF
MEEMBEET U -

RIHA BB AEFR TR TN 18 m PO RE ST - M
i B H3 BAESERR TR S Ko it HAth 2 [
WASNEZREERERER A
HIRIESEIR AT & DR B fth 2 E
WA EZ N m R FEST o A
BaHZYT Gt HAMELEH
WIELERTE  BERRBREEEStA
EHaffzgstmER-

ME BB R=f

ME-BERRBATERANREE
HHEEVHBRBNETLEE X
BARTHABRZEFT (FEETX
PRI ERYE) - WE BB KRR
BB ERRSHTERE
BRESEERE B REEME
MR RIER

B B fRA L1 3% 2R 7] E RS
MEBEY R BHERA LA

.
£E o
Ex

121



122

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

4.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Surgical instruments produced by the Group that
are dedicated for use with the Group's orthopaedic
implant products commence depreciation upon they are
provided to the distributors that in the location for their
intended use.

Buildings in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at
initial recognition. To the extent the allocation of the
relevant payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets (other than freehold land and construction in
progress) less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
investment properties over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss
in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Transfers

Transfers to, or from, investment property when,
and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced
by end of owner-occupation, for a transfer from
owner-occupied property to investment property; or
commencement of owner-occupation, for a transfer
from investment property to owner-occupied property.
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SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Internally-generated intangible assets -
research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase
of an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of
the following have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use
or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

e  the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and
to use or sell the intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

4.

MNETEGHERENEE

)
BHEE
BRI B R E

fERI W H A HA R A A F N
BB ERAAR R 5 HE R AEM
KETRERE AN B G5t
RIfEAFEANRERERERT 4
StRIE R EMRBIHEN SRS
RG> M2 ERESTER
RRBAETUAIR

AEELFEREE - HZEMZ

MEag X HEEEERNHRERN
P —TBR

EHEEUTHEREREEHR
B> FEEE (A EEE B
BRER) SIMMAMELENEBTLEE
73 F LARESE

s HARMLEATHZETLEE
LUEHBEEAIHE ;

s ERARENEETFEAN
HENEE ;

s ARNERANHEXENLE
=

s ZENEENMMELEBER
RASER =

s HERERHARM MBRHEME
B UL ZETLEENR
HoOWEARNLEZERLE
=&

e BENZETLEEMEREK
S tHBEPI Sest &£ ©

' LEREEERASDTERRAERAT 2024 £}



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
Intangible assets (continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets -
research and development expenditure
(continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets
the recognition criteria listed above. Where no
internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if
any), on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognised separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful
lives are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis
as intangible assets that are acquired separately.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible
assets other than goodwiill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there
is any indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, (if
any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible assets
are estimated individually, when it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be established, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount
of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible
assets other than goodwill (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the
recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating
units. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit
or A group of cash-generating units) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generating unit or the group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

4.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the
consolidated statement of financial position include:

(a) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and
demand deposits, excluding bank balances that are
subject to regulatory restrictions that result in such
balances no longer meeting the definition of cash;
and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprise of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments rather than
for investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
cash equivalents as defined above.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale. Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and
non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to
make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from the
Group's ordinary course of business are presented as
other income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

4.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

4. GRETEBGHBREHEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments subsequently measured at FVTOCI.
Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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A5 R AR MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts
for debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI as
a result of interest income calculated using the
effective interest method are recognised in profit
or loss. All other changes in the carrying amount
of these debt instruments are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under
the heading of reserve. Impairment allowances
are recognised in profit or loss with corresponding
adjustment to other comprehensive income
without reducing the carrying amounts of these
debt instruments. When these debt instruments
are derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on
the financial asset and is included in the “other
income, gains and losses” line item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets
(including trade and other receivables, receivables
from factoring business, loan receivables and debt
instruments at FVTOCI, pledged/restricted bank
deposits, cash and bank balances), and other items
(finance lease receivables and financial guarantee
contracts) which are subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
("12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and lease receivables. The ECL for these
assets are assessed individually for debtors with
significant balances and/or collectively using a provision
matrix with appropriate groupings.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

4.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should
be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE _Z _UF+_B=+—HLEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument's external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its
debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor's
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE
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4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i)

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a debt instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group's
debt instruments at FVTOCI only comprise bank
bills receivable that are issued and guaranteed
by the reputable PRC banks and therefore are
considered to be low credit risk.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that
the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment is considered to be the date of
initial recognition for the purposes of assessing
impairment. The Group considers the changes in
the risk that the specified debtor will default on
the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

c¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

e) the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

4. GRETEBGHBREHEE

(&)

ERIA (&)
EHEE (B

THEEREBYEREEREI
FRETTREFIEZHEMEBER Z R
& (&)

(i) ENEE

MAEEERBEEMS &
EERR ENEHERBH
BB EINARRNERE
TREFBAFTKAIETHAE
BA (BREAER) E™m R
RAEBRIFERRRR) &
Bxo

(i) ERRAEETMEE
TRHEEE—BRIRULEH
(BZzemEEMRAER
SREBRAFEE) ELR
MR ERAE cHEEHT
ERARENZESEEBRT
R A R B

a) ETARERANEKX
FAI S

by EREGH WENNEHR
ESS

o BERMANERAREECRH
ERAMENEEN G
%932 /B T A A R HE
ERATERTEEY

BR;

d) B AR AR ARE
HEMMBEAE ; %

e) HENLRFHBRE £/
BEGBEHHZHK

137




138
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE
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4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(iv)

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when
the counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries
are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights. The Group uses
a practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade
receivables and finance lease receivables using a
provision matrix taking into consideration historical
credit loss experience and forward looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition. For a lease receivable, the cash flows
used for determining the ECL is consistent with the
cash flows used in measuring the lease receivable
in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms
of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly,
the ECL is the present value of the expected
payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss
that it incurs less any amounts that the Group
expects to receive from the holder, the debtor or
any other party.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables and
finance lease receivables are considered on a
collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as
forward looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;

e Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e External credit ratings where available.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(v)

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher of the
amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and the amount initially
recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative
amount of income recognised over the guarantee
period.

Except for investments in debt instruments that
are measured at FVTOCI and financial guarantee
contracts, the Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amount,
with the exception of receivables from factoring
business, loan receivables and trade and other
receivables where the corresponding adjustment
through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL 4. RUTFBEFHHEERNEE
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (48)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) £RMTAE (B
Financial liabilities and equity (continued) ETHEEREZ (&
Equity instruments BRATA

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is (i) contingent consideration of an
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
Business Combinations applies, (ii) held for trading or
(iii) it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a
financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging instrument.

RATHEDERERERNBMMES
EERMNEETEAFGRRED ZEM

RN

KA ESRATLE CEER
BRI RI o ERE -
B B TREHAATEE T RA
TAR FERERED IR
RA5IE

BAFESFABDTEZZMEE

HEMBRR)EBMBRSER
BIWMEBCHMBERANEEGH
thiB B I B 7 SR B B A BB - (i)
B/RBMBFAR(IDNREEREAR
FESABDE ERERR
ATFESABmFIEZEMAR-

wE TR R TR B R R AR
B/REMFBAZEMEE

s ULTHERNEMNEER
IR ; 5

e GBI IESAREFEER
BEMNOHIAEMIEES
B —E8 4 o i B3 HAE R A
EHEN SN ZESET
BB ;%

s RE—EHTAIR BRAZRIE
RENWRIEE & B BEH T
TEMTTET AR

142  SHANDONG WEIGAQ GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

' LEREEERASDTERRAERAT 2024 £}



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE _Z _UF+_B=+—HLEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including borrowings, bonds
payable and trade and other payables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payments when due in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair
values. It is subsequently measured at the higher of:

o the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and

e the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
over the guarantee period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

5.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGU (or
group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated,
which is the higher of the value in use or fair value less
costs of disposal. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the CGU (or group of CGUs) and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.

Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, or changes in facts and circumstances which
results in downward revision of future cash flows
or upward revision of the discount rate, a material
impairment loss may arise. Details of the recoverable
amount calculation are disclosed in Note 18.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is currently
organised into six operating divisions — medical device
products, orthopaedic products, interventional products,
pharma packaging products, blood management
products and others, among which interventional
products were produced by Argon. These divisions are
the basis of the internal reports about components
of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker (Managing Director) in order
to allocate resources to segments and to assess their
performance.

Principal activities of the Group's operating and
reportable segments are as follows:

Medical device
products

production and sale of clinical care,
medical testing, anesthesia and
surgical related products and other
consumables

Orthopaedic -
products

production and sale of orthopaedic
products, including tissue repair
product line

Interventional - production and sale of tumour

products and blood vessel interventional
instruments

Pharma — production and sale of pre-filled
packaging syringes and flushing syringes
products

Blood — production and sale of blood
management collection, irradiation, storage,
products separation and sterilization products

Others — finance lease and factoring business
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

(continued)
Segment revenues and results
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and

results by reportable segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2024

WA B 53 BB E L ()
AWIAREE

AEBBE A RE D E DT Z WA K
FEWTE

HEZF_MF+ZA=+—HIL
FE

Medical Pharma Blood
device  Orthopaedic Interventional packaging management
products products products products products Others  Eliminations Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BRENER BHER NAER EREkER OREEER Hit it fit
AEETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARRTR  ARRTm  AREFR
Revenue N
External sales e 6,512,192 1439446 1,980,048 2,278,608 876,777 - - 13,087,071
Inter-segment sales RBRIHE 88,046 - - - - - (88,046) -
Total &t 6,600,238 1,439,446 1,980,048 2,278,608 876,777 - (88,046) 13,087,071
Segment profit AR 1,067,271 219,192 1,725 893,287 64,727 58,579 - 2,304,781
Depreciation of investment Lt EVAiL]
properties (5,849)
Unallocated other income, gains ~ RAREMBAERER
and losses (7,124)
Rental income of investment ~~ RENZZALUA
properties 12,015
Interest income from hank BIERZRERA
deposits 170,645
Gain from changes in fair value ~ RAFEFAREHE
of financial instruments at ZEMIANTEEY
FVTPL W 22,670
Gain on disposal of financial ~~ HERATEAABRFEZ
instruments at FVTPL SRIAZNE 262
Share of results of associates  FEEHEAT£E 113,015
Share of results of joint ventures  [EfEAEFEEE (38,250)
Share-based payment expenses  MURHAERE[IZE (22,891)
Net gain of litigation FilbEEE 4,474
Profit before tax FRATRR
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MBI MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE _Z NG+ _F=+—HIEFE

Segment revenues and results (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

SEWARESE

6. MARSHER @

(&)

BE-_F_-F+_-H=+—HI

FE
Medical Pharma Blood
device  Orthopaedic  Interventional packaging  management
products products products products products Others  Eliminations Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BEANER BHER NAER EpffER ODREEER Hth izl At
ARETRE ARETr ARETn AREFR AREBTR AR®Tx ARETR ARETR
Revenue O
External sales SEPEE 6,961,407 1271203 1,931,040 2,023,809 1,041,994 - - 13,229,453
Inter-segment sales NEDEHE 45,797 - - - - - (45,797) -
Total At 7,007,204 1,271,203 1,931,040 2,023,809 1,041,994 - (45,797) 13,229,453
Segment profit DEER 1,053,863 74,159 23,454 811,783 120,203 82,732 - 2,166,194
Depreciation of investment ~ REMEZHE
properties (5,399)
Unallocated other income,  RABEMBA AR
gains and losses B8 (3,031)
Rental income of BEMEZBENA
investment properties 11,412
Interest income from bank BT Z A BIKA
deposits 158,509
Loss from changes in BATEH BRI E
fair value of financial JEBTANTEED
instruments at FVTPL 53] (28,037)
Gain on disposal of HERATESAER
financial instruments at GEZERIAZNG
FVTPL 5,968
Share of results of 3 = UNSES
associates 86,079
Share of results of joint i
ventures (9,223)
Share-based payment NRGAERNOATES
expenses (42,426)
Gain on disposal of HEHWBLARREZ
investments in Wi
subsidiaries 593
Net gain of litigation b P 28,548
Profit before tax BRI AT R

2,369,187
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

6.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
Segment revenues and results (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group's accounting policies. Segment
profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of depreciation and rental income of
investment properties, unallocated other income, gains
and losses of the corporate function, interest income
from bank deposits, gain on disposal of subsidiaries,
gain from changes in fair value of financial instruments
at FVTPL, gain on disposal of financial instruments at
FVTPL, share of results of associates/joint ventures,
share-based payment expenses recognised for grantees
of the management of the Group and net gain of
litigation. This is the measure reported to the Managing
Director for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market
rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WARAIHBER @
(continued)
Segment assets and liabilities RBEERAR
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and REBRIIRERKEESDE DT Z
liabilities by reportable and operating segments: BEERBEAOT
Segment assets PEEE
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
- 1 - S
+=A +=8
=+—H =+—H
ARBTR ARBTT
Medical device products BEBIME®D 11,066,890 11,095,372
Orthopaedic products 2R Em 2,763,341 2,994,546
Interventional products AN 5,635,135 5,600,529
Pharma packaging products BERBEER 3,256,485 2,970,487
Blood management products MK EIEEH 1,181,063 825,519
Others Hih 962,263 1,103,765
Total segment assets DEEEE 24,865,177 24,590,218
Financial assets at FVTPL BATESF AEBGSEZ
TREE 303,688 87,281
Interests in associates PEE QBN ER 1,604,557 1,461,381
Interests in joint ventures PEZERENER 311,068 349,318
Investment properties KEME 122,023 135,611
Deferred tax assets FLERIEE & 248,543 207,102
Pledged/restricted bank deposits BT R IR IRITF™M 395,089 754,975
Cash and bank balances IR & RIRTTHE B 6,909,704 6,084,345
Consolidated assets REEE 34,759,849 33,670,231
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. IWARATBEFR @)
(continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) SEHEERAE (@)
Segment liabilities SEE R
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
—EmE —ZT”=
+=AR +=A
=+—H =+—H
ARBFTR ARBTT
Medical device products BERMESD 4,805,546 4,953,772
Orthopaedic products AR EmM 960,170 1,217,784
Interventional products 7T A 2,529,082 2,598,068
Pharma packaging products EnEEER 359,549 289,710
Blood management products & & 2 E m 569,974 287,674
Others Hth 35,169 53,323
Total segment liabilities DEEER 9,259,490 9,400,331
Deferred tax liabilities RIEIRIBEE R 89,628 165,794
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BATESTAB@DTE
TRaE - 7,653
Unallocated other payables R B H AR FRIE 69,165 103,748
Consolidated liabilities = 9,418,283 9,677,526

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments:

mEEDBREREDE ZBE DR

BIR:

e all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than financial assets at FVTPL, interests in
associates, interests in joint ventures, investment
properties, deferred tax assets, pledged/restricted
bank deposits and part of cash and bank balances.

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than deferred tax liabilities, financial
liabilities at FVTPL, and unallocated other payables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. IMARSIEE @

(continued)

Other segment information Hith5r&p & #l
For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_F_MFE+"F=+—HI
FE

Medical Pharma Blood

device  Orthopaedic Interventional packaging management
products products products products products Others Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
BREHER BHER NAER ERERER NWEEER At it

ARWFR  ABRTR  ARBTR  ARR¥R  ARWFR  ABRTR  ARRTR

Amounts included in the measure of HENDRNINDEER

segment profit or seqment assets: fEst3E
Additions to property, plant and equipment &M% BRRRE 319,882 14,346 37,095 308,911 43,412 - 723,646
Allowances (reversal) for credit losses EEFERE (BR) 17,064 (7,354) 429 (1,419) = 93 8,813
Impairment (gains) losses on inventories FEEE Ww) BE (485) 39,448 6,003 - - - 44,966
Impairment losses on property, nE BERZERESR

plant and equipment - 173 - - - - 173
Amartisation of other intangible assets AftEpEEEH 1,443 6,010 267,084 - 13,021 - 281,558
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1%  E R 17 E 298,453 102,163 29,333 169,573 28,741 1 628,270
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 35,977 4,468 4,089 - 5,585 - 50,119
(Gainoss on disposal of property, HENE BRRERERD) /B8

plant and equipment (524) (6,337) 2,885 (33) 1,097 - (2,912)
Research and development expenditure @ 323,887 119,905 62,686 67,313 51,442 - 625,233
Share-based payment expenses LRAAERNATES - - 13,129 - - - 13,129
Government grants BR#Y (38,737) (11,398) (2,401) (6,986) (29) (12) (59,563)
Rebate of value added tax (*VAT') &R (AR BA (72,942) - - - - (2,610) (75,552)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Il‘7|— = /\7}%#&% M—J- DE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

6. MARSHER @

Other segment information (continued) Hith5 &8 & ¥ (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE_EF_=—HF+"F=+—HI
FE
Medical Pharma Blood
device Orthopaedic  Interventional packaging  management
products products products products products Others Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
EERNER BHER NER EnffER NREEER 2 Bt

ARBTE  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR

Amounts included in the measure of HENNRNINDEER

segment profit or seqment assets: fEstaE:
Additions to property, plant and equipment miEnE BRREE 278,952 147,048 30,271 20,077 69,175 745,523
Allowances (reversal) for credit losses EEFERE (BR) 23,037 (16,043) 1,381 (1,65) (1,721) 5,343
Impairment losses on inventories BERESR 157 27,944 2,708 - - 32,023
Impairment losses on property, nE RERREAESE

plant and equipment - 1,679 - - - - 1,679
Impairment losses on other intangible assets ~ EMER EEHERSE - - 8,020 - - - 8,020
Amartisation of other intangible assets HthEREERY 612 5,232 257,425 25 12,944 - 276,238
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ ¥)% BERZEHE 274,520 102,934 26,524 132,839 50,920 8 587,745
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 26,082 4,358 6,869 - 5,013 - 030
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HENE BERAE

plant and equipment B/ (h&) 444 17 1423 (20) 283 - 2147
Research and development expenditure HEmRS 304,007 130,310 50,339 65213 42,981 - 592,850
Share-based payment expenses YRHAERNARES - 1,105 11,928 - - - 13,03
Government grants HITRE (50,162) (8.477) (6,992) (7,286) (154) (6,071) (79,142)
Rebate of value added tax (*VAT') SR (ME2ER) BR (75,683) - - (46) - (3,012 (78,741)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE _Z _UF+_B=+—HLEFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
Revenue from major products

The existing major products of the Group under each
business line are as follows:

e The medical device products business includes
clinical care, medical testing equipment, anesthesia
and surgical-related products.

e The pharmaceutical packaging business includes
prefilled syringes and pre-filled flush syringes.

e  The orthopaedic business includes trauma, spinal
implant, artificial joints, sports injury, soft tissue
repair, reconstruction implant, orthopaedic filling,
and orthopaedic related surgical tools.

o Interventional business includes tumor intervention,
vascular intervention, and interventional imaging.

e The blood management business includes blood
collection, storage, separation, and sterilization of
consumables and equipment.

6.

WARZBER @&

REFEERZBA

AEBSEFAERRETEERN
B

s EBRBMEREBEREBK
I B 2R ER a3 FREE K
FTIERAE MR o

s HRUREFEE I REHNIE
BygshEEsEs

e BREFH IS -BFHEA
Yo NTREEN - BEEBE - I
HBEEREREBAY  BIE
EMEBRERFMIA

s NMAEB EEBENAMEN
ANFEBIT A

e MREEEFHEE @ MEHF
E-TE OB -HEHEFE
R 5& 5 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
Revenue from major products (continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from

6. WAKRTEBER (&)

REFEERZIBA (&)
UTHREEERBETEERKR

its major products and services. 2 WA DT
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
8= S

—EDE —ZE-=

+=R +=A
=+—H =+—H
IEEFE IFFE
ARBTR AREBTT
Sale of medical device products iHE B ERME S 6,296,502 6,727,859
Sale of orthopaedic products HE BN E SR 1,439,446 1,271,203
Sale of interventional products HE N AEm 2,195,738 2,164,588
Sale of pharma packaging products #4526 4 FE B 2,278,608 2,023,809
Sale of blood management products  #4 % M & & I & & 876,777 1,041,994
13,087,071 13,229,453

Information about major customers FTEERHNEN
There is no single customer contributing over 10% of FPMEFERN SIRE—XFPHE

total revenue of the Group for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
Geographical information

Information about the Group's revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of the
customers. Information about the Group's non-current
assets is presented based on the geographical location
of the assets and excludes financial instruments and

6.

WARDEBEH (&)

WEEH

FEBERBINBERZWAZER
BERERMUEZS - KAEBIFRH
BEEZENDDREEMEMNESR
> A EEERMITIARELERE
BE-

deferred tax assets.

Revenue from
external customers

Year ended Non-current assets
31/12/2024  31/12/2023 31/12/2024  31/12/2023
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
RENMBERZHWA ERBEE
BE BE
ZEmE —T--fF
+ZA +Z8 ZEZME —T°=fF
=+-H =+—H +=R +ZA
LLEE IEFE =+-8 =+—H
ARBTR AR®Tr AR¥BTR AR%Trx
PRC HE 9,799,577 10,204,472 9,442,799 9,395,723
United States ESE 1,402,618 1,301,817 4,978,095 5,077,849
Furope, the Middle East BUM ~ PR R IEM
and Africa 850,886 709,686 129,266 103,791
Other districts Hithith & 1,033,990 1,013,478 19,258 17,374
13,087,071 13,229,453 14,569,418 14,594,737

Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and

deferred tax assets.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with

customers

As a practical expedient of HKFRS 15, the Group
need not disclose the transaction price allocated to
these unsatisfied contracts with customers that has an
original expected duration of one year or less.

ERFEEFEESM T E REL

MIAE E °

SEEEREHZETEOTREN

XmE

EREBEBUBRS

RS 155k A0

BEAN AEBBEARENEEZ
ERFEAMRD —FRNERIKRE

mTER

BRI ZEe
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HMUgA W= R EE

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB'000 RMB’000
8= 8=
—E-NE - S——
+=A +=8B
=+—H =+—H
IEFE IFFE
ARBTRT ARETT
Other income: HMA -
Rebate of VAT (Note a) BERER (i5a) 75,552 78,741
Government grants (Note b) BB (MYsEb) 59,563 79,142
Operating rental income RERS A 12,015 11,412
Finance lease income MEHEEWA 2,179 2,896
Interest income from bank deposits  $R{TERZF B U A 170,645 158,509
Interest income from RIBEB ZF]BIA
factoring business 15,242 14,713
Interest income from loan receivables FEUWE I ZF B U A 44,536 62,456
379,732 407,869
Other gains and losses: He e B8
Impairment losses on other HihmE & E R ERE
intangible assets - (8,020)
Impairment losses on inventories EFERERE (44,966) (32,223)
Impairment losses on property ME~ R B R B R E B 18
plant and equipment (173) (1,679)
Net exchange gain/(loss) ERWsE (E518) $58 56,436 (16,602)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEME - BERREZ
plant and equipment Wz (E548) 2,912 (2,147)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR Z W= - 593
Gain/(loss) from changes in BATESFABGSIEZ
fair value of financial EMTAERFEES
instruments at FVTPL Wi, (E518) 22,670 (28,037)
Gain on disposal of financial HERAFESABRE
instruments at FVTPL Z2EMTAZWE 262 5,968
Donation paid [=AREEE (3,900) (939)
Net gain of litigation (Note c) Freal B R (i 5Ec) 4,474 28,548
Others HA1th (6,690) (649)
31,025 (55,187)
410,757 352,682
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_MF+_HA=+—HLFE

7. HfthigA - s R ASHR (@

7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

(continued)

Notes:

(@  As Weihai Jierui Medical Products Company Limited (“Jierui”),
one of the subsidiary of the Company, was recognised as a
“Social Welfare Entity”, the Tax Bureau in Weihai granted a
rebate of VAT paid by Jierui with effect from 1 May 1999 on
the basis of “payment first then rebate”. Pursuant to Caishui
[2016] No.52 issued by the State Council, with effect from 1
May 2016, Jierui was granted a rebate of VAT determined with
reference to the number of staff with physical disability. For
each staff with physical disability, four times of the minimum
salary approved by the local government in Weihai is granted to
Jierui as rebate of VAT.

Pursuant to Caishui [2016] No.36, Weigao Financial Leasing
Co., Ltd., one of the subsidiary of the Company, is entitled to
immediate tax rebates upon collection when the actual VAT tax
burden rate exceeds 3%.

(b)  During the year, government grants were awarded to the Group
mainly for business development and certain research and
development expenses occurred and were recognised as other
income when the government grants were received. There
were no unfulfilled conditions in the year in which they were
recognised.

() A subsidiary of the Group (the “Subsidiary”) is a defendant
involving in a number of product liability claims. The Subsidiary
entered into a conditional master settlement agreement with
the lead counsel for the plaintiffs (the “Agreement”) to resolve
and settle the vast majority of the outstanding claims against
the Subsidiary (the “Settlement”). As a result, the Group
recorded cumulative pre-tax provision of RMB667,047,000 in
respect of the Subsidiary's obligation for product liability claims
under the Agreement during the year ended 31 December
2022.

As of 31 December 2024, for the number of plaintiffs who
may, but have not yet agreed to participate in the Settlement,
and the number of plaintiffs who declined to participate in the
Settlement, the Group recorded cumulative pre-tax provision
of RMB31,180,000 (2023: RMB34,962,000) based on the best
estimation of the injury alleged, the results of related litigation,
and the degree of responsibility that may be inferred to the
Subsidiary.

MisE -

(a)

R A A BB B A B EE R i B
HBARRT (NRiH)) EHERS T
gRAtE > RIEEBERBER MR
HMEHEBERRR A—ANNER
B—HEEXN RAATRORER
B o RBEF W ZBR(2016]5
525EN M BT —AREFERLA—HIE
R BIMERTIZERERTS
ZREETZHAETE -MERIEE
BIMs R ERBENHESE
HH S BNt E REHFESOEZ
R FREERER

RIRRTIR[2016]8365E X > KA A
B ARUREERMEEERRER
BEERBEREERNMNBEEER
3% I ANEERIR o

FROAEETIENEBERREL
BY 45 TE Bt 85 B S E X B U A B > b
B WS B ESL T B B B 50 7 EL M U A o
EHEDBEEABREREZMMSE o

rEER-BRBRASE (THEBAFI)
S RETEREEREHRE K
BRABRRENEFE R L —7
BiREM@BEGE ((ZiHE)  UE
ARREEHHINELRBBIRE DK
REREE (TR ~HIL NEE 2
T THF+ZR=+—HLEFEE EZ
WETEAEENINBATIHERS
EFRENESEHSNATEBARE
667,047,0007T °

BE_Z_NE+-_B=+—08" %
RAEEBEABELEMBHNRES
NELEH U RIBE2 8BRS
AHKLEHmME  RIBEHABEENR
Eh st BRI REA NI 45 R LU B T BEH#E
ETHMBATNEERE  ZEHAR
BESHRAIEEARE31,180,000
T(ZEBZ=4: AR¥34,962,000
JT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HthA - IR EE @
(continued)
Notes: (continued) Mzt © ()
(¢)  (continued) (o (8

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Subsidiary
had obtained product liability insurance and its insurers have
paid the Subsidiary an aggregate amount of RMB26,073,000.
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the net gain related
to the product liability claims by considering the provision
and insurance coverage is recorded with an amount of
RMB4,474,000 (2023: net gain RMB28,548,000).

The Group reserves the right to seek recovery of certain of
these losses from the entity that previously owned the relevant
products, including taking necessary legal actions.

REE_ET_=ZF+_F=+—H1
EE WBARNECKESERSIR
IKM&EGB’*/\TEHWE/ATEZW@
£ 2 AR #26,073,000c EHE—
:EE+:EE+—E|¢£EF§PE§%
BIEGESELREEER HER
ETREHEANFRERESEAR
#4,474,00070 (Z B - =4 BUWH
AR #28,548,0007T) °

FERREOANEARBERNE
REEETZFRANEN SFEX
BB ERITH

8. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED 8. FEHI=EHEHEERX T ZHE
CREDIT LOSS MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL E548 > 0BR[]

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2024 31/12/2023

RMB’'000 RMB'000
8= BHE
—E-OE —ET-=
+=B +=A
=+—8B =+—°8
ILEE EFE

ARBTFR ARBTT

Impairment losses (recognised)/ FMTIIIEE FER) # B
reversed on: HEEE
— trade receivables —EWE Z R
— loan receivables —EIER
— other receivables —HMEWRRIE
— receivables from factoring business —2& B{RIBZEE 2 EUILTIA
— finance lease receivables —ENRERERE
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(7.774) (4,250)
(1,198) (155)
(946) (749)

- (304)
1,105 115
(8,813) (5,343)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

FINANCE COSTS 9. FIERZ
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000
HE BHE
—EINE ==
+=A8 +_—HA
=+—H =+—H
IEEE EFEE
AREBFRT AR®TFT
Interest on borrowings BRSPS 206,141 232,257
Interest on bonds payable A ESFE 35,900 35,900
Interest on lease liabilities HEaENE 7,531 4,814
249,572 272,971
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FRiSiAX
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000
BE BHE
—EDNE —ZE-=
+=A +—A
=+-A2 =+—8
ILEE EFE
AREFRT AR®BTFT
Current enterprise income tax BPHATR PRSI 497,733 403,063
Under/(Over) provision in prior years BREEEBEETE
(HBEE#E ) 13,835 (12,981)
Deferred tax TR IE (120,536) (82,497)
391,032 307,585

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the "EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the Company and certain PRC
subsidiaries is 15% for the years ended 31 December
2024 and 2023.

RIB(PEAREMNRTEMRER
EY TREPRERIE R(EEME
MAEABHEG)  XAB RETFH
BB ATREBEE _S _NEKR_
E_=F+_A=+—HULEEEZ
MEA15% o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024 B E_Z _NF+_B=+—HIEFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. FRiEHRA @

160

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at
the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. The
subsidiaries in the United States (“U.S.”) are subject
to federal income tax at a tax rate of 21% and state
income tax.

The Company, lJierui, Weigao Orthopaedic and
Shandong Weigao Purui Pharmaceutical Packaging Co.,

HthEzHEEENRIBIL AR
BAENRITREAE NERH

(T=E)) B AR EE21% M
T3 40 4 B F 1S BT 1575 Bz B 48043 I B
B

K’&T Lin BE B R RIUERE
””@%@,%%EBE’AT (TR &

Ltd (“Weigao Purui”) were recognised as Shandong iﬁ'ﬁj) EERA_E_ZSFER
Province New and High Technical Enterprises (LU EoREELRABRRmYE;
BHESMEMEE) from the year 2020 to 2025; BL=BAME R B S T eSS

Weigao Medical Materials and Weigao New Life
were recognised as Shandong Province New and
High Technical Enterprises from the year 2024 to
2026, Zhejiang Quantum (as defined in Note 39) was
recognised as Zhejiang Province New and High Technical
Enterprises from the year 2024 to 2026, and the
subsidiaries of the Company, Changzhou Jianli Bangde
Medical Devices Co., Ltd and Weihai Weigao Jiesheng
Medical Devices Co., Ltd. were recognised as New and
High Technical Enterprises from the year 2019 to 2024.
In accordance with the “Notice of the State Tax Bureau
of the Ministry of Finance Regarding Certain Preferential
Treatment Policies on Enterprise Income Tax”, New and
High Technical Enterprise was subject to income tax at a
tax rate of 15%.

The State Taxation Administration of the PRC
announced in September 2022 that enterprises
accredited as “New and High Technical Enterprise”
would be entitled to claim 100% of the purchase price
for equipment and appliances newly purchased during
the period from 1 October 2022 to 31 December
2022 as tax deductible expenses and 100% additional
deduction for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Jierui has been recognised as a “Social Welfare Entity”.
Pursuant to Caishui [2016] No. 52 issued by the State
Council, with effect from 1 May 2016, Social Welfare
Entity is subject to income tax rate of 15%, and an
amount equivalent to the total salaries paid to staff
with physical disability is further deducted from the
taxable income of Jierui. The tax charge provided for
the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 were
made after taking these tax incentives into account.

The Group is operating in certain jurisdictions where the
Global Anti-base Erosion Rules (“Pillar Two Rules”) are
effective or enacted but not effective. However, base on
management's best estimate, the management of the
Group considered the Group is not liable to top-up tax
under the Pillar Two Rules.
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“TERTNFEETZTRFEULR
ERMRMEE; HIE8F (&
RIFE39) BER A _S _NEFE
ETTRFEMNIASMRME
ERAEN BB LB EIMNEDAE
BRESMARARDREESH SRR
BREMARLQAEEIS _Z
—hﬁfi_v_ﬂﬁfm#ﬁ$§fTI
12 o AR 5 (B B AR B R AR 75 48
%ﬁﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%%ﬁ%?@%ﬁ%ﬂ@@
) B RMEERIZI5%IRE
BUSFrIS MR ©

$II%&F BENR_E_Fh
ﬁ ﬁﬁ t:vu/Eé_’vl— :FFI'EZTTTJJ:%J
WEExEF_"ZT_"_F+8—HZE
T "F+"B=+— E%%ﬁ%
ENXREREE BEEREE
T "F+"B=+— EtEF$
FI100%NEBEBEATNMBESX
R EIT100% 05T 30k o

RIS L EEFEE) R
BRI e 2% 2 B #R[2016]56525%
Xt BZZE—N"FAHA—HIE"
A E @A B EEL15%R TG Fr
B RESN N FIRES T
T SRRE—P B RIGHER
MBAFRR - BE_Z_NF KR
—ERC—FAHA=+—HLEFE
FHZMERXBEE RZEIN
FEBE o

FEBKEEGHNE TR ZEEE
BN EBMEREREIKRNE
=B RA (T2 —FR)) A >
BEEEENREMGS ~5EEHE
EERATERBRARBEIE R
RIS e o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE_—Z

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or

TME+ZA=+—HILEFE

10. FRiEHRA @

AFEEMRBRERFSED
A 3R R R B BRAR BT F) AR U

i R E A

loss and other comprehensive income as follows: I
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB'000 RMB'000
8E BE
—EomE —TT=F
+=B +—A
=+—H =+—H
ILEE IEFE
ARBFrT ARETT
Profit before tax BRAQ AT F 2,553,748 2,369,187
Taxation at income tax rate of B 15%Fr1s ﬁ%ﬁ EtEMIRIE
15% (2023: 15%) (ZTEBEZ=%F:15%) 383,062 355,378
Tax effect of share of results of Fgfﬁﬂ?ﬁﬁjﬁ G MBLE
associates (16,952) (12,912)
Tax effect of share of results of BlLEErEXE RMBEE
joint ventures 5,737 1,383
Effect of additional tax deduction for BRI E A 2 ZBINR TSR
research and development expenses 2 &£ (71,547) (68,486)
Additional tax benefit to a Social HEEANGEZIEINGEER
Welfare Entity (5,333) (5,495)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not ENFiBE R ESRAIIRIEE B
recognised (1,412) (264)
Utilisation of deductible temporary — EhA@FRESIHI A IR0 G K
difference previously not recognised 4 ZE® (2,732) (695)
Tax effect on tax losses and deductible Z<F 53 A9 72 18 518 K BT #K40
temporary difference not recognised ERMEENRIEFE 24,141 12,454
Tax effect on expenses not deductible FLIRF TS A A0 SZ A9
for tax purpose %R T 8,828 5,030
State and local income taxes for U.S. @AM %!WJ%’&EE’\]?E’Z
subsidiaries 75 PR 1,881 (1,421)
Withholding tax TER 3,359 3,291
Effect on different tax rates of B ES PN A
subsidiaries 48,165 32,303
Under/(over) provision in prior years BREEEBEELRE
(FBER ) 13,835 (12,981)
Income tax expense for the year FRAERES 391,032 307,585
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Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024 B E_Z _NF+_B=+—HIEFE
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11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1. FAREF
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB'000 RMB’000
8= 8=
—E-NE . ——
+=A +=8B
=+—H =+—H
IEFE IEFE
ARBTRT ARETT
Profit for the year has been arrived at & FI &0 bR K 5t A T 7
after charging and crediting: HE®BENR:
Staff costs, including directors' and ETHA
supervisors' remuneration (BREESERESHM
— Retirement benefits scheme — RIKAEF 5T 2R
contributions 196,447 196,708
— Salaries and other allowances — e REMEEL 2,198,871 1,957,086
— Share-based payment expenses — UMD AERONREAS
(Note 38) (FF5E38) 36,020 55,459
Total staff costs BT AMEE 2,431,338 2,209,253
Auditors' remuneration for the Group —Z~% B Z E M BN & 8,440 8,533
Impairment losses on inventories FERERE 44,966 32,223
Impairment losses on other intangible EfthER & EREEIE
assets - 8,020
Amortisation of other intangible assets HfthiEf & E # 4 287,558 276,238
Impairment losses on property, plant ¥ E KRR EREEE
and equipment 173 1,679
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEME BEKRRZE
plant and equipment (Wz=) 518 (2,912) 2,147
Depreciation of property, plant and ME--BEKREBEBITE
equipment 628,270 587,745
Depreciation of investment properties & &Y E 5,849 5,399
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 50,119 42,322
Lease expenses related to short-term  EfEHAHEBRINEER X
lease 11,077 10,651
Cost of inventories recognised as an RAEZNEERAK
expense 6,506,440 6,586,420
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS', SUPERVISORS' AND 1N.E5 - EF5kEEME
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
Directors' and supervisors' emoluments EERESEME
Details of the emoluments paid or payable by the AEBERENHENRABE
entities comprising the Group to the directors, chief ETHRIREEMEFBUW
executive and supervisors of the Company are as e
follows:

Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-ME+-RAZ+-RALEE

Retirement

Salaries benefits  Performance  Share-based

and other schemes related bonus payment
Fee allowances  contributions (note a) expenses Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

E30] Wigfh

HER BIER HRTEA AERR
g Hfthi2e HE 1A (H3£a) hEAE @t

ARBTR ARBFR ABBFR ABBTR ARBFR ARBTR

Executive directors nrEs
Mr. Long Jing BRRRE - 1,835 45 1,027 5,270 8,177
Mr. Cong Rinan EAMEE

(chief executive officer) (THa%)

(note b) (Fft3¥b) - 1,232 14 AN 1,757 3,814
Mr. Lu Jungiang EBREE - 1,024 4 710 268 2,044
Mr. Wang Daoming (note )~ Fi&BR%&4 (Hizkc) - 371 24 276 2,108 2,779

- 4,462 225 2,724 9,403 16,814

Non-executive directors JEHITES
Mr. Tang Zhengpeng (note d) & EBR%4 (fzkd) = = - - - -

Mr. Chen Lin (note e) BT (izke) - - - - - -
Mrs. Yan Xia (note ) RELL () = = = - - =
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS', SUPERVISORS' AND

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors' and supervisors' emoluments

(continued)

1N.EF5 -BEERESHME ®

ESREEME B

Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-S-ME+ZAZ+-ALEE

Retirement
Salaries benefits  Performance  Share-based
and other schemes related bonus payment
Fee allowances  contributions (note a) expenses Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
3] NiRfR
wEh BIER LR AER
g - 49 s (GELD) fHHE% szt
AEBTT AEBTT AEBTTR AEBTR AEBTTT AEBTT
Independent non- BUFnTES
executive directors
Mr. Li Guohui FEBEE 230 - - - - 230
Mrs. Meng Hong ik 150 - - - - 150
Mr. Li Qiang Faghk 150 - - - - 150
Mr. Sun Heng (note g) BIEEE (k) 77 - - - - 71
607 - - - - 607
Supervisors Bz
Mr. Song Dapeng RABEE - - - - - -
Mr. Zhang Zhuanggiu AL - 473 45 295 527 1,340
Mrs. Gu Meijun (note h) BEELL (HEh) - - - - - -
- 473 45 295 527 1,340
607 4,935 270 3,019 9,930 18,761
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE _Z _UF+_B=+—HLEFE

12. DIRECTORS', SUPERVISORS' AND 12.E5 - EFZRESHNE @
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Directors' and supervisors' emoluments EEREEME B

(continued)

Year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z_ZE+-B=t-HULEE

Retirement
Salaries benefits Performance Share-based
and other schemes related bonus payment
Fee allowances contributions (note a) expenses Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R DU 13
HER RINER THEATEAL AR
ik Hit2ht I e (Mta) DEEE st
ARETT ARETFT AREFT NS AEBTR NS
Executive directors BirEs
Mr. Long Jing BRRRsE - 2,046 46 903 5,270 8,265
Mr. Cong Rinan EAmEE
(chief executive officer) (fTEA%)
(note b) (GED) - 1,681 17 435 1,757 3,990
Mr. Lu Jungiang EgREE - 1,012 41 - 268 1,321
Mr. Ni Shili R s - 914 - m 2,108 3,733

- 5653 204 2,049 9,403 17,309

Non-executive directors JEHITES
Mr. Tang Zhengpeng (note d) & EBR%4E (Ffzkd) - - - - - -
Mr. Chen Lin (note ) BT (izke) - - - - - -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS', SUPERVISORS' AND

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors' and supervisors' emoluments

(continued)

1N.EF5 -BEERESHME ®

ESREEME B

Year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z_ZE+-B=t-HULEE

Retirement
Salaries benefits Performance Share-based
and other schemes related bonus payment
Fee allowances contributions (note a) expenses Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
~ R DU 13
HER BAER THEATEAL RERN
ik Hit2ht I e (Mizta) DEEE st
ANEBTR NS ANEBTR NS AEBTR NS
Independent non- BUEYTES
executive directors
Mr. Li Guohui FEERE 207 - - - - 207
Mrs. Meng Hong Etikan 150 - - - - 150
Mr. Li Qiang TRt 150 - - - - 150
507 - - - - 507
Supervisors ¥
Mr. Song Dapeng RABEE - - - - - -
Mr. Zhang Zhuanggiu RAtAk LA - 537 46 339 527 1,449
Mrs. Gu Meijun (note h) BAEBLT (Mzkh) - - - - - -
- 537 46 339 527 1,449
507 6,190 250 2,388 9,930 19,265

The chief executive, executive directors' emoluments
shown above were for their services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group. The non-executive directors' and supervisors'
emoluments shown above were for their services as

directors.

Notes:

(@) Approved by the remuneration committee, the performance
related bonus payment is determined by reference to the
individual performance of the directors and the chief executive.

(b)  Mr. Cong Rinan has re-elected as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 28 May 2024 by approval of annual

general meeting of the Company.

(c)  Mr. Wang Daoming has been appointed as an executive director
of the Company with effect from 28 May 2024 by approval of

annual general meeting of the Company.

EHTHEBRRRTESM SR
REEEEAADREEEBFEHH

AR5 A R - it IEH

e

178

EREF

Wl R REFERESHRBEE

38

BI5E -

(a)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS', SUPERVISORS' AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors' and supervisors' emoluments
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d) Mr. Tang Zhengpeng has re-elected as an non-executive
directors of the Company with effect from 28 May 2024 by
approval of annual general meeting of the Company.

(e)  Mr. Chen Lin has re-elected as a non-executive directors of the
Company with effect from 28 May 2024 by approval of annual
general meeting of the Company.

(f) Mrs. Yan Xia has been appointed as an non-executive director
of the Company with effect from 28 May 2024 by approval of
annual general meeting of the Company.

(g) Mr. Sun Heng has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 28 May
2024 by approval of annual general meeting of the Company.

(h)  Mrs. Gu Meijun has been appointed as supervisor of the
Company with effect from 28 May 2024 by approval of annual
general meeting of the Company.

Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees of the Group during
the year included one director (2023: one directors),
details of whose remuneration are set out above.
Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining four (2023: four) highest paid employees
who are neither a director nor chief executive of the
Company are as follows:

1N.EF5 -BEEREESME ©®

ESREEME (B

i E =)

(d) RBERABRBBERZHE FER
EEBESEARRBAFENTES
BE-E_WERA -+ /\BiEEER-

() MWANBIRRBFANGHAE B
SERBEAXRRBDIENTES B
—E_MERB_+N\BEER-

(f) RERBDRREFEREHE HKEX
TEEZERERRFNITES 8
ECMERAZ+HNBREER

(9 RBEABRBBFERGHIE RIESL
YEEREZTALRARBIULIERITE
FOE_E_NMERAZ+/N\BEE
BV

(hy BERBEBRIBEARGHE  BXE
RIEEZERERBEFE H-F
“HERAZ+HNBRERER-

IBEEEMERES

RERAEBRRERSHNEER
HE—%EF (CE_=ZF . —%=&
=) HHEF MBI £ HER
M (ZTE =4 4%) &= 5
BE GERRBTEERETBITHA
8) FANFMEEIBNT

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000
8E BE
“EomE ==
+=B8 +—A
=+—H =+—H
ILEE EFE
ARBFrT ARETT
Salaries and other benefits e REMBEF 36,787 25,065
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS', SUPERVISORS' AND 12.EE5 - BEEFERESME @

168

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Five highest paid employees (continued)

The number of the highest paid employees who are

IRREMEEE (B
%Mﬁ?ﬁ%?ﬁ@ﬁi#%%Z

not the directors whose remuneration fell within the EEHMES AZUMT
following bands is as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
No. of No. of
employees employees
8= BE
—EImE I =F
+ZA +ZHR
=+—A =t—H
ILEE IEEFE

BEAH BEAZ

Emoluments bands in Hong Kong Dollars B & & (U#E 7 (TF87T)) 51)

("HKD")

HKD4,500,001 to HKD5,000,000 4,500,001 7L £5,000,0007% 7T = 2
HKD5,000,001 to HKD5,500,000 5,000,0017% 7L £5,500,00074 7T 1 -
HKD5,500,001to HKD6,000,000 5,500,001 7T £6,000,0007 7T 1 -
HKD6,000,001to HKD6,500,000 6,000,0017% 75 £6,500,000% 75 1 -
HKD7,000,001 to HKD7,500,000 7,000,001 %75 £7,500,000% 70 =

HKD11,000,001 to HKD11,500,000 11,000,001 7% 11,500,000/ 7T = 1
HKD 19,500,001 to HKD20,000,000 19,500,001 7 %20,000,0007 7T 1 -

During the year ended 31 December 2024, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
executive directors, non-executive director, independent
non-executive directors, supervisors, or the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
(2023: nil). None of the directors, supervisors and chief
executive has waived any emoluments during the year
ended 31 December 2024 (2023: none).

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

RBEE_Z_MNME+-_HA=+—
HEFER AERTETME
FREAATES FATEF B
YATES BEENLLESH
MESFARSIMARERILM
AEEERFBSERE > S IF 5B
f‘:;_—ﬁ ) o HIEESE

%&ﬁﬁ!ﬁﬁﬁi_g_mi
+Z B =+—B L FERERERN
T (CET=ZF )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

13. DIVIDENDS 13. 18

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2024 31/12/2023

RMB’000 RMB’000
BE HE
—EME —F_—_=
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
ILEE EFE

ARBTFRT AR®TT

Dividends recognised as distribution ~ERERASDIKAIES :
during the year:

2024 Interim — RMB0.0919 “ETNEREERKE
(2023 Interim — RMB0.0734) ’éﬁx)\ﬁmo.wmn
per share (_7 “=F HRE—
SR AR #0.07347T) 420,041 335,485
2023 Final — RMB0.0943 CE_=FkRHKE—
(2022 Final — RMB0.079) SR AR®0.09437T
per share (CE2EZF KR E—
R AE®0.0797T) 431,011 361,080
Total wEst 851,052 696,565

Less: distribution to the shares hold & : A= 5E ARG 2 ED

by the trustees under a share FHEIFE 2R B
award scheme (Note 38(a)) 2k (M15E38(a)) (11,685) (9,565)
839,367 687,000
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, REBESTHRE ZXRBTEFE
a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 mANBE_Z_NE+"H
December 2024 of RMBO0.1235 (2023: RMB0.0943) =+—HBLFENRARESKR
per share, amounting to RMB564,473,000 (2023: AR®0.1235 0 (ZE - =& :
RMB431,011,000) in total, has been proposed by the AR ®0.09437T) » & /\)\Eﬂ%
directors of the Company and is subject to approval by 564,473,0007¢ (Z& __fﬁ AR
the shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting. #431,011,0007T) - Z 2 ZH ALK

BRTE R ;ﬁéﬁﬁ’]ﬁy?ﬁﬁ Rt
%> RIEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. 8REF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per FREVEB ANBIESRES R EE
share attributable to owners of the Company is based BRTSIRE T SIRTHE -
on the following data:
Earnings figures are calculated as follows: BA#EFEOT
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’000 RMB'000
#=E BHZE
—EmE —ZT_=
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
IEEFE IFEFE
ARBTFR AREBTT
Profit for the year attributable to NATHEA NEIEFER R
owners of the Company 2,066,668 2,001,906
Earnings for the purpose of MEREABIMSHNEF
basic earnings per share 2,066,668 2,001,906
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary ~ ZEBEHENTE :
shares:
Adjustment to the share of RS & A0S A
profit of subsidiary based on FE A Pt /&8 A B & A
dilution of their earnings per share - -
Earnings for the purpose of diluted  FLEREERF TS AT
earnings per share 2,066,668 2,001,906
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
‘000 ‘000
8= BHE
—E@mE —ZT_—_=
+—A +=A
=+—H =+—H
IEEFE EFE
Thg T B
Number of shares :ahg S 4=]
Number of shares for the purpose of FFTHEHEBREARBRFMEH
basic earnings per share D& E 4,538,682 4,529,075
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary ~ ZEBITHEMNTZE
shares:
Incentive shares RN 1R 10,025 11,025
Weighted average number of ordinary SLEtEEREERAME N
shares for the purpose of diluted ZERmETEH
earnings per share 4,548,707 4,540,100
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_MF+_HA=+—HLFE

14. B @

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

The computation of diluted earnings per share does
not consider the effect of non-vested share options
under the share option scheme of a subsidiary as set
out in note 38(b) as then would result in an increase in

15

earnings per share.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BEREEERNZ

nERE

stE ST R M5t

8(b)Fr & — R B ARz Bk ik
SFEIETZARBRERE HRE

FEE N

15. ME -BER=E

Furniture,
Fixtures
Construction Plant and Motor  equipment Freehold
In progress Buildings  machinery vehicles and tools Land Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HIE~
BEkE BHRE
TEIR BEY  BERES HE RIE i st
AEBTT ARBTT AREBTR ARETR ARETR AREFR ARETR
CosT 22
At 1 January 2023 R_E_=F-F—-H 769,558 3,844,293 3,485,130 81,789 1,101,007 8,490 9,290,267
Additions RE 491,269 39,277 116,532 6,356 92,089 - 745,523
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-BREAR - 10,138 1,497 6 3,468 - 15,109
Transfer 3 (257,621) 37,463 109,055 - 111,103 -
Transfer from investment properties ~ BREREYE - 41,831 - - - - 41,831
Transfer to investment properties EBRTREYE - (39,451) - - - - (39,451)
Disposals HE - (214) (61,123) (2,386) (46,996) - (110,719)
Exchange adjustments ERAEE 1123 1,261 3,255 444 1,206 144 7,433
At 31 December 2023 RZIZ_=F
+-B=1+-H 1,004,329 3,934,598 3,654,346 86,209 1,261,877 8,634 9,949,993
Additions RE 422,662 479 188,273 8,499 103,733 - 723,646
Transfer 3 (588,623) 92,296 459,753 41 36,533 -
Transfer from investment properties ~ BREREYE - 21,978 - - - - 21,978
Transfer to investment properties EBRTREYE - (14,922) - - - - (14,922)
Disposals HE - (12,452) (116,128) (11,212) (65,657) - (205,449)
Exchange adjustments ERBEE 1,100 2,368 5,926 66 2,604 255 12,319
At 31 December 2024 RZE_ME
+-B=1+-8 839,468 4,024,345 4,192,170 83,603 1,339,090 8,889 10,487,565
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % -FREREE ©

(continued)

Furniture,
Fixtures
Construction Plant and Motor  equipment Freehold
In progress Buildings  machinery vehicles and tools Land Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HE-
BEXE BHRRFE
TRIE EEYM RBERES HE RIE it &t

ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETR AREBTR ARETn ARETR

DEPRECIATION AND HERAE
IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2023 R_E_=£-F—-H 10,776 781,906 1,437,395 48,272 667,757 - 2,946,106
Depreciation provided for the year FNHRNERE - 139,352 294,638 5,850 147,905 - 587,745
Impairment provided for the year FNHRAERE 1,679 - - - - - 1,679
Transfer from investment properties ~ BREHRENE - 10,323 - - - - 10,323
Transfer to investment properties BRERENE - (7,718) - - - - (7,718)
Eliminated on disposals RHEREH - (90) (55,531) (1,632) (44,646) - (101,899)
Exchange adjustments EREE - 289 536 2 487 - 1334
At 31 December 2023 RIBZZE

+-A=+-H 12,455 924,062 1,677,038 52,512 771,503 - 3,437,570
Depreciation provided for the year FNHRNERE - 135,105 319,571 7,456 166,138 - 628,270
Impairment reversed for the year ERELRE 173 - - - - - 173
Transfer from investment properties ~ BREHRENE - 3,299 - - - - 3,299
Transfer to investment properties BRERENE - (3,982) - - - - (3,982)
Eliminated on disposals RHEREH - (1,478) (43,434) (9,765) (61,257) - (115934
Exchange adjustments EREE - 552 2,165 58 2,048 - 4,823
At 31 December 2024 RIBE-mE

+-A=+-H 12,628 1,057,558 1,955,340 50,261 878,432 - 3,954,219
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December 2024 RIZ2ZME

+-B=1+-H 826,840 2,966,787 2,236,830 33,342 460,658 8,889 6,533,346
At 31 December 2023 RIBZZE

+-B=+-H 991,874 3,010,536 1,977,308 33,697 490,374 8634 6,512,423
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress and freehold land,
are depreciated on a straight-line basis after taking into
account of their estimated residual values and at the
following rates per annum:

Buildings 3.2-95%
Plant and machinery 9.5-19.0%
Motor vehicles 19.0 -31.7%
Furniture, fixtures equipment 19.0 - 47.5%

and tools

As at 31 December 2024, total net book value of
property, plant and equipment served as collateral for
the Group's borrowing and bonds payable amounting
to RMB825,249,000 (2023: RMB846,376,000).

15.

ME-BERSRE ®

it E-BERRHBER (£
BIREKBRFRAE LRI UE
BMOETLET ARGt RIBREER %
TOERTE

EEY) 3.2 —9.5%
i 55 Fo 1% 23 9.5 — 19.0%
RE 19.0 — 31.7%
RE - BETEEE

kRIE 19.0 — 47.5%

R_E_NE+_HB=+—H" 1
AXREEERREMESERRN
ME- -BMERREBEHREDFELEE
A ANR1E-825,249,0007C (ZE ==
F . AR 1846,376,0007T) °

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. EFHEEE
Leasehold Leased Office
land  properties equipment Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HELH HEME MAERE ohy
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Carrying amount at HZE-=%—-A—-A2

1 January 2023 IREE 384,239 130,087 895 515,221
Additions RE - 22,357 4,247 26,604
Disposal HE - (7,780) (167) (7,947)
Depreciation charge nEER (10,138) (30,090) (2,094) (42,322)
Exchange adjustments ERAE - 1,588 1,164 2,752
Carrying amount at BZE=Z=&

31 December 2023 +ZB=+—-BZKR@EE 374,101 116,162 4,045 494,308
Additions "E 7,688 100,416 615 108,719
Disposal HE (3,777) (113) - (3,890)
Depreciation charge wEER (9,815) (38,973) (1,331) (50,119)
Exchange adjustments ERHEE - 1,641 112 1,753
Carrying amount at R-IBE-DmE

31 December 2024 +ZB=+—-BZKEE 368,197 179,133 3,441 550,771
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 16. FHEEE ©®

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2024 31/12/2023

Expense relating to short-term leases fZEAfHERIX
Total cash outflow for leases MERESMHAREE

For both years, the Group leases various offices and
equipment for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 1 year to 12 years. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

Details of the lease maturity analysis of lease liabilities
are set out in Note 36.
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RMB’'000 RMB'000
HE B5E
—EZmNE —_F_=
+=A +_H
=+—H =+—H
ILEE IEEE
ARBFrT ABETT
11,077 10,651
66,437 55,633
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE _Z _UF+_B=+—HLEFE
17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. 8 EWE

RMB'000
ARBFT

COST %N
At 1 January 2023 B _=F—HF—H 182,527
Transfer from property, plant and equipment E#BY% HE K& HE 39,451
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BEEYE -BERKE (41,831)
At 31 December 2023 R ZE_=F+"A=+—H 180,147
Transfer from property, plant and equipment EEB B HE K& E 14,922
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BEEME -KREMRE (21,978)
At 31 December 2024 RIE_HWFE+"ZA=+—H 173,091

DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2023 RWZEZ=F—F—H 41,742
Provided for the year FRERE 5,399
Transfer from property, plant and equipment B BEY % HE&K&E 7,718
Transfer to property, plant and equipment EEEYE -KREKRRE (10,323)
At 31 December 2023 RIB_=F+"R=+—H 44,536
Provided for the year FRERE 5,849
Transfer from property, plant and equipment B BEY % HE&K&E 3,982
Transfer to property, plant and equipment EEEYE -KREKRKE (3,299)
At 31 December 2024 RIEZWNFE+ZA=+—H 51,068

CARRYING VALUES fREE
At 31 December 2024 RIEZWNFE+ZA=+—H 122,023
At 31 December 2023 RIB_=F+"R=+—H 135,611
The fair value of the Group's investment properties of KEERBEMENR T IWFE+Z
approximately RMB149,437,000 as at 31 December B=+—HHNARFEBEHNAART
2024 (2023: RMB144,331,000) has been determined by 149,437,000 (ZE-_=F: AR
the Company. #144,331,0007T) * ZAFEEH
KRBIETE o
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17. 12 8YE ®

176

The fair value was determined based on the income
approach, where the market rentals of all lettable
units of the properties are assessed and discounted at
the market yield expected by investors for this type of
properties. The market rentals are assessed by reference
to the rentals achieved in the lettable units of the
properties as well as other lettings of similar properties
in the neighbourhood. The discount rate is determined
by reference to the yields derived from analysing the
sales transactions of similar commercial properties in
the PRC and adjusted to take into account the market
expectation from property investors to reflect factors
specific to the Group's investment properties. There has
been no change from the valuation technique used in
the prior year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current
use.

Details of the carrying value of investment properties
shown above comprise of buildings erected on and the
information about the fair value hierarchy as at the end
of the reporting period are as follows:

NFETRWEAEERE > MY FEFT
BEREMEEBNUmSESRRKE
EH LAY E TR 2 5 W m R 5T
ERBR - HHEEH2EYEZ
FIHE BRI SEE Rk & HthiE
LR 2 BB R T UETfh o BGIR
RB2EREREERAYEZHE
REDMABZWEmEFTUEE
W EKREE 2T HRAELHH
BOURMAERREYEZRTE

o

RIEFTZEMENRTER HE
EREDAHBEERE

REEHAR > U EPRIIREYER
REE (BREEREEZEREY) 2
HE RERAFEEKRZERN
g

31/12/2024 31/12/2023

—E_mE+-A=+-H “Z_=f+”"A=+—-H
Fair value Fair value
Carrying at level 3 Carrying at level 3
amount hierarchy amount hierarchy
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
fREE F=RATE REE FZRATE
AE®BFTR ARBFR ARBTRT ARBTE
Located in the PRC IR P E 122,023 149,437 135,611 144,331

The above investment properties are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at 3.2% per annum.
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18. GOODWILL 18. &
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB'000 RMB'000
8= BH=E
—EmME —F_—_=
+=A +—A
=+—H =+—H
IEEFE IEFE
ARBFR ARETT
Cost BN
At 1 January n—B—H 3,727,790 3,638,741
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary WE—ERB AR EE
(Note 39) (M5E39) - 34,872
Exchange adjustments PE ol B 102,839 54,177
At 31 December r+ZA=+—H 3,830,629 3,727,790
Impairment testing on goodwill BEREER S

The Group uses operating divisions as the basis for
reporting segment information. For the purposes of
impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to
the following groups of CGUs. The carrying amounts
of goodwill as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 are as

AEBEREEDEIERERSED
BEHWEE - [ETREAS
BERDEE LX‘UE%J*%%Q

R M B _NER T =
+-B=+—8" @éz%ﬁﬁm

follows: T

31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB'000 RMB'000

- o 1 - S
+=A +=8
=+—H =+—H
ARBTR AREBTT
Medical device products BERME®D 32,215 32,215
Orthopaedic products 2R E 173,966 173,966
Interventional products AN 3,345,486 3,249,640
Blood management products MmEEEER 244,090 237,097
Minimally invasive medical devices MBI B s 34,872 34,872
3,830,629 3,727,790

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment or
more frequently if there are indications that goodwill
might be impaired.

rEESFASBERE NHA

PRETEERSE
sa e Rl EURE

HE AEE
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18. GOODWILL (continued) 18. BE ©)

178

Impairment testing on goodwill (continued)

The management considers that groups of CGUs are
represented by different groups of subsidiaries for the
purpose of goodwill impairment testing.

The recoverable amounts of the groups of CGUs
of medical device products have been determined
based on a value in use calculation. The recoverable
amount is based on the financial budget approved by
management covering a 5-year period (2023: 5-year),
and discount rate of 14% (2023: 14%). The cash
flows for the following years are extrapolated using
a long-term growth rate of 2.5% (2023: 2.5%). The
key assumptions for the value in use calculations
are the discount rate and growth rate. The growth
rate is determined based on past performance
and management's expectations for the market
development.

The recoverable amounts of the groups of CGUs
of orthopaedic products have been determined
based on a value in use calculation. The recoverable
amount is based on the financial budget approved by
management covering a 5-year period (2023: 5-year),
and discount rate of 14% (2023: 14%). The cash
flows for the following years are extrapolated using
a long-term growth rate of 2.5% (2023: 2.5%). The
key assumptions for the value in use calculations
are the discount rate and growth rate. The growth
rate is determined based on past performance
and management's expectations for the market
development.

The recoverable amounts of the groups of CGUs
of interventional products have been determined
based on a value in use calculation. The recoverable
amount is based on the financial budget approved by
management covering a 10-year period (2023: 10-
year), and discount rate of 12% (2023: 13%). The
cash flows for the following years are extrapolated
using a long-term growth rate of 2.5% (2023: 2.5%).
The key assumptions for the value in use calculations
are the discount rate and growth rate. The growth
rate is determined based on past performance
and management's expectations for the market
development.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

18. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing on goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amounts of the groups of CGUs of
blood management products have been determined
based on a value in use calculation. The recoverable
amount is based on the financial budget approved
by management covering a 5-year period (2023:5-
year), and discount rate of 15% (2023: 15%). The
cash flows for the following years are extrapolated
using a long-term growth rate of 2.5% (2023:
2.5%). The key assumptions for the value in use
calculations are discount rate and growth rate. The
growth rate is determined based on past performance
and management's expectations for the market
development.

The recoverable amounts of the groups of CGUs
of minimally invasive medical devices have been
determined based on a value in use calculation. The
recoverable amount is based on the financial budget
approved by management covering a 5-year period
(2023:5-year), and discount rate of 15% (2023:
15%). The cash flows for the following years are
extrapolated using a long-term growth rate of 2.5%
(2023: 2.5%). The key assumptions for the value in
use calculations are discount rate and growth rate. The
growth rate is determined based on past performance
and management's expectations for the market
development.

The Group considered that no impairment loss should
be recognised since the recoverable amount was higher
than the carrying amount of each CGUs. Management
of the Group believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not result in
impairment.

18. & (&)

BEREH (@

mMEREEERIREELEEMUAR
ZAWElEEbZEREETEM
ET -agWhsBEUAEEEBHMHEZ
A (CEZ=F:A1%F) ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ
R BEIREI5% (CE =4 :15%)
%EW( Hﬁkﬁrﬁﬁfﬁﬁuuiﬁkﬁﬁ
25% (ZE-=%F:25%) WEH
BEXEB - HEFHEBEEZFE
BRAWIRERIERERIE R K]
HREFREAEEBHMBER
TERAMAEEE ©

MelBESM IR EEBEMAER
za el BhEREREBESEM
ErT-nWbsENEEBHEY
AFE (CTEZ=F . 7E) ﬁa‘EﬁE%ﬁ
T BRIREI15% (CE =4 15%)
AERo HﬁXEFEﬁIﬁﬁ,ﬁEhﬁﬁ
25% (ZE-=F:125%) WEH
EEEXEH THEHRBEZEE
REAMIBRERIERE - EEXT]
RAFREBENREEBHTHREREY
TEHAMMEE E o

REBERSH ANSREELESN
WA lEEESNREE "E
256&%%5@15@??“5021&%* HE
7 R ZEFRROVEMSERGE
Y4 *ﬂ:ﬂ?%‘ﬁﬁ&zﬂfﬁo
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. HtIEREE
Development Product Customer

Costs  Technology Relationship  Trademarks Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RENE EmKiE EEMME L o
ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETT

cosT K%
At 1 January 2023 RZIZZ=F—-H—H 162,680 1,468,454 1,213,997 181,079 3,026,210
Addition hE 28,376 50 - - 28,426
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 39) WE—EHBAE (H:E39) - 12,853 - - 12,853
Exchange adjustments ERAE 2,903 23,549 21,618 3,071 51,141
At 31 December 2023 RZFZ=F+ZF=1+-H 193,959 1,504,906 1,235,615 184,150 3,118,630
Addition HE 44,915 140 - - 45,055
Transfer i (98,709) 98,709 - - -
Exchange adjustments ERAE 6,380 41,655 36,444 5,431 89,910
At 31 December 2024 RIZZME+ZA=+-8H 146,545 1,645,410 1,272,059 189,581 3,253,595

AMORTISATION b
At 1 January 2023 RZEZ=FE-F-H - 626,013 586,679 75,863 1,288,555
Charge for the year FRES - 138,534 122,340 15,364 276,238
Exchange adjustments ERBEE - 10,418 10,929 1,351 22,698
At 31 December 2023 RIZZ=F+ZA=1-H - 774,965 719,948 92,578 1,587,491
Charge for the year FRFEY - 146,562 125,285 15,711 287,558
Exchange adjustments ERAE - 23,253 23,072 2,937 49,262
At 31 December 2024 RIZZWE+ZA=1—H - 944,780 868,305 111,226 1,924,311

IMPAIRMENT HiE
At 1 January 2023 RZEZ=FE-F—-H 15,479 - - - 15,479
Impairment loss recognised in the year FRAERDAESE 8,020 - - - 8,020
Exchange adjustments ERBEE 303 - - - 303
At 31 December 2023 RIZZ=F+ZA=1-H 23,802 - - - 23,802
Exchange adjustments ERBEE 702 - - - 702
At 31 December 2024 RIFZME+ZA=1+-A 24,504 - - - 24,504

CARRYING VALUES gl

At 31 December 2024 RIZZME+ZA=1—H 122,041 700,630 403,754 78,355 1,304,780
At 31 December 2023 RIZZ=E+ZA=1+-H 170,157 729,941 515,667 91,572 1,507,337

The above other intangible assets have finite useful
lives. Such other intangible assets are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the following periods:

Product technology 5-12 years
Customer relationship 8-11 years
Trademarks 11-12 years

As at 31 December 2024, total net book value of other
intangible assets served as collateral for the Group's
borrowing amounted to RMB1,028,834,000 (2023:
RMB1,243,622,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. R E AT DS

31/12/2024  31/12/2023

RMB'000 RMB'000
—E@mE —ZT—=
+ZA +ZR
=+-—H =+—H
ARBTR AREBTT
Cost of investments in associates KEME QBRI A 1,075,404 1,045,898
Share of post-acquisition profits and ~ FE{5 UL B % ] HE K
other comprehensive income Hih 2 mEmlA 528,498 415,483
Exchange adjustments PE 52 5 2 655 -

1,604,557 1,461,381

Details of the Group's associates at the end of the PHREHAR > AEBEREE QB+
reporting period are as follow: BaF

Proportion of

Country of Principal ownership Proportion of
incorporation/ place of interests held voting rights held
Name of entities registration business by the Group by the Group Principal activities
31/12/2024  31/12/2023 31/12/2024  31/12/2023
MBI, FEEFE FEEFE
BEAE AMFAEER @ FEERME FR7 R 2 L FIELLH TERH

“g-mE —T-cf Z$-mE -F-=%
+=A  +ZA  +ZB 1278
=+-8  =+-8  =4+-B =f-¢

Shandong Weigao PRC PRC 26.5506%  26.5506%  26.5506%  26.5506%  Manufacture and sale
Blood Purification of hemodialysis
Products Co., Ltd. equipment, dialyzer,
("Weigao Blood dialysis pipeline,
Purification”) peritoneal dialysis

fluid, and provide
related dialysis service

UEESDRFE HE FE RERBEMRBITR
HaRHBERAT & BT BT E
(TEEmREE) B EEENR LR

HARRBE TR

Hunan Smart Medi- PRC PRC 20.00% 20.00% 20.00% 20.00%  Information technology

label System services provider

Info &Tech Ltd.
("HunanSmart

Medi-label”)
HEERBEENE FE FE EERMRBRER
BRAR
(FhmERE)
Venacore, Inc. Israeli Israeli 21.37% - 21.37% - Developing a novel
("Venacore") occlusion device for
embolization
Venacore, Inc. Mes HMes REMERERESRN
(TVenacore J)
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20.

REEQRNED (&

Summarised financial information of a BEXBMEQATZHBEEHEBE
material associate
Summarised financial information in respect of the ERAEENERBE AT 2

Group's material associate is set out below. The
summarised financial information represents amounts
shown in the associate's financial statements prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs.

ERSEHINT - HERBE
ERREEAVBERSENRRZ
BMERRYHBRRPIITZEE -

The associates are accounted for using the equity BENBFRERENGETBR
method in the consolidated financial statements. EIN &
Weigao Blood Purification B I %R b
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000
“EomE T =
+=A +—A
=+—H =+—H
AREFRT AR®BTFT
Current assets MENEE 2,976,579 2,650,319
Non-current assets ERFEE 4,120,326 4,173,482
Current liabilities MENaE (1,311,757) (1,461,547)
Non-current liabilities JEREEE (97,626) (113,155)
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’000 RMB'000
HE HE
“EomE —ZT°=
+=A +—A
=+—H =+—H
ILEE IEFE
AREFRT AR®TFT
Revenue PN 3,604,018 3,532,223
Profit for the year KEE =K 427,452 325,916
Profit for the year attributable to B MR EEHEB A
owners of the Weigao Blood e AR FE A
Purification 427,452 325,916
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20. NEE ATIRIED @)
Weigao Blood Purification (continued) BS %R E (&)

EX@z BB ERERGRE M
WRESDVRES MR FCERZ

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest

in Weigao Blood Purification recognised in the REMERNHEK:
consolidated financial statement:
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’000 RMB’'000
—EmE —ZT”=
+=R +=A
=+—H =+—H
ARBTFR AREBTT
Adjusted net assets of Weigao Blood Ei& & F1E2
Purification KBAEEERE 5,528,080 5,100,628
Proportion of the Group's ownership AEBERESMEF1LZ
interest in Weigao Blood Purification  Ffr 5 # 4 & LE 41 26.5506% 26.5506%
The Group's share of net assets of AEBERGES DR F
Weigao Blood Purification BEFE 1,467,738 1,354,247
Goodwill mE 100,489 100,489
Carrying amount of the Group's AEBRRESMRARFCERZ
interest in Weigao Blood Purification BRE & 1,568,227 1,454,736

BHEFREAZBHEAR ZEMRSE

Aggregate information of associates that are

not individually material #
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—ENE —T-=F
+=B +ZR
=+—H =+—H
ARBTR ARBTT

The Group's share of loss and total ~AEBEEGLEEAZ@EMAS
comprehensive expenses 48 %R (476) (454)

Aggregate carrying amount to the FERRZEHENE 2

Group's interests in these associates 1% ~ A2 BREE 36,330 6,645
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

21. R B ¥R

31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’'000 RMB’000

—EpmgE =
+ZA +ZR
=+—H =+—H
ARBTR AREBTT
Cost of investments in joint ventures & & & & B EARAS 361,730 361,730

Share of post-acquisition loss and FELNEREER

other comprehensive expenses HtE2mEMAx (51,556) (12,555)
Exchange adjustments PE 52 5 2 894 143
311,068 349,318

RBEHR > FEBNGEREST
BOT -

Details of the Group's joint ventures at the end of the
reporting period are as follow:

Proportion of

Country of Principal ownership Proportion of
incorporation/ place of interests held voting rights held
Name of entities registration business by the Group by the Group Principal activities
31/12/2024  31/12/2023 31/12/2024  31/12/2023
ML SEEFRE SEEFRF
BEEAE AMFAEER  FEERME PR R a2t FIELLH TERH
ZECME —T=fF ZEME _—T_=F
+zA  +ZB  +zR  +0E
=t-8  =t-8 =+-B =t-H
Qingdao Songyuan PRC PRC 38.50% 38.50% 38.50% 38.50% Investment in companies
First Phase Medical in medical industry
Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership)
("Qingdao Songyuan”)
BEBILRERER HE HE RERBRTERT
REAHBLE
(BIRE®)
(IE&Mmik)
Weihai Shangyuan Fund ~ PRC PRC 19.80% 19.80% 19.80% 19.80%  Venture capital business
EEHTES HE FE BIERE
Shandong Baiging Energy  PRC PRC 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% 50.00%  Technical service provider
Technology Co., Ltd
("Baiqing Energy")
WEREBEEREARE FE FE R R TS (L IE R

8 (MAEsER)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE_—Z

21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Note:

On 24 December 2020, the Group entered into a partnership
agreement, together with other six parties to establish Qingdao
Songyuan to invest in company running business in medical
industry. The total subscribed capital of Qingdao Songyuan is
RMB2,000,000,000, of which RMB770,000,000 is subscribed
by the Group. As at 31 December 2024, the Group invested
RMB308,000,000 to Qingdao Songyuan, the remaining
RMB462,000,000 is to be invested within 5 years after the
establishment of the partnership.

On 12 October 2020, Wego Healthcare entered into a partnership
agreement, together with other seven parties to establish Weihai
Shangyuan Fund. The total subscribed capital of Weihai Shangyuan
Fund is RMB303,000,000, of which RMB60,000,000 is subscribed
by Wego Healthcare. As at 31 December 2024, Wego Healthcare
invested RMB30,314,000 to Weihai Shangyuan Fund.

The Group invested in Qingdao Songyuan and Weihai Shangyuan
Fund as limited partner. The directors considered that the interests
the Group held over Qingdao Songyuan and Weihai Shangyuan Fund
carry rights that are substantively the same as the investee's ordinary
shares and provides current access to the returns associated with its
ownership interest in the investee, which is driven by the investee's
financial performance.

In October 2022, the Company invested in Baiging Energy with
amounts of RMB25,000,000, and hold 50% ownership interests over
Baiging Energy.

The Group had joint arrangements with other parties whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangements and have rights
to the net assets of those joint arrangements, the Group accounted
the investments in Qingdao Songyuan, Weihai Shangyuan Fund and
Baiging Energy as interests in a joint venture using the equity method.

R e MBI MIEE

TME+ZA=+—HILEFE

21. REEEFENER @

By ST :

B _EE+_BC +@E| AEBHEH
CUAVSEIRVA=E - 275F FEMR MU
éﬁAm$EJ§ﬁ¥Eﬁ’/}ao%%mi}%m@
B ARA NRH2,000,000,0007 > E b
AER#770,000,000c AL R
Z_NE+ZA=+—H AEBQEER
RSB AR 1308,000,0007T > Hx A RIE
462,000,000 ciEE B EMIIEBSER

W2 _ZF+HB+H »Wego
HealthcareE B H Mt A ]I & Bi1RE
TEBETES - BBETEENER
MEARA ARM303,000,0005t HF A
E#60,000,000;tFHWego Healthcaresd
oM _TMWE+ZH=+—H>Wego
HealthcaremE /S H Tt EEREARKE
30,314,000z °

FERRERGEAREEEMNRKE
BHTEZ EFRXR FEEFAESEN
T&@@ﬁﬁﬁim%ﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁwg
BRAFEEMARNER > W2 45 EE
BHEHAERRKRESNMEE B HNER
R IR WIRE SN B RIFES -

RIZEZZE+B > AR REBBER
B &EFEA AR HE25,000,0007T jthﬁfﬂa |
BEIRS0%MIPR A #E o

rEBREHEMASTEGERH BRI &7
HRRHAAHBERRERNZEGER
FRFEEFTARN AEREREDER
REBRIR BB TEERABERIR
BEARIBN—BEELENED -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 21.RAaZEXMNERE »®

Summarised financial information of material
joint venture

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group's material joint venture is set out below. The
summarised financial information represents amounts
shown in the joint venture's financial statements
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

EXGECEZMBENEE

ERTEENERSERE M
ERSEHINT - HERBE
ERREEAVBERSENRRZ
BELEYHTRRPIITZEE -

Qingdao Songyuan BERE

31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’000 RMB'000

—ENE —F—=
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
AREFT AR®BTFIT
Current assets MBS E 190,558 345,827
Non-current assets ERBEE 508,861 429,489
Non-current liabilities EREEaE (1,305) (1,304)
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000
BE BqE

—EZmNE —F_=
+=A +—A
=+—H =+—H
ILEE IEEE
AREFRT AR®TFT
Loss for the year KEEEE (75,900) (20,780)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENT‘§
IEE SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE
21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 21. R 8E ¥R @&

Summarised financial information of material BEAXAETLEZMBEEREE (B
joint venture (continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial Xtz R ER RN GRS T

information to the carrying amount of the interest
in Qingdao Songyuan recognised in the consolidated

WRESDVN S SNRED 2 RE
BERYEHER

financial statement:

31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’000 RMB’'000
—EmE ==
+=R +=A
=+—-B =1—-8
ARBTFR AREBTT
Net assets of Qingdao Songyuan BEEMEREZEEFRE 698,114 774,012
Proportion of the Group's ownership ZAEERS SRR
interest in Qingdao Songyuan Ffr B RE#E 2 LE 38.5% 38.5%
Carrying amount of the Group's FEBNREELRER 2
interest in Qingdao Songyuan IREE 268,774 297,995
Aggregate information of joint ventures that BENEFREAZEEEEZELRE
are not individually material *h
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’000 RMB’'000
—E@mgE ==
+=AR +=A
=+—H =+—H
ARBTR ARBTT
The Group's share of loss and total ~AEEEGEELEZERS
comprehensive expenses “EER (9,029) (1,223)

187




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE M BwRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR

22. BRAFEFABHEAEZE

VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS MTA
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’'000 RMB’000
—EBomE —T=
+ZAH +ZR
=+—H =+—H
ARBTR AREBTT
Unlisted investments: JFEMEE !
— Foreign exchange swap (note a) —ShEER AR (Ffysta) 13,192 (7,653)
— Interest rate swap (note b) —F)E G (fIsEb) - 371
— Investment funds (note ¢) —KREEE (fiztc) 72,987 86,910
— Structured deposit (note d) — AT (MEEd) 217,509 -
303,688 79,628
Analysed for reporting purposes as:  FLE2HRBMN DA :
— Current liabilities —nEmaE - (7,653)
— Current assets —mEEE 230,701 371
- Non-current assets —IERBEE 72,987 86,910
303,688 79,628
Notes: Mo T -

188

As at 31 December 2024, the Group held foreign exchange
swaps which were issued by several reputable commercial banks
to fix exchange rate of USD against RMB at multiple maturity
dates in the year ending 2025.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group held an interest rate swap
which was issued by HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited
to exchange floating interest rate with fixed interest rate,
at maturity date of 21 June 2024, with principal amount of
RMB300,000,000.

As at 31 December 2024, the amount of RMB56,967,000
represents11.76% (2023: RMB67,449,000 represents 11.76%)
of the interest in a health science fund. The amount of
RMB16,020,000 represents 4.47% (2023: RMB19,461,000
represents 4.47%) of the interest in an investment fund.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group held a structured deposit
with principal amount of RMB216,970,000 (2023: Nil).

(@ MKIZTZWE+ZRA=+—H %&
BEAETEEREFNEERITAE
THNERBURBE_S "AFILF
EZEINPAAHEEETRARKRE

Ef'io

by MIZI=%F+"BA=+—H &&
E$5EHSBC Bank (China) Company
Limited# 789 2 fiBA -2 M
FRBEZ+—HZAMERHR UEE
MEZMFHAE XEBEAARE
300,000,0007z °

(0 MIZE-_WNFE+-_B=+—H %%
AR #56,967,00070 (ZE_=4:
ANER#67,449,0007T) I5RERZ2E
F211.76% (ZE2ZT=%F :111.76%)
B o%éﬁ)\&ﬁéﬂs,ozo,oooE ==
— =% ARE¥19,461, 0007_5) f5—
BREES24.47% (ZCEZ=4F:
4.47%) HER o

(d) HRIZZHWUE+-B=+—H &&
ERAAEESARK216,970,000
THEBEER(CE=ZF D) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE _Z _UF+_B=+—HLEFE

23. DEFERRED TAXATION 23. EERIA
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated REIGREHBIR AR B TIRIE
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax MESEKREBESHKEE - B
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is IR ENIEE 2R ERIBAR DT
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial WHe

reporting purpose.

31/12/2024  31/12/2023

RMB’'000 RMB'000
—EomE —TT=F
+=A8 +ZA
=+—B =+-8
AERBFRT ARBTT
Deferred tax assets RIEIRIRE E 248,543 207,102
Deferred tax liabilities RIEIRIBEE R (89,628) (165,794)
158,915 41,308
The followings are the major deferred tax assets and RABREFERBEREFE B
liabilities recognised and movements thereon during the BANTERIEMEBEEERBER
current and prior reporting year: HEEHFEHNANT .
Timing
difference Timing us. Timing
of property, difference of Share-hased Unpaid research and Interest difference of
Deferred  plantsand  intangible ~ Unrealised  payments bonus development Impairment  deduction  Deductible  changesin  Contract Others
income  equipment assets profit reserve  andsalary  expenses  of assets [imited losses ~ fairvalue liabilities  Provision (note) Total
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
bEN: LR S 1)
REEN BYEEND FER  AEEN T ERE HEHE N ATEEY At

£
BEWA  BEE  BEE B ORER  RES Bx HEAE RE BR  BHE GHEE 2 (s &t
ARBTT ARBTR ARBTR ARNTR ARRTR ARETR ARKTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARMTR ARNTR ARETR ARKTR

AT January 2023 W-B-Z£-B- 7869 (60028 (50151 44083 56343 1879 (4317) 55338 SIleb 4405 @) 8416 878 36181  (385%)
(Charge) credit to (IRE) sARE

profit or loss (2,566) 5847 39,665 11,765 8,71 - (4,059 931 20,847 (37,446) 1,500 (2,165) - 31,027 82,497
Exchange adjustments EQEY - 3 (39%) 6 41 - (138) s 1006 545 - - 148 3 (063

At 31 December 2023
5303 (54834)  (214481) 55854 65,525 1879 @114 64703 73,021 1124 1414 6,251 8,876 67,781 41,308

(Charge) credit to

it or loss (8 33 B (141 1160 SGEH 43 BB 43 B3 W S0 S09B 105%
Bxchange acustments EREs Soam e n o - s 101 - W )
At 31 December 2024 RIERE

+2BIH-8 S8 (479 (6703 4 TR0 1819 (4443 630 70005 M8 (1979 6482 MG 120088 158915

Note: The others mainly comprised transaction cost, prepaid expense, Mzt HMFrEGQEEBMEREE TN

inventory capitalisation adjustment etc., due to the timing BEEFENRZHA BRI 7
differences under U.S. income tax code. EEAHAES
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

23. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 23. IRIETRIA (&)

190

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to the following
deductible temporary difference as it is not probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

PO E BASR o BE A R LA AT 40 AR0R
URNEERIELERBESE  HS
FEER A AN B] S A XK EH I H07R
BRER

31/12/2024  31/12/2023

RMB’000 RI\/IB’OOO
—EImE —ZT-=fF
+=A +—A
=+—H =+—H

ARBTFR ARBTT

Arising from impairment of assets BEEREESE
As at 31 December 2024, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses of approximately RMB341,132,000
(2023: RMB203,253,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The above tax
losses will be expired in the following years:

25,511 34,836

AT mME+__A=+—H">
NEBHEAEJHIKE R ERNH
EAAEERBEENAREK
341,132,0000 (ZE =% : AE
#203,253,0007T) ° R EEFER
R AR B9 F B R o B0 R AR TE S
BRERDELERESEE M RIEE

BRER T EREIE :

31/12/2024  31/12/2023
RMB’000 RMB’000

—EmE —ZT"=
+=B8 +—H
=+—H =+—H
ARBFrT ARETFT
2024 —ENE - 8,160
2025 “ERHHF 15,008 20,728
2026 ZERE 47,291 51,595
2027 :%:t& 36,592 39,742
2028 —EN\HF 83,028 83,028
2029 —E-hEF 159,213 -
341,132 203,253
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

TME+ZA=+—HILEFE

24. EWRMBEHERE

AER FRmEREAN STIET
MERAEHZ MEHEFOEBE
BESTULUANT—E=F-F/HA
BEZ 28 RARBAMREOHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE_—Z

24. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

The Group entered into certain finance lease
agreements as a lessor for equipment. The average
terms of finance leases entered into usually range from
one to three years. All interest rates inherent in the

leases are fixed at the contract date over the leases HAEEE o
terms.
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’000 RMB'000
“EomE —Z”=
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
AREFT AR®TFIT
Analysed for reporting purposes as: FLE2EFHRBE DA !
Current assets TRBNE 50,556 42,963
Non-current assets ERBNEE 12,970 15,302
63,526 58,265
Present value of
Minimum minimum lease
lease receivables receivables
31/12/2024 31/12/2023 31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
EHRERAERE EWREHREREZRE
—EImE -5 ZEZME —Z”=F
+Z=A +-8 +=A +-R
=+-H =+—H =+—-8 =t+—H
AR®Fr AREF T AREFr ARETFTT
Finance lease receivables BUREREHEEE
comprise
Within one year R—FR 62,507 59,159 58,111 53,878
In more than one year but not BB —EBRBBME
more than two years 13,136 15,761 13,021 15,352
75,643 74,920 71,132 69,230
Less: unearned finance income i : RESERLE Wi (4,511) (5,690) - -
allowance for credit losses FEBEER (7,606) (10,965) (7,606) (10,965)
Present value of minimum lease EWREHERIEZ
payment receivables RE 63,526 58,265 63,526 58,265




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

24,

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Effective interest rates implicit in the above finance
leases range from 6.00% to 7.00% per annum (2023:
6.00% to 7.00% per annum).

Finance lease receivables are secured over the

24. BEWRMBEHERE @

FiimERERNS 2 ERFENEN
F6.00EE7E (CE_=ZF 1 F
FZENF6.00EZE7.00E) °

PR R B 10 B R IE AP A 1% 25 1F R

e REBAASFERBAREND
BT HERBIERET®-

machineries leased. The Group is not permitted to sell
or re-pledge the collateral in the absence of default by
the lessee.

A _E_WE+__B=+—H">
FEWNREAERENREERRE
EWRBAMBAIIREBEARE
31,262,0007c (ZTEZ=F: AR
56,046,0007T) ©

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of the
finance lease receivables due from fellow subsidiaries is
RMB31,262,000 (2023: RMB56,046,000).

Details of impairment assessment of financial lease FE IS B & 7E B R IB B E T (A 5F 1F &
receivables are set out in Note 42. B EE42 ©
25. LOAN RECEIVABLES 25. B E =
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—E-OE —ZT-=
+=A +—A
=+-B =+--H
AREFRT AR®TFIT
Fixed-rate loan receivables (note a) EEMEEWER Ffsta) 677,200 740,601
Variable-rate loan receivables (note b) ZFEF|KEWE R (Hiztb) 62,032 71,506
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEREEE (11,414) (22,440)
727,818 789,667
Analysed for reporting purposes as: FLE2HRBE DA !
Current assets MENE E 314,427 642,476
Non-current assets ERBNEE 413,391 147,191
727,818 789,667

192  SHANDONG WEIGAQ GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

' LEREERERAE S FRRBRHERAT 2024 £§R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE_—Z

25. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of
RMB163,203,000 represents the loan provided to third
parties secured by various equipment, carrying the effective
interest rates range from 6.00% to 8.50% per annum. (2023:
RMB369,528,000, the effective interest rates range from
6.00% to 8.50% per annum). As at 31 December 2024, the
carrying amount of RMB513,997,000 loan receivables from
fellow subsidiaries, carrying the effective interest rates range
from 6.00% to 8.50% per annum (2023: RMB371,073,000,
carrying the effective interest rates range from 6.00% to
8.50% per annum).

Included in the balance were loans provided by one of the
subsidiary of the Company with total principal amount of
RMB29,692,000 (2023: RMB29,692,000) to the eligible
employees of Weigao Orthopedic to partially fund the
subscription of share award scheme granted to them, with a
period of five years, bearing interest at the benchmark lending
rate that published by the People's Bank of China. As at 31
December 2024, the accrued interest of the loan included
in the balance of loan receivable was RMB3,013,000 (2023:
RMB2,062,000). Details of the share award scheme of Weigao
Orhopaedic are set out in Note 38 (c).

Included in the balance was a loan provided by the subsidiary of
the Company with principal amount of RMB25,575,000 (2023:
RMB17,027,000) to an employee of Weigao Orthopaedic with
a period of five years. The loans are unsecured, bearing interest
at the benchmark lending rate that published by the People's
Bank of China. As at 31 December 2024, the accrued interest
of the loan included in the balance of loan receivable was
RMB3,752,000 (2023: RMB2,508,000).

Details of impairment assessment of loan receivables are set out
in Note 42.

R e MBI MIEE

TME+ZA=+—HILEFE

25. BEWE R @
MIEE -

(a)

ATE_E+_"_BA=+—H k@
B AR1163,203,000Ci5IR I F 5
ZHZETMURREERER B
PMREF R EHE N F6.00EES.50E (Z
T =4 AR#369,528,00075° 8
MREFZEHE N F6.00EES.50E) ©
A_EE+_"_HB=+—H EW
ERREECEERERNBATE
FARE513,997,00070 > BEREFX
HENF6.00EEL.50E (T - =
F: AR371,073,00070  BEREF)
K& [E /) F6.00EE8.50F) °

EHRBEAAT BB ATIBES
BERZEAERREERESASEBAR
129,692,000 (ZE_=F: AR
#29,692,00070) 2 B 7 LAER D #
IEFTHERMD BB HENRE 5
BHARE RETEARRTAHGHE
EEFMNEFBE - R B _UE+_—
B=+—HB st A\EKREREHIE
STEXRFEAARY3,013,0007T (=
7__¢ AER%2,062,0007T) ° &

BRI BB 5T B A s B H R M 5
38(c)O

EHReEEAATINRBATHES B
H-—%REERHEASEBARE
25,575,00070 (ZEZ=F: AR
17,027,0007) BB AEFZER -
ZEERALERE RRTEARE

TRMHNEEERMEHB KN F
:IEE-?—*)%_-I— H - st AR U

EREGZEFERFNEAARE
3,752,000n<_7_:fo:./\ﬁm¥
2,508,0007T) ©

EWE TR BTG BEIN M2
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

26. INVENTORIES 26. 78

31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000

—EmE —FT—-=
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
AREFT AR®TFIT
Raw materials R 663,619 705,362
Finished goods LAY on 1,864,806 1,789,990
2,528,425 2,495,352
As at 31 December 2024, total net book value R_E_NFE+_B=+—H"H

of inventories served as collateral for the Group's
borrowing amounted to RMB390,613,000 (2023:
RMB351,879,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE _Z _UF+_B=+—HLEFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27. FEUR & 5 BR ¥ B B fth FE Uk =x

>

31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000

—EE —FT_—_=
+=A +=A
=+—A  ={—8
AREBFRT AR®TFT
Trade receivables PR E 5 BR R 6,366,909 5,970,229
Less: Allowance for credit losses W EERERE (288,530) (281,742)
6,078,379 5,688,487
Receivables from factoring business R B{RIZ 75 > fE N IE 211,909 231,400
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (2,205) (2,722)
209,704 228,678
Other receivables Hih e a 856,258 772,379
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEREEE (3,282) (2,336)
852,976 770,043
Prepayments SEANE O 745,064 740,969
7.886,123 7,428,177

Analysed for reporting purposes as:  FLE2HRBH DA :

Current assets MENBEE 7,832,235 7,365,212
Non-current assets ERBNEE 53,888 62,965
7,886,123 7,428,177

As at 1 January 2023, the gross carrying amount
of trade receivables from contracts with customers
amounted to RMB5,789,493,000.

Included in trade receivables are an amount due from
fellow subsidiaries of RMB3,253,329,000 (2023:
RMB3,157,466,000), an amount due from a holding
company of RMB268,000 (2023: RMB3,076,000), and
an amount due from an associate of RMB4,338,000
(2023: RMB22,669,000), an amount due from
associates of a holding company of RMB185,000 (2023:
RMB236,000).

R_E_=ZF—HA—H KEEHE
SHNEKRE ZRMVEIREES
ARI&5,789,493,0007T ©

FEWE ZRARBEERKBRKTEBA
FlFIE AR K3,253,329,0007T (Z
T_=F: ANREH¥3,157,466,000
7T R —EERATSREBEAR
268,000 (ZE_=F: AR
3,076,0007T) K EW—E B E QA F
=18 AR 184,338,000 (ZE ==
F: ARM22,669,0007T) KEUK
—BERABNBREATDREAR
#185,0000 (ZE_=F: AR
236,0007T) ©
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27. U & 5 BR ¥ B B fth FE Uk =x

(continued)

Included in receivables from factoring business
are an amount due from fellow subsidiaries of
RMB160,000,000 (2023: RMB126,000,000). The
amounts are due in one year with effective interest
rates range from 6.00% to 8.00% per annum (2023:
from 6.00% to 7.00% per annum).

Included in other receivables are an amount due
from fellow subsidiaries of RMB458,559,000 (2023:
RMB449,055,000), an amount due from a holding
company of RMB5,077,000 (2023: RMB20,967,000 ),
an amount due from an associate of RMB5,413,000
(2023: RMB6,816,000), an amount due from associates
of a holding company of RMB27,599,000 (2023:
RMB299,000). The amounts are unsecured and
repayable on demand.

Included in prepayments are an amount paid to
fellow subsidiaries of RMB62,480,000 (2023:
RMB55,022,000), an amount paid to a holding
company of RMB1,368,000 (2023: nil), an amount
paid to an associate of RMB10,601,000 (2023:
RMB2,877,000), and an amount paid to an associate of
a ultimate holding company of RMB13,558,000 (2023:
nil).

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
net of allowance for credit losses presented based on
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

I8 (&)

KEREBER 2EKRREBEBSE
EWRBAMBAIIREBEARE
160,000,00070 (ZE-=F : AR
#126,000,0007T) o ZEMIER —
FREE EREFNENF6.00E
FERE(CE_=F FMENF
6.00EZE7.00F) °

HtEWSIBEERKBRKBA
FIFIE AR #458,559,0007T (Z=
— =4 : A\NR%449,055,0007T) *

BN —RBEZERABDFREAREK
5,077,000 (ZE =% : AR
20,967,0007c) ~ FEWN— BB E A B
=B ARBES5,413,0000 (ZEZ=
F . ANR16,816,0007T) KIEW—
BERABNBE AT B AR
27,599,000 (CE_=F: AR
299 00075) o EMIEABIKIF R

EREEE-

BANFEEEENBERNBRABTR
I8 AR 162,480,000t (Z&E =
F . AR%55,022,0007T) * B —
BIERABIFHIEANR 1,368, 00075
(_7_:5 M) BN —EEE

NERIEAERK10,601,0007T (:
T =4 ANR2,877,0007T) &
EN—RBRALZERABDNEZE A

IR IBEARTE13,558,0007T (Z =
:EE D) o

REEHAR BERH 2B
BEM (CHBIEEBERER <
BREE DT ©

31/12/2024  31/12/2023
RMB’000 RMB'000

—E@mgE 2=
+ZAH +ZR
=+—H =+—H
ARBFR ARBTT
0 to 90 days 0ZE90K 3,201,138 2,756,267
91 to 180 days 91ZE 180K 1,185,534 1,105,295
181 to 365 days 181F365% 928,260 1,037,082
Over 365 days 365K L E 763,447 789,843
6,078,379 5,688,487
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R ERMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_MF+_HA=+—HLFE
27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27. FEUL B 5 BR 7R By H {th FE UL 7R
(continued) I8 (&)
As at 31 December 2024, included in the Group's trade RIEBEZWNFE+ZA=+—H =X
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying EENEKRESRIEHEEIE
amount of RMB1,740,903,000 which are past due EEE%ME?%/\EW 740,903,000
(2023: RMB1,864,982,000). T (ZE2EZ=Z=H: AR
1,864,982,0007t) B 38 #AHY FE UK AR
o
As at 31 December 2024, total net book value of ATE_WNE+_"_B=+—H"1F
trade and other receivables served as collateral for the AAEERERIEHRRNEWE FIR
Group's borrowing amounted to RMB241,017,000 MR EMENRIBNERE S EEEE
(2023: RMB227,834,000). AARM241,017,0007T (Z& _E

F . ARM®227,834,0007T) ©

As at 31 December 2024, trade receivables amounting A _E_WE+_BA=+—H" )\
to RMB503,288,000 (2023: RMB321,997,000) were FE#503,288,0007 ¢ (Z&E =
factored to independent third parties on a non- AR %321,997,0007T) E’JFEH&,%%
recourse basis. The Group has derecognised these trade RARECREEREEENBHIE=
receivables in their entirety as in the opinion of the FRIB-ARNBIEERA AEH
directors of the Company, the Group has transferred ERERERERERGZERAEFA
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership EBEREZERINEZRAMTEENE
of these trade receivables to the counterparties AEDREE KRB ALELAEEE
under the non-recourse factoring agreements. Losses HHUBEERZERNEZ RN
related to derecognition of the trade receivables were BOHMEREINE 2 R 2 HE B
RMB3,669,000 (2023: RMB2,081,000) which were BAARKE3,669,000 (ZE =
charged to profit or loss. £ AR®2,081,0007T) » BER4E
R o

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other FE UK B8 53 BR TR e EL At FE WL R TE BY B
receivables are set out in Note 42. BT L EFIEE I ET420

28. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 28. MAFEHAHMBEUEA
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE SPEZEHIA
INCOME

31/12/2024  31/12/2023

RMB'000 RMB'000
- o 1 - S
+=AH +ZA
=+—H =+—H
ARBTRT ARETT
Unlisted investments: JFEMEE
— Bank bills receivable —EWERTT R 310,797 344,211
All bills received by the Group are with a maturity KEEBWINAEREEAN—FA
period of less than one year. EIHA -
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28.

29.

DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the Group endorsed
bills receivable of RMB342,223,000 (2023:
RMB113,006,000) for the settlement of trade and other
payables. In the opinion of the directors, the Group has
transferred the significant risks and rewards relating to
these bills receivable, and the Group's obligations to
the corresponding counterparties were discharged in
accordance with the commercial practice in the PRC and
the risk of the default in payment of the endorsed bills
receivable is low because all endorsed bills receivable
are issued and guaranteed by the reputable PRC banks.
As a result, the relevant assets and liabilities were
derecognised. The maximum exposure to the Group
that may result from the default of these endorsed bills
receivable is equal to their carrying amounts. During
the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group has not
recognised any gain or loss on the date of transfer
of the derecognised bills (2023: nil) and no gains or
losses were recognised from the continuing involvement
(2023: nil). The endorsement has been made evenly
throughout the year.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has no pledged
bank bills receivable to secure the letter of credit (2023:
RMB13,599,000).

PLEDGED/RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2024, pledged/restricted bank
balances represent deposits pledged to banks to
secure trade facilities such as bills payable and letter
of credit and short-term borrowing amounting to
RMB395,089,000 (2023: RMB754,975,000). The
pledged bank deposits will be released upon the
settlement of relevant bank borrowings.

The pledged/restricted bank balances carry fixed interest
rates which range from 0.01% to 5.21% per annum
as at 31 December 2024 (2023: 0.01% to 5.30% per
annum).

28.

29.
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BAFEFAEMBEUA
HEZEBIA @

A _E_WE+__B=+—H">
AEBESTERRERARE
342,223,000 (ZE_=F : AR
#113,006,0007T) UL NENE S
R RHMEARIE  EERRA
AEBEEEBRERMZERRERDN
B AR KO % mAEBHERE
HFHNETEREBELEHEEIESL
KRG -ERFTEECHERKER
HHEERFNTEIETEH K
ER NESERKEERHIREX
R R o Rt BRI E E K
EEEBEER - AEBE I ERZ
EEHERKEELEREXINLAR
FIESNEANABENREKRERE.
BHE_ZEZ_NNFE+ZHA=+—H
EEE REBWARNEZDKRIE
MIBEE T AER TR EIEEE
(ZE=F &) B EBFE
2EERREIEER(CE =

&) HECRENHYEEL -

RIZEZME+ZA=+—H &
SETESRFBBERTRERAR
RIS EAE (C2=F' AR
13,599,0007T) °

BERZIRFIRITER

ATE_NME+_A=+—H'B
W ZRAIBRITEGRIEIRRT
BITUERESME BINENE
BREBBEKREHRER 2ERE
%8 A R1%395,089,00070 (ZE ==
F . ANR®754,975,0007T) ° B3
HIRITERB RN EEERIEBITER
BRRR o

RZE2E-_WE+_"_H=+—H"B
HiR/ ZRABITEGIZE T F
ENFEHEFE0QIEES21E (ZE
—=F:8%0.01EE5.30=) 5t
=
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30. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits
and short-term deposits for the purpose of meeting the
Group's short-term cash commitments, with amount
of RMB4,942,882,000 as at 31 December 2024 (2023:
RMB4,797,461,000), which carry interest at market
rates range from nil % to 1.38% per annum (2023: nil
to 1.90% per annum).

As at 31 December 2024, included in cash and cash
equivalents are deposits of RMB102,455,000 (2023:
RMB80,721,000), carrying interest rates at 0.22% per
annum (2023: 0.25% per annum), in an associate of a
holding company.

As at 31 December 2024, cash and cash
equivalents served as collateral for the Group's
borrowing amounting to RMB99,536,000 (2023:
RMB101,094,000).

Term deposits

The Group's Term deposits were issued by banks with
original maturity over three months, with amount of
RMB2,837,428,000 as at 31 December 2024 (2023:
RMB2,191,270,000), which carry interest rates range
from 0.5% to 5.7% per annum (2023: 1.30% to
5.40% per annum).

30. RERMITLHEER

RERBREEEN

BEhBRcEBYWEERR®
B & B S IR & K 55 YOS B
ﬁﬂ'\)\&%ﬁxﬁﬁ@ﬂ‘A’ :_’E_EE
+_B=+—H:EABAARK
4,942,882,00070 (ZEBE =4 A

R i#%4,797,461,0007T) ’&Fﬁi@—ﬂ
ENFERFIBE(CE_=F T
F1.90E) st B e

A _E_WNE+_A=+—H"18
TRIBEEEBYEE—TEERA
Blz—RBBEARzEE AR
102,455,000 (ZE-_=F: AR
#80,721,0007T) » ¥ EFEF|F0.22E
(ZTEZ=F . FHMZE0.25F) 5t 2
B’]?‘_rﬁ)\o

R_E_NE+_B=+—H"H
EREEERIRERNIREERIRE
ZBY A ANR®99,536,0007T (—
==& ARE%101,094,000
7o) °©

EHTF™M

A TE_WE+"B=+—H'&
EENEBREFARETET RE
HAA=ZERU L  £EAARE
2,837,428,0007 0 (ZE_=%F: A
R #2,191,270,0007T) @ R EF| =

NFOSEESTE (CE_=F: F
FENTF1.30EES.40F) stE o
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31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 31. B8 SR KR Hfth & (3%
I8
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables REIEHR HEZHHAZ2T|NE
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the T EZERMNBERE DITAOT !
reporting period:
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—EBomE =
+=H +—R
=+—H =+—H
ARBTFR AREBTT
0 to 90 days 0ZF90k 833,749 874,314
91 to 180 days 91&E 180K 122,226 92,060
181 to 365 days 181&E365K 81,612 72,292
Over 365 days 365K k£ 129,899 118,744
Trade payables FEfT B F IR 1,167,486 1,157,410
Bills payable BRI 926,475 612,207
Other tax payables HAEIRIE 44,386 138,266
Construction cost and retention BEgARENRESE
payables 48,503 75,264
Selling expense payables FEEIHER 846,875 995,471
Consideration payable for the WHEHSMERNZRE
acquisition of Weigao New Life (F5E39(a))
(Note 39(a)) 206,000 309,000
Obligation arising on acquisition of WEIIEFEEZEE
Zhejiang Quantum (Note 39(b)) (FF5E39(b)) 21,053 20,363
Repurchase obligation under the HERGDEE (ERR
Incentive Share Scheme Mi5E38(a)) B N2 BB EE
(as defined in Note 38(a)) 69,166 103,478
Payables for cash-settled share-based WIRE&4#EE 2~ MR & E R
payments (Note 38(b)) TRz FEFIE (Mf5E38(b)) 46,101 -
Other payables H fth f& S TRIE 1,097,806 1,134,688
4,473,851 4,546,147
Analysed for reporting purposes as: ~ FLIRE B DA -
Current liabilities mENAE 4,294,068 4,319,784
Non-Current liabilities ERBER 179,783 226,363
4,473,851 4,546,147

The normal credit period taken for trade purchases is 30
days to180 days. All the bills payable will mature within
six months.
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31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 31. BB B IRM R EH tFE R
I8 (&)
Included in trade payables are amounts due to ENEZERBIEERNBRRNER
fellow subsidiaries of RMB322,074,000 (2023: BB AR #322,074,0007T (ZF
RMB389,649,000), an amount due to an associate of =% : AR"389,649,0007T) *
RMB11,426,000 (2023: RMB42,592,000), an amount N —BEHERIREBARE
due to a holding company of RMB1,718,000 (2023: 11,426,000t (T2 Z=F: AR¥
RMB1,047,000), and an amount due to an associate of 42,592,0007T) ~ FET —REIZER A F
a holding company of RMB4,433,000(2023: RMB7,000). MIBEARM1,718,0000 (&=
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable £ ARM1,047,00070) K EN—
within credit period. BERABNEE R ABIMIBBARE
4,433,0007c (ZZ - =F: AR
7,0007T) cZEMBEAEIEF R
EERREEHRRERER-
Included in other payables and consideration payable Lt & {5 7R T8 e W B el 1 o A PR A
for the acquisition of Wegao New life are amounts ZREBEENREZNBERBNR
due to fellow subsidiaries of RMB264,875,000 (2023: I AR 15264,875,0000 (ZE =
RMB343,698,000), an amount due to an associate F: ANE#343,698,0007T) ~ FEAT
of RMB478,000 (2023: RMB17,000), an amount due — S AT IE AR 478,000
to a holding company of RMB13,585,000 (2023: T(ZEZ=F: AR®17,000
RMB105,515,000), and an amount due to an associate 7o) B —EERABHREBAR
of a holding company of RMB8,172,000 (2023: #13,585,0007c (ZEZ=F: A
RMB28,657,000). The amounts are unsecured, interest- K 1105,515,0007T) K& —RI4E
free and repayable on demand. AN —REBE QB MEBEBARE
8,172,000t (ZZE_=F : AR
28,657,0007T) % EMIEA MK
H-RBERRERFEE
32. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 32. 88 &fE
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000
“EI@E ==
+=R8 +—H
=+—H =+—H
AR¥BFTr ARETT
Sales of goods & 358,325 434,222
Current liabilities mENBaRE 349,943 424,492
Non-Current liabilities rEII=KE 8,382 9,730
358,325 434,222
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32.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued)

The revenue recognised in the current year relates
to carried-forward contract liabilities amounted
to RMB424,492,000. Contract liabilities of
RMB349,943,000 will be recognised as revenue during
the year ending 31 December 2025.

Included in contract liabilities are amounts received
from fellow subsidiaries of RMB35,994,000 (2023:
RMB38,552,000), amount received from ultimate
holding company of nil (2023: RMB225,000) and
amount received from an associate of a holding
company of RMB6,000(2023:nil).

32. 898 FE ®

AEERINAEESHEENR
RABWAB ANRME424,492,000
T -RBE_ESE_HAE+_-A1
=+—HLEEE GHEEARE
349,943,000 B HEER A WA ©

SHEEEEERERITE AT
5 A R1835,994,0007 ¢ (ZE ==
F . AR #38,552,0007T) ~ BN E
BRIERANBIRIBE T (CE =5
AE1225,0007T) & EWIZRL A E
ZHE AT HE AR 6,0007T (Z
T_=FIF)o

33. BORROWINGS 33. B
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31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’000 RMB'000
ZE-mE ==
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
AREFT AR®BTFIT
Bank borrowings at variable-rate BZEAIE s ENIRITRER
(Note a) (fF5Ea) 1,238,520 2,217,721
Bank borrowings at fixed-rate R EEFM st BaIRTT
(Note b) (Bt 5Eb) 1,767,813 828,923
3,006,333 3,046,644
Secured (Note c) Bk (HsEc) 2,686,992 3,003,624
Unsecured EE 319,341 43,020
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33. BORROWINGS (continued) 33. 8T (®

The borrowings are repayable as follows: ERCEIR THHARERE -
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’000 RMB'000
—EDNE —ZE-=
+=A +—A
=+—H =+—H
ARBTR AREBTT
Within one year S —FRN 1,202,862 2,546,750
More than one year but not R—FEM T EBRBERE
exceeding two years 226,437 499,894
More than two years but not RmEN T EBRBBERE
exceeding five years 1,577,034 -
3,006,333 3,046,644
Less: Amount due within one year A §'Jj%}m§jj,%ﬁ
shown under current liabilities —E DN EIHERI =R (1,202,862) (2,546,750)
Amount due after one year shown §'J?\%';3Fuu§jj,%1fﬁ'ﬁﬁ\ F& 5
under non-current liabilities HERY R 1,803,471 499,894
Notes: BT -

(@) As at 31 December 2024, the variable-rate borrowings carried
interest rates ranging from 1.25% to 7.44% per annum (2023:
3.20% to 7.81% per annum).

(b) As at 31 December 2024, the fixed-rate borrowings carried
interest rates ranging from 3.01% to 3.95% per annum (2023:
2.95% to 3.43% per annum).

(c) On 31 March 2020, the Company entered into a loan
agreement with International Finance Corporation, in the
aggregate principal amount of RMB500,000,000, bearing fixed
interest rate of 3.43% per annum. The loan is secured by equity
interests of Jierui, Shandong Weigao Financial Leasing Co.,Ltd,
Shanghai Weigao Financing Lease Co.,Ltd that owned by the
Group. On 25 August 2022, the Company and International
Finance Corporation agreed to replace the Weigao Purui equity
interests pledge with property, plant and equipment of the
Company as collateral. As at 31 December 2024, the total
carrying value of the pledged property, plant and equipment of
the Company was RMB571,490,000(2023: RMB599,815,000).

As at 31 December 2024, the balance included loans of
RMB1,397,000(2023: RMB8,913,000) secured by pledge
of certain of the Group's finance lease receivables of
RMB1,397,000 (2023: RMB8,913,000).

(@ MIZZ@EE+ZB=+—H %
MEGBREBANEF1.25EET 442
ZHENHE(CEI=ZF: 853.208
F781E) 5tBe

(b)) RIZFZEE+ZA=+—0 EBE
MEBRENFEF3.01EE3.95E
AR (ZEZ=F 8F295EF
3.43E) R

(00 MNIZTEZZE=ZB=+—H ' &x2QH
HERSHABI L ASEEA AR
#500,000,000Tc I E R % B E &
MEHBIABE-ZEFULRERES
NEZ2H LURESHEREESREAR
REsHEmEMAEERATMNRKRE
REER - RN _ZE-_ZH#N\BZ+H
H> K"Tﬁilﬁ’ﬂﬁnﬁ/‘ﬂﬂguﬁ
NENYE BEERBENAES
i%ﬁ%&f*f’ﬁ%%&%ﬁﬂ%oﬁé:%:mﬁ
+ZA=+—H > AABEEHEY
¥ BEARENREREAARTE
571,490,0007T (ZEZ=F : AR
599,815,0007T) ©

ﬁ\_g_ﬂlﬁ‘f’ B=+—8> &&
BREEHRARE,397, 00075( z
—=4%: AR%8,913,0007T) ' @B
HIFARERMARK1,397,0000 (ZF
=% AR%8,913,0007T) 2&F
FEWRRE T S RUBIRMHER -
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33. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(@]

(continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the balance included short-term
borrowing of RMB300,000,000 secured by pledge of certain of
the Group's restricted bank balances of RMB368,300,000.

On 12 September 2019, Argon entered into Tranche A
Credit Agreement (“Tranche A"), with principal amount of
USD325,000,000 (equivalent to RMB2,267,265,000), bearing
variable interest at Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR")
plus 2.125% per annum, and includes a revolving credit facility
bearing interest at the same rate. As of 31 December 2023,
the amount utilised under the revolving credit facility was
USD33,000,000 (equivalent to RMB233,729,000). WW Medical
and Healthcare Holdings Corporation (“WW Holding”) entered
into Tranche B Facility Agreement (“Tranche B") with principal
amount of USD75,000,000 (equivalent to RMB523,215,000),
bearing variable interest at SOFR plus 2.4% per annum. As at
31 December 2023, the outstanding principal for Tranche A
and Tranche B amounted to USD311,067,000 (equivalent to
RMB2,203,194,000), with maturity within one year.

Both Tranche A and Tranche B had been refinanced in February
2024. Tranche A have an aggregated principal amount of
USD140,000,000, and the revolving credit facility have an
aggregate principal amount of USD50,000,000 with four
years term. As at 31 December 2024, the principal of Tranche
A and the revolving credit facility outstanding amounted to
UsSD169,750,000 (equivalent to RMB1,237,749,000), bearing
variable interest at SOFR plus 3.10% per annum, and includes
a revolving credit facility bearing interest at the same rate. The
refinance of Tranche B have an aggregate principal amount of
RMB1,000,000,000, and have been held by WW Cayman which
has a maturity of three years. As at 31 December 2024, the
principal of Tranche B amounted to RMB975,000,000, bearing
fixed interest at 3.95% per annum.

As at 31 December 2024, the outstanding principal for Tranche
A and Tranche B amounted to USD52,875,000 (equivalent to
RMB385,545,000), with maturity within one year.

33. thrk (&)

PEE :

(@
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()
(&)

AR ZE+RB=+—0 &R
IR HAfE AR 1300,000,0007T
ERIKEAER AR K368,300,000
T2 REIRITEGFRMHIER

A ZE—NENAA+IZH BRI
A% %874325,000,000F 7T (HEER A
R #52,267,265,0007T) BTranche A
E81#% s (TTranche Al) »FBIFIX
RIERBRMENZE (TSOFRY) MMF
FE2125E  RBEMNERFE
ENBEREEEME-BHE_Z =
F+ZA=+—H BIREEME
BRNEHHEEE 433,000,000
(FBE M AR®233,729,0007T) °
WW Medical and Healthcare Holdings
Corporation (T'WW Holding J) 5] 274
£ %E7/75,000,000E 7T HEERAR
#523,215,0007T) BYTranche BRI E 1%
#% (TTranche Bl) » ¥ EFFE ASOFR
MEME2AB - R =F+=
B =-+—H>Tranche AKTranche BHJ
KRIEEBA£311,067,0005E 7T (*E%HA
AR 2,203,194,0007T) R —E R
HAo

Tranche ARKTranche BEIE R ZZ M
FZRETHERE °Tranche AMZEX S
4BEE#140,000,000E 70 MBEREE
BB AR 4EEE%A50,000,000% 7T
HREAME R _Z_ME+_1
=+—H > k1Ei&ETranche AREIRE
EmMEA$£%%4169,750,000% 7T (18
FRNAE®1,237,749,0007T) 7328
FEBSOFRMEFIEIN0E R EBIE
LAEBFAEFENBREEMRE -
Tranche BERIEASBREAARE
1,000,000,0007T > HWW Cayman#f
BOHRAZFE R _T_NEFE+_
B=+—H">Tranche BEZEA AR
#975,000,0007T > @& HFF]FE%3.95
Eo

R_E_WmE+_RA=+—8"
Tranche AXTranche BHIFR{EIE 4
$52,875,000% 7T (lHEN AR
385,545,0007T0) I —F W EIHF
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33. BORROWINGS (continued)

The Company guaranteed the borrowings under
Tranche A and Tranche B. Certain of Argon's assets
serve as collateral for borrowings under Tranche A and
Tranche B.

On 31 December 2024, the details of Argon's assets
pledged are as follow:

33.

&k (@

KAT)ATranche AKTranche BREY
ERIRHAER - BIRETEENEAS
Tranche AJTranche BIE F{&#iHY
WG

A TE_WNE+"_A=+—HB
BRSREENFBAOT

31/12/2024

RMB'000

—E-mE

+=A

=+—H

AREFT

Property, plant and equipment MR REE 253,759
Other intangible assets HittmE&EE 1,028,834
Inventories =78 390,613
Trade and other receivables FEW B 5 R B FE W18 241,017
Cash and bank balances BERIRIT4EER 99,536

On 6 December 2024, the Company and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into loan
agreements with International Finance Corporation
for a seven-year long-term loan facilities with a loan
amount of USD210,000,000 and USD40,000,000
respectively. As of 31 December 2024, the relevant loan
facilities remained undrawn.

RZE_MWE+_AHBH &R
SIRAATIZEEMNBATIME
AL EEH P A210,000,000%FE 7T K&
40,000,000 Tt FHEHER
MELAERESRATTILERR
FoHE_ZE_WNE+__A=+—
H> HEERRE I ARIEE

34. BONDS PAYABLE 34. E{IR%H
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’'000 RMB’000
—EI@E ==
+=8B +ZA
=+—H =+—H
ARBTR AREBTT
Green Bonds REES 996,833 995,405
The bonds are repayable as follows: B55AR MHHARBER -
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’000 RMB’'000
—EmE "=
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
ARBTR ARBTT
More than two years but not exceeding  BEMEEBRBREE
five years 996,833 995,405
205




206

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

34. BONDS PAYABLE (continued)

35.

On 31 March 2020, International Finance Corporation
agreed to subscribe the senior secured green bonds
(the “Green Bonds”) issued by the Company in the
aggregate principal amount of RMB1,000,000,000
with maturity in seven years. The Green Bonds bear
fixed interest rate of 3.59% per annum, payable semi-
annually. The effective interest rate of the Green
Bonds is 3.75% per annum. The Green Bonds, are
secured by equity interests of Jierui, Shandong Weigao
Financial Leasing Co.,Ltd, Shanghai Weigao Financing
Lease Co.,Ltd, being subsidiaries of the Group. On 25
August 2022, the Company and International Finance
Corporation agreed to replace the Weigao Purui equity
interests pledge with property, plant and equipment of
the Company as collateral. As at 31 December 2024,
certain property, plant and equipment of the Company
with a total carrying value of RMB571,490,000 (2023:
RMB599,815,000) were pledged.

34. EHM&H (@
CCECBE=R=+—HER
SHADFAEBELRDUTH

Ke#EEA AR®1,000,000,000
THELBEERGEEES (46
BE)) HARATE FEBEHEMN
ElEEHNZKA359%  SF¥ELN
—RoGBEHFHNEREFNEXS
3.75%0%52@%%M$%Mf’&

A2 LEHeRERAEAR
@E)i'zt SEHEMEEERRER
al i HER- N _E -
FN H > 7 » 5 58 E E
s S /NI L7/
il ﬁ@z I RS A E
/ A %:m¢+ H
S+ —H AATEELEAAR
#571,490,0007T (_7__fE A
R #8599,815,0007T) & T¥ %~

=
4]

||
AE-F%H:
fﬂ]tH:H

e

/7,
| |

=

A DS am 58

%
o
-H
ED R
o

e =

I

BERGHED T Eo
DEFERRED INCOME 35. IEEUA
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—EDE —ZE-=
+=A +_—H
=+—-B =+—8
AREFRT AR®TFT
Arising from government grants R B B B 65,009 67,346
Analysed for reporting purposes as:  FL2HRBEDHA !
Current liabilities mEas 9,053 7,369
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 55,956 59,977
65,009 67,346

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
received new government grants from the government
authorities amounting to RMB28,882,000 (2023:
RMB14,883,000) to subsidy the Group's certain
capital expenditures. The Group has complied with the
conditions attached to the grants as at 31 December
2024 and will transfer the grants to profit or loss over
the useful lives of the related assets. During the year,
the Group recognised these government grants to
other income amounting to RMB31,219,000 (2023:

RMB29,741,000).
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BE_Z_NF+_"_F=+—H1
FE > AEEBKRIBFEFIARLE
28,882,000 0 (ZE—=F: AR
14,883,000@2%@117@% ' U
AEBNETEAREIIRMEME -
ATE_NE+_A=+—H’XK
EECETHBNKE KRG Wi
EEEZYGEHAFRNSEZ
EHPEB@m - FRN KEERE
ZEBNEHEHMBRAZ AR
31,219,000t (ZEZ=F: AR
29,741,0007%) °
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R ERMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE _Z _UF+_B=+—HLEFE
36. LEASE LIABILITIES 36. HE &R
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB'000 RMB'000
—FImE 2=
+—-H +ZA
=+—H =+—H
ARBFrT ARETT
Lease liabilities payable: EEGHEE%E:
Within one year S —FER 38,937 26,587
Within a period of more than one S—FEM EERBEMmF
year but not more than two years HAFEI A 38,300 23,673
Within a period of more than two RWmEU EBREBBRE
years but not more than five years HAFEI A 62,633 40,004
Within a period of more than five years #3® 1 S H/E A 50,110 37,004
189,980 127,268
Less: Amount due for settlement B A AREEEMR
within 12 months shown 128 B R EIHR4S S 1Y
under current liabilities I8 (38,937) (26,587)
Amount due for settlement after FAIEREIBEMNI12ER
12 months shown under MR BPEENRIE
non-current liabilities 151,043 100,681

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates
applied to lease liabilities range from 4.75% to 8.29% eSS

HEaEEBMNMEFEE
BENF4.75EFE8.29E 7 [E

SEX

per annum (2023: from 4.75% to 7.05% per annum). (ZEZ=F . BFNTF4.7BZE
7.05/E) o
37. SHARE CAPITAL 37. &7
Nominal Number of Total
value of non-listed  Number of number
each share shares H shares of shares Value
RMB RMB'000
& JELH
R EE [abE ] HIRE B LA EEE \ EfE
AR ANRETFT
Registered, issued and fully =i EZTRER :
paid:
At 31 December 2023 RIZZ=%F+ZH
=+—H 0.1 48,300,000 4,522,332,324 4,570,632,324 457,063
At 31 December 2024 RZBEZNE+_A
=1+—H 0.1 48,300,000 4,522,332,324 4,570,632,324 457,063
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a) Share Award Scheme of the Company

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

On 17 November 2014, the Company adopted
its share award scheme (the “Incentive Share
Scheme”) at an extraordinary general meeting.
The maximum number of non-listed shares which
may be issued under this scheme is 223,818,616,
representing approximately 4.76% of the issued
share capital of the Company, as incentive shares
for key personnel of the Group, and other persons
approved by the remuneration committee (the
“Selected Employee”), in batches in subsequent
years. The Incentive Share Scheme lasts for 10
years starting from 17 November 2014. Further
detail are set out in the Company's announcement
dated 15 August 2014.

According to the Incentive Share Scheme, incentive
shares will be granted to the Selected Employee,
subject to non-market performance vesting
conditions.

For Selected Employee with a domestic identity,
the trustee will administer the incentive shares,
which may be organised in forms of companies
owned by the employees, limited partnership, or
qualified trust companies in the PRC. For Selected
Employee with a foreign identity, the trustee will
hold the incentive shares outside the PRC.

38. Uhgfn & BRI
(a) ZAFRAY 2

WZ_E—NE+—HB++tH>
i N/NESI N =R S = 2
HRMm BBt & (THE
PEtE)) o RIEZETEI A
TIELETRDZRZHES
223,818,616 HHE RN EARQ
TEBTRAENL76% KR
BEEOMBTEALREER
FEAERFNEZEZHE
BWEMA (TZm AL ZHE
B0 o MENR MM stBIZ FE8 A
BE-_Z—NWE+—HB++tH
T+ F o E—F X BENA
NEIBHA_Z—NE/)\ B
+HBZ AR

RS B MBI
BEFTHEEERBEEN
BRTETSHAC

MEBERERSHHXm AM
S REAREEBER®D
HA e EEHEANWAT X
TENEREBATHNEGE
BIESERRB A INIEL - 55
BRI EDHRmAME R
5B AR TE TR Bl IR SN 5 B B ED

B17 ©
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 38. URgin /BRI (@
(a) Share Award Scheme of the Company (a) FARRMHE:E (&

(continued)
Incentive Share Scheme - Batch 1

On 11 December 2015, the Company granted
first 45,960,000 incentive shares to 111
Selected Employees, with the consideration of
RMB101,112,000 at the issue price of RMB2.20
per share. The fair value of the incentive shares
as at grant date amounted to RMB104,121,000.
For grants of shares that are satisfying specified
vesting conditions, the difference between the fair
value and the issue price of the vested shares is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the periods
in which services are expected to be rendered by
the relevant employees. The granted shares are
vested in five tranches with the vesting date on 31
December of each year from 2015 to 2019, the
vested shares are excisable after two years lock up
period following vested.

Three partnerships were set up for the purpose of
administering the Incentive Share Scheme — batch
1 and holding the shares, and hereby regarded as
trustees of the Company and consolidated by the
Group accordingly.

As of 31 December 2024, the outstanding
incentive shares under the Incentive Share Scheme
were 14,456,000 (2023: 14,456,000).

BB a8 — F—#

W_E—AaAFE+_-8H+—
H A aalasikHmh AR
22002 BTEBEERRE
45,960,000R% % B B 10 F
1M1&Tm A KBAARKE
101,112,0007c c IR F H ER
ZHERDZATFEARE
104,121,0007c c FL % H B RY
Bl EHBRENKRMOMS
NTFEEERBRMDETE
ZENEBEREREHER
BERMIRFEEREH AL
HIgEIMRAAMZ - KEMR
MDEDSHFLUNRE > BB H
HAE_ZE—HTEE_ZT—N
FREZ+-ZB=+—H'1B
BRI AN R B %W EH
TEHE ME T UITE

DS _F?A%’&ﬂfﬁ/“%%’?ﬁ
BB STEI - - RFE
R MRIL }F‘“Jtt%}%ﬁ%zﬁ’z}
AlZRFEARRAILHAEH
fRe AlRe

BHE_ZT-_WWEFE+ A
=+—8 BBk 8 IE
TZHE KT @%ﬂ‘bﬁx_ﬁ%

14,456,000 (Z & - =
14,456,0008%) ©
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(a) Share Award Scheme of the Company

(continued)
Incentive Share Scheme - Batch 2

On 21 October 2021, the trustees subscribed the
newly issued 48,300,000 non-listed shares for a
total consideration of RMB172,914,000 at the
issue price of RMB3.58 per share. On 24 December
2021, the Company granted 48,300,000 incentive
shares to 83 Selected Employees.

Based on the Incentive Share Scheme of the
Company, the Company will repurchase the shares
granted to the Selected Employees when they
do not satisfy the vesting conditions. The total
consideration paid by the Selected Employees are
recognised as liabilities, and will be reversed by
portion to other reserve when the shares vest each
year. During the year ended 31 December 2024,
RMB34,583,000 was reversed for liabilities to other
reserve (2023: RMB34,583,000).

The fair value of the incentive shares at the grant
date amounted to RMB197,490,000 as determined
by the market price of the Company's listed shares.

For grants of shares that satisfy the specified
vesting conditions, the difference between the fair
value and the issue price of the vested shares is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the periods
in which services are expected to be rendered by
the relevant employees. The Group recognised
incentive share expenses of approximately
RMB22,891,000 (2023: RMB42,426,000) in profit
or loss during the current year.

Nine limited partnerships were established for
the purpose of administering the Incentive Share
Scheme - batch 2 and holding the shares, and
hereby regarded as trustees of the Company and
consolidated by the Group accordingly.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

38. e B E BRI (&
(a) FTAFRGHEEE (B

B AR 17 518 — F

R _E-_—F+ 8=+ —
H RTEAUERKRMD AR
3. 58 c 2 ETEREN
217H948,300,000/8 3 £
MM BRAEAARE
172,914,0007c° R & ——
FH+ZHAZ+HEH > AREER
H48,300,0000% H Bh AL 15 F83

BEmAe

RIEAR QB R BN IRDETE
AT EESHEAREDIS
ERBEHERLOBEREFHK
EWRM - ZT@mARMIZAH
HMRBEERIAEE UENE
ERNDEBRRERLLHDEH
MEE - SE S _NE+—
A=+—HLEE>» AR
34,583,000 cHEGEEHREEH
MEE (CE-=F AR
34,583,0007T) °

REFTEHEPEZHEBRDZA
TEARM197,490,0007C 5
wKERATD EHRNDZS
BMETE-

MIRHTEIEERBBRHEN
Bomes 2 FELABEHB
OB TEZENEZERTE
HEHEMEERHEREN
SEBHANUBEG IR AR
ToRAFEE > AERRER
HRAEBROEZIHOARKE
22,891,00070 (ZCE =4 :
AR #842,426,0007T) ©

EEMBRMEEI -5 Tt
REBRMNKRILZNE AR
BRAF BERRE/ERT
2R ANKRE I B A E R
G AfRe
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 38. Uie R S BEBRMTR (®
(a) Share Award Scheme of the Company (a) FARRMHE:E (&
(continued)
Incentive Share Scheme - Batch 2 BRI EE - FZH (B
(continued)
The following table discloses movements held by TRIEBEFRNEEFRFEE
employees during the year: (=R
Weighted
Number of average

incentive grant-date
shares fair value

HKD
MEFE9
25 Eh #=FHE
P8 H AFE
BT
Unvested as of BE-_ZE-_mNE—HA—H
January 1, 2024 ESa1E] 19,320,000 9.24
Vested BB (9,660,000) 4.59
Forfeited or cancelled 22 W e B 5E i - -
Unvested as of g#ZE—_FE—_ME+—-8
December 31, 2024 =+—HRKREE 9,660,000 11.56
Unvested as of January 1, 2023 HE_Z_=-F—HF—H
RN 28,980,000 8.75
Vested B E (9,660,000) 7.30
Unvested as of BHE_E2-_=H#+—"A
December 31, 2023 —t+—HEXFB 19,320,000 9.24
The number of exercisable incentive shares as of BHE_ZE_@mWE+ B
December 31, 2024 was 38,640,000.00 (2023: =+ — H WA 17 & B B AR 17
28,980,000). #1H 738,640,000.0008 (—Z=

T =4 :28,980,0008%) ©
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)
(b) Share Option Scheme by WW Cayman

On 26 July 2018, WW Medical and Healthcare
Company Limited ("“WW Cayman”), a subsidiary
of the Company, adopted a non-qualified share
option plan (the “Share Option Scheme™) primarily
to provide incentives to directors and eligible
employees of WW Cayman and its subsidiaries,
which shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years from the adoption date. Under the
Share Option Scheme, a committee designated by
the board of directors of WW Cayman may from
time to time in its sole discretion grant options to
eligible employees.

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme shall not exceed 8% of the shares of WW
Cayman in issue at closing date. Unless approved
by the shareholders of the Company, the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of
WW Cayman's shares in issue.

No consideration is payable on the grant of an
option. Options may be exercised at any time
after vesting and will be cancelled if not exercised
before the 10th anniversary of the date of grant.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

38. AR B/ERMER @
(b) WW Cayman BYBEBRIE:T 2

RZE—-—NFELtHAZ+<H"
KRB B ABWW Medical
and Healthcare Company
Limited (F"WW Cayman J) %44
JFIREBR 2 (THE e
&) > EFEAWW Cayman
RENBRAENEERGE
REBIRE B > BXAEHH
FE10FANB M - IRIEFER S
2> WW CaymanEEEETE
NEEFIARK2ERNER
SEREBRLBRE

RIFERESTE TR HE
RENERERKRNEHETFE
BERXEHBBEETHWW
CaymanfR19 H98% o BrIEIE K
NEIRBE RTFTELHEE
HERE (BIEBTEMERTT
RV B R AE) AT m I E M
NREEBHERNEZETRET
FITHRMDBEH A EBBWW
CaymanB 175 HI1% ©

REBREERSZINE B
fg 1 ] 1% BR B 12 B9 1 ] B
718> BEfERPHR H B HEE W
105 Z A A7 fE > RIS 1 5F
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)
(b) Share Option Scheme by WW Cayman

(continued)

The exercise price of each batch of option is
determined with reference to the total cash
consideration paid by the Company in the
formation of WW Cayman for the acquisition
of Argon, taking into account the relevant costs
and expenses involved; however, it shall not be
less than the fair market value of a share in WW
Cayman on the date of grant.

In January 2024, the board of directors of WW
Cayman authorised a plan for certain executives
to accelerate the unvested share options and
subsequently exercise these options in exchange
for a cash payment over three years, beginning
in the year ended 31 December 2024. The
cash payments are generally determined based
on the marketable share price at the date of
payment, as established by a third party valuation
specialist. 621,000 share options subject to the
cash payments are reclassified from equity-settled
share-based payments to cash-settled share-
based payments upon the modification date. The
incremental expense from the modification was
UsD1,302,288 (equivalent to RMB9,495,000), and
the liability for the payables for the cash-settled
share-based payments recognised amounting to
UsD10,558,738 (equivalent to RMB76,990,000)
upon the modification date.

During the year ended 31 December 2024,
payment made for the cash-settled share
options was USD4,236,238 (equivalent to
RMB30,442,000).

As at 31 December 2024, the number of shares
in respect of which options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme was 2,681,081, representing 6% (2023:
3,359,014, representing 7%) of the shares in
issues at that date.

38. AR B/ERMER @
(b) WW Cayman BYBEBR1E:T 2

(nﬁ)

SHERENTEEILER
ERNBRLILWW Caymankd
WEEZSIRMENHNIRENE
WER > 5T R e B B AR AR K
HXZET ; Am EAEFER
%2 H HEWW Caymanf&{n 8y
NEMIHZEE

RZE_IOFEF—HB >WW
Cayman=EEZE g #t )F — BT
goRBE_ZT_WE+_H
—t+—HLEFERKB KBS
FTHITAER=ZFEAMRERRX
SEEERETNHBITEZ
LHERE UWBREIREI™R e
ReETR—RETA TN
EEE 2EEEEERRP
B HHEERBEENNTR
HEEWEEREBHK RN
FoH K2 621,00010 B PG RETL
EBITHPEAUEREENR
DRREFDEAURELE
BRI R BT EE 212
S5MH%%41,302,288%7T (lHS
© AR #9,495,0007T) EIME
FSTEHEMURSEENRS
TRZENHREBEBREIZEE
#510,558,738% 7t ((HERN A
R #76,990,0007T) °

BE_Z_WWE+ A
=+—HLEFEE R4
BB 194,236,238
T (FBER AE30,442,000
JT) °©

RIEZWFE+ZA=4+—
H REBERESE RN
BERTEZERESIRZ
e E A2,681,0818 > 14
RZHEHEETRHBZ6% (=
LT =4 :3,359,014% > 14
7%) ©
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 38. Uie R S BEBRMTR (®
(b) Share Option Scheme by WW Cayman (b) WW Cayman HfERR #5181
(continued) (48)
Details of specific categories of options, including EREREED (BERERE
both equity-settled and cash-settled, granted BRI REZUEEER
under the Share Option Scheme are as follows: EUREEB 2 BRE) 518
mE:
Date of Vesting Exercise
grant period Price
EHAMH BE TR
Time-based options 26/07/2018 4 years Usb10.00
REEERERE 4F 10.00% 7T
Time-based options 30/10/2019 4 years Usb10.00
R B2 R IR 4F 10.00% 7T
Time-based options 13/03/2020 4 years Usb10.00
R ERERE 4 10.00% 7T
Time-based options 30/07/2021 4 years Usb10.00
REEERERE 4F 10.00% 7T
Time-based options 08/08/2022 4 years Usb11.30
R B2 R IR 4F 11.30% 7T
Time-based options 12/12/2022 4 years UsbD11.30
R ERERE 4 11.30%7T
Time-based options 01/01/2023 4 years Usb11.30
REEERERE 4F 11.30% 7T
Time-based options 10/03/2023 4 years Usb11.30
R B2 R IR 4F 11.30% 7T
Time-based options 31/03/2023 4 years UsbD11.30
R ERERE 4 11.30%7T
Time-based options 19/07/2023 4 years Usb11.30
REEERERE 4F 11.30% 7T
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 38. URe R /BRI (@
(b) Share Option Scheme by WW Cayman (b) WW Cayman HfERR #5181
(continued) (48)
Details of specific categories of options, including EREREED (BERERE
both equity-settled and cash-settled, granted BRI REZUAEGZER
under the Share Option Scheme are as follows: EUREEB 2 BRE) 518
mE
Date of Vesting Exercise
grant period Price
i = LG BREH TR
Performance-based options 26/07/2018 4 years Usb10.00
REEERRE 4F 10.00% 7T
Performance-based options 30/10/2019 4 years Usb10.00
REREERFRE 4F 10.00% 7T
Performance-based options 13/03/2020 4 years Usb10.00
FEREBRE 4 10.00% 7T
Performance-based options 30/07/2021 4 years Usb10.00
REEERRE 4F 10.00% 7T
Performance-based options 08/08/2022 4 years Usb11.30
REREERFRE 4F 11.30% 7T
Performance-based options 12/12/2022 4 years UsbD11.30
FEREBRE 4 11.30%7
Performance-based options 01/01/2023 4 years Usb11.30
REEERRE 4F 11.30% 7T
Performance-based options 10/03/2023 4 years Usb11.30
REEEFRE 4F 11.30% 7T
Performance-based options 31/03/2023 4 years UsbD11.30
FEREBRE 4 11.30%7
Performance-based options 19/07/2023 4 years Usb11.30
REEERRE 4F 11.30% 7T
Performance-based options 31/03/2024 4 years Usb11.30
REREERFRE 4F 11.30% 7T
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 38. Uigin AEREER @

(b) Share Option Scheme by WW Cayman
(continued)

The following table discloses movements of the
share options, including both equity-settled and
cash-settled, held by employees during the year:

(b) WW Cayman BYBEBRIE:T 2
(&)
TRIFEEFNEEMGERE
(BEUBZEERURS
EEZERE NEBER -

Outstanding at Granted Exercised Forfeited Expired  Outstanding at

Option types 11112024 during year during year during year during year 31/12/2024
[t Jo 6 [ Jo

~R—A +2B=+-B

BREgy WA {THE EMEY ERiTE EREK EREE WA {THE
Time-based options BREERRE 1,966,009 - (365,836) (165,765) (1,050) 1,433,358
Performance-based options  FEEEERE 1,393,005 221,604 (365,836) - (1,050) 1,247,723
3,359,014 221,604 (731,672) (165,765) (2,100) 2,681,081

During the year ended 31 December 2024,
221,604 performance-based equity-settled share
options were granted on 31 March 2024, with the
estimated fair value of the options on that date is
USD2.40 per share. The fair value of the options
was calculated using the Black-Scholes pricing
model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

BHE_Z_HWWE+ A
—+—HLEFE - R-ZM@
F=ZB=+—H#&H221,604
MERRBUEREENE
R RZENGETATFES
FR2.40ET - BREZ AT
ERATR T B EE
BRI E o B A Y& A BUR W

B
2024 2023
—EBmE =

Weighted average share price (USD) 11.30 11.30
MEFEHERKE (ET)
Exercise price (USD) 11.30 11.30
1T15E (1)
Expected volatility 40% 40%
IELENEIES
Expected life 1.5 years 1.5 years
TEHAG AR
Risk-free rate 3.00% 3.00%
I ) B 1 =R
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)
(b) Share Option Scheme by WW Cayman

(continued)

Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the comparable companies
over the previous 1.5 years (2023: 1.5 years). The
expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management's best estimate, for the
effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions
and behavioural considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of
RMB13,129,000 in the Group's consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2024 (2023: USD1,684,000, equivalent
to RMB11,928,000) in relation to share options
granted under the Share Option Scheme by WW
Cayman.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
board of directors of WW Cayman authorised a
plan for certain executives to exercise options in
exchange for a cash payment over three years,
beginning in the year ended 31 December 2024.
The cash payments are generally set at a certain
monetary value that depends on the marketable
share price at the date of payment, as established
by a third party valuation specialist. The payment
made in the year ended 31 December 2024 was
UsSD4,236,238 (equivalent to RMB30,442,454),
upon the exercise of 631,672 options. The awards
subject to the cash payments are reclassified
as cash-settled share based payments upon the
modification date, with a liability recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position
amounting to USD6,322,500 (equivalent to
RMB46,101,141) as at 31 December 2024. The
incremental expense recognised in the year ended
31 December 2024 was USD1,761,626 (equivalent
to RMB12,845,072).

38. AR B/ERMER @
(b) WW Cayman BYBEBR1E:T 2

(nﬁ)

ERESHXRTEBERBE
158 (CTEZ=ZF:1.55) 7
ﬁttiﬂ&?ﬁ’])‘?&&@]zﬁﬁ

E-ERNEEBEEBNREMS
BRERGERANEHRFHER
BARERIETRERS 1T
REBRENTEIFLHBE-

HE_Z_HWWE+ A
—+—HILEE> zt&%lEAZI:
%.?“?é Eﬁﬁ%%qjﬁﬁwu/\
Cayman*ﬁ#‘:ﬁﬁﬁy&ﬁ?ﬁx%
E’J%Hﬂ&ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬁﬁ)\ﬁ
#13,129,0007¢ (B - =
1,684, ooo%mwra“ﬁ#/\ﬁ
#11,928,0007T) ©
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HIEFE >WW CaymanE =
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FERB BEETHITA
ERZFERTEBERE U
BERBENH R —
MR EA—THNEKBEE
ZEBEENANRE =AM
BEEXRBENNREBENE
BREEBNR BHE_ZT &
+Z_A=+—HLEEE R®
1T1£631,67217 B8 R #E BF <& 1
4,236,238% 70 (HHERN AR
#£30,442,4547T) - RWE T
MBI ESTBEEN D E
BLIRESEENRM AR B
—_E-MFE+-_A=+—H"
RIS BERTERNBEDREN
B&%46,322,500= 1 (HHE
RAREA46,101,14170) o &
FE_E_NFE+Z ﬁ +—
BLEEERINEERLA
1,761,626% 7T FHEN AR
12,845,0727T) ©
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 38. Uie R S BEBRMTR (®
(c) Share Award Scheme by Weigao (c) BiEEH RN HEE
Orthopaedic
On 9 May 2020, a share award scheme was N ZEZZEFRANEE
adopted by the extraordinary general meeting of SEEREY & RN I PN EP S
Weigao Orthopaedic (the “Weigao Orthopaedic et El (TR &SR RG
Share Award Scheme”). A total number of HENEHE))) - &3£3,300,000
3,300,000 shares of Weigao Orthopaedic were REEERRNETEER
awarded to the eligible senior management and BREEENEE (6B
employees (the “Eligible Employees”), which BE)) " HEEERREN
representing 0.92% shareholding of Weigao 0.92% °
Orthopaedic.
The issue price of Weigao Orthopaedic Share RS =R R €I ULV
Award Scheme is RMB15 per share, the total TEAESRAREI5T E11
consideration amounted to RMB49,500,000. 60% BA ANE%49,500,00070 &
of consideration was covered by the loan provided 160 % R 118 A &8 54 5 I
by Weihai Hongyangrui to the Eligible Employees, mMeEREERENENX
and the remaining 40% was funded by Eligible > HEFd0%HEEREE B
Employees themselves. GHE-
Details of the shares awarded are as follows: ERERGFBEOT
Vesting
Date of grant period
RHAMY REM
Performance-based awards 09/05/2020 4 years
RREERRE ZEI%F
nANA 4F
Based on the Weigao Orthopaedic Share Award REE R = B A0 BB 5t 8
Scheme, as Weigao Orthopaedic will repurchase HREEENgES BRI
the shares granted to the Eligible Employees when BEREINIETH B IK 4D
the Eligible Employees are not satisfying specified BERTEEREEBNR®G
vesting conditions, the total consideration paid WEEREBPI(ER
by the Eligible Employees are recognised as BRIASEE TRHNESER
liabilities, and will be reversed by portion to other iR B2 = H MG
reserve when the shares are vested each year. H-BE_Z_=F+_A
During the year ended 31 December 2023, all —+—HLEFE FREENEK
performance-based awards had been fully vested HHNRBEZHEBERAR
and RMB12,375,000 was reversed for liabilities to #12,375,000cHEBEEEE
other reserve. H o
The estimated fair value of the performance- FIREERHNBFLHBHEDY
based awards on the grant date is RMB19.8 per Bt A EREBRARTE19.8
share. The difference between the fair value and T ERBRMI AT EEE
the issue price of the vested shares is expensed TEZENEERaERE
on a straight-line basis over the periods in which BFEHIRERBNBREANEZE
services are expected to be rendered by the Eligible BERELH - BHE_T =F
Employees. During the year ended 31 December +ZA=4+—HULEFE ES
2023, Weigao Orthopaedic recognised a share BRENAEEGFGEDRRE
awards expense of RMB1,105,000 in the Group's RHRMDEBAZAARE
consolidated statement of profit or loss. 1,105,0007z °
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(d) Repurchase of shares of Weigao

Orthopaedic

On 28 August 2023, the board of directors
of Weigao Orthopaedic approved Weigao
Orthopaedic to repurchase of certain publicly
issued shares using its own funds for a future
share award scheme. During the year ended 31
December 2024, Weigao Orthopaedic repurchased
1,313,790 shares (2023: 917,266), accounting
for 0.328% (2023: 0.229%) of its total issued
shares, with a total cost of RMB43,476,000 (2023:
RMB36,530,000).

39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(a) Merger accounting for acquisition of

Weigao New Life

During the year ended 31 December 2023,
Shandong Weigao Orthopaedic Materials Company
Limited (“Weigao Orthopaedic”), a subsidiary of
the Company, acquired 100% interests in Weigao
New Life Medical Equipment Co., Ltd. (“Weigao
New Life”) from fellow subsidiaries, Weihai
Weigao Biotechnology Co., Ltd.; Weihai Weigao
Fusen Medical Materials Co., Ltd.; Weihai Weigao
Medical Imaging Technology Co., Ltd. and Weihai
Weigao Qiquan Medical Equipment Co., Ltd. with
a total cash consideration of RMB1,030,000,000.
Weigao Orthopaedic acquired control over Weigao
New Life on 3 January 2023.

Weigao New Life is engaged in the research and
development, manufacturing and sales of tissue
repair products. The principal products include
platelet-rich plasma preparation kits and closed
trauma negative pressure drainage set.

38. e B E BRI (&
(d) ElfsEE=E RS

RZE_=FN\BZ+N\B"
BeesEEgEREE
NEREEEESLERET
NEAZEITRMD  BRREKRK
DERENETE B E S _IOF
+ZBR=4+—HIEEFE HS
BRI E[EE1,313,7908 (Z =
T =4 :917,266f%) ' (HEHE
BITRMDABEE0.328% (—
T =4 1 0.229%) 4B AS
A NRMA43,476,00070 (ZF
=% AE%36,530,000

7o) °
30. BE"FE_=5+_"AH
=+—BIEFEWEKEB
2

(a) KWBHEMEZAHES

HE_Z_=—%+_A8
=t+—HLEEE > K BK B
RBLUEEBS BB MRS
BREAB (TEEER]) BF
rMBRI R ERSEYMH
FERRAB BEBHESERE
BMEERAB -EEH=E
BEGANEERAIRESE
BeBREBEXEERAT
WEE S TEERSMER
~nE (THE#H%E)) 9100%
Hm BIEEREAARK
1,030,000,0007T ° &= B FHR
_E_ZF—B=ZHWER
BT A RIS

HEfELEEBEEER
MO E REKRHE-TE
EmBEE MmN RMERE
BEERHHAGEESIR

Efo
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Merger accounting for acquisition of
Weigao New Life (continued)

Weigao New Life was established on 8 April
2008, which was indirectly held by Weihai Weigao
International, and thereby the Group and Weigao
New Life came under common control of Weihai
Weigao International. Since Weigao New Life
and the Group have been under common control
by Weihai Weigao International before and
after the Acquisition, the Group has applied the
principles of merger accounting with reference to
Accounting Guideline 5 Merger Accounting for
Common Control Combinations to the Acquisition
(the "AG5") issued by the HKICPA as if the
common control combination had been effected
since the establishment of Weigao New Life.

Acquisition of Zhejiang Quantum

On 25 May 2023, Weigao Orthopaedic acquired
62.1429% equity interests in Zhejiang Quantum
Medical Devices Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang Quantum”)
for a cash consideration of RMB43,500,000.
Zhengjiang Quantum is established in the PRC
and principally engaged in the research and
development, production and sale of minimally
invasive medical devices. The acquisition has been
accounted for as acquisition of business using the
acquisition method.

39. B " _=+4+_H
=+—BIEFEWEK B

2E @

(a)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(continued)

YNSINE)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE _Z _UF+_B=+—HLEFE

39. BE " _=+4+_H
=+—BHIEFEWEK B

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at RUERRBRENEER BT
the date of acquisition Hafd

RMB’000
AREF T
Property, plant and equipment ME-E R&E 15,109
Other intangible assets HthmEEE 12,853
Inventories =78 1,729
Other receivables H{th RIS FRIE 536
Cash and bank balances RERIBITHER 283
Trade and other payables FE B 5 R R H M E I I8 (10,425)
Contract liabilities ELENE (1,722)
Deferred tax liability FIERIBARG (2,783)
15,580

Goodwill arising on acquisition: WEEFREENES ©
RMB’000
ARETF T
Consideration paid BENHRE 43,500
Plus: non-controlling interest o FEER RS 6,952
Less: net assets acquired B FTEEREEE (15,580)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEPTEANEE 34,872

The non-controlling interest (37.8571%) in Zhejiang
Quantum recognised at the acquisition date was
measured by reference to the proportionate share of the

net assets of Zhejiang Quantum.

None of the goodwill arising on the acquisition is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

RET0H o

PUEE HERRESR Z I & FIFIERR
W (37.8571%) W2 EZE15HL
EFEEFEZILAIESE-

BHmMEMS  WEELENEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES FOR 30.8E_E-_=85+"AH
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 =+—HLFEWEHEB
(continued) KE @)
Net cash outflow on the acquisition SRR EEMRE RN 3
RMB’000
AREF T
Consideration paid BB 43,500
Less: Cash and cash equivalents of the A FTEREARNRERIREE
subsidiary acquired B (283)

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents upon W HE— I BABRNIRE RIS

acquisition of a subsidiary FEWF M

According to the agreement reached by Weigao
Orthopaedic and the former shareholders of Zhejiang
Quantum, under the condition that the net profit of
Zhejiang Quantum reaches a certain amount in 2025,
Weigao Orthopaedic is obliged to purchase all except
for 5% of the equity interest of Zhejiang Quantum held
by a former shareholder at that time, at a consideration
calculated according to the established method. At
the acquisition date, Weigao Orthopaedic recognised
the equity acquisition obligation as a financial liability
measured at present value of the amount payable
to the former shareholders with the amount of
RMB19,571,000.

40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 40.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had commitments
which were contracted for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements:

43,217

RBEEsSEFHARIZFAER
REMNGZ WNIE2FR_%
TEERNMARNER -T2 BS
BREEFBERIREERIFEE
BIA I8 F5% UM 2 26 G 1
REBREETE S ETUSTE - R UNEE
B BeeiERERESTRE
RAERENFTIRERBARE
19,571,000 tNIREFENEHE
Fo

Bk

R_E_NE+_HB=+—H =&
ERNGEMBERRTEBEEILN
B 2R #2145 BY 7RI

31/12/2024
RMB’000
—E_UFE
+=A
=+—H
ARETR

Commitments to joint ventures (Note 21) HeE b EAE H:E21) 491,686
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment WYX - BEKRZE 510,869

Incorporation of a joint venture SR II—EE
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

41. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT a1. EF AR EIE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in FEBRHEESEAR AEREREAER
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern NEEBRIMUFESRALZ E
while maximising the return to shareholders through REBEEERCEDEERGERS
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The R RR ALK - AEBNERE
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior REEMNTFEERFT A&
year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of net FEENEXERBEERT FE
debt (which includes borrowings net of cash and (BRENERRESRBITEREZE
bank balances) and equity attributable to owners of ) UREKABHEE AELEE (B
the Company (comprising issued share capital, share EEETREA - BRDRE -#ENM
premium, reserves and retained profits). REBRA) o
The directors review the capital structure on a semi- EERFFEEHEARERETR
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors N fFRARRBN—IR - EFT
consider the cost of capital and the risks associates with EZREARNAREZBELRFRAN
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of Al -REBEEZRZ AEEHE
the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital BRI IR BN BITHRMD REITH
structure through the payment of dividends, issue of EBUEERREEHTHAERE
new shares as well as the issue of new debt or the IEERE o
repayment of existing debt.
42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 42. £ TH
Categories of financial instruments ST EER
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’'000 RMB’000
—EmE —ZF_”=
+=AH +=A
=+—H =+—H
ARBTR ARBTT
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BARAFESFABRSEZ
TRIEE 303,688 87,281
Amortised cost i3I 16,044,276 15,220,581
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BATESAEMBEEA
STEZEBIAR 310,797 344,211
Financial liabilities EMaf
Amortised cost 55 PR A 8,050,141 8,048,211
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BAFESFABGRSTEZ
TRAas - 7,653
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. ERET A (@)

224

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's major financial instruments include
receivables from factoring business, loan receivables,
financial assets at FVTPL, debt instruments at FVTOCI,
trade and other receivables, pledged/restricted bank
deposits, cash and bank balances, financial liabilities
at FVTPL, trade and other payables, borrowings and
bonds payable. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

MBRREEBEREE

FEENTEZEEM T ASERER
BEBZEBBARE -BRER 7
ATESAEBDIEZESHEE
BAFTESAEMEERASE
ZREHBITE -BWE SRR EM
FEUGRIE ~ BRI ZIRGEIRITF
PR RIBITER AT ES
ABustBZEMEBE BUES
BR AR ELMH AR A TR IR~ R R A
BF ZETMITEFBENEME
KE-HEZEETRMIAFRNERE
BETHER (B ERR KR KRE
) EERBRAKRBESAR T
S5 40 fa] B 5 =5 LB BY BUSR o
EEEEEREEZFRR LU
R B A SOt R EVE & B FE T o

Market risk 15 kg
Currency risk J=gicyz)

Some subsidiaries of the Group undertakes transactions
in foreign currencies other than functional currencies,
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. During
the year ended 31 December 2024, as disclosed in Note
22, the Group held foreign exchange swap which is to
fix exchange rate of USD against RMB.

The Group did not applied hedge accounting in
the measurement of foreign exchange swap. The
management manages its currency risk by closely
monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates
and considering hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should such need arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. TR T A (&)
Financial risk management objectives and MERAMREEEEREE (&
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued) m5 g (E)
Currency risk (continued) HigRE L (B)
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency RRERR AEBEINETIEZ
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at EREERERAGBZREEDN
the end of the reporting period are as follows. He
Liabilities Assets
31/12/2024 31/12/2023 31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
&afE BE
“gomE ZE2C=fF ZEZME O TZT=F
+=A +ZA8 +=AH +-A
=+—H =+—d =+—H =+—H
ARBTR AR®Tx ARBTR ARETR
Group entities in PRC KEERPRENER
Currency of SGD T - - 5,282 11,130
Currency of EUR b 640 1,760 30,558 4,765
Currency of HKD BT - 26 2,988 2,816
Currency of USD E7T 74,799 113,055 2,203,998 2,253,555
Currency of JPY H = - 10,707 4,453
Currency of RMB AR 243,244 244,446 - -
Currency of GBP iS5 - - 57 -
Group entities in U.S. AEEREENER
Currency of EUR BT - - 11,056 4,917
Currency of SGD s T 49 262 959 554
Currency of NOK 18 B3, 52 B 57 65 6,207 5,259
Currency of CHF In %80 74 230 1,015 794
Currency of DKK &R - 35 3,442 3,574
Currency of SEK In 85 BA 14 23 4,640 3,691
Currency of GBP HiE 1,942 1,332 13,429 13,673
Currency of CLP BHER 4,924 3,346 17,293 19,771
Currency of COP SmtERER 358 580 26,335 26,021
Currency of HKD ATT - — 853 -
Currency of PLN WAL AR 1,053 3 7 -
Currency of AED ] B 1 e 4 4 - 104 8 -
Currency of RMB AR 51 — 1,052 1,347
The Group's foreign currency risk is concentrated on the KEENIIERBEEZERTAR
fluctuation of RMB and USD against foreign currency. B8 I E T INEE Y R BY o
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. ERET A (@)

226

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued)

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to
a 5% (2023:5%) increase and decrease in the RMB
and USD against the relevant foreign currencies.
5% represents management's assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the period end for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates an increase in post-tax profit for the
year where RMB and USD weakens 5% against the
relevant currency. For a 5% strengthening of RMB and
USD against the relevant currency, there would be an
opposite impact on the post-tax profit for the year.

MERREEBRREE (&)

45 B ()
E5mpE (8

TRAVEEEBHARERETR
HERAINEE 2 FER F AR N5 % (Z
ETZFI5%) ZHRE-5%AE
BEHIINEEXRSIZEOAEEE) 2 5T
HoBMRAEDHEBERGELTZU
SNEETIEZ EEIEE » WK%
5% INEEXEEFF/ERE R
B UTEHEERTREARBRET
RARRIINE B B %R 2 R EER
BRI ZARB - MARBRETR
HBENEFHES% Bl g B AREE
MeafaEREEo.

2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB'000
—EpmE —T—=
ARBTR ARBTT
Profit for the year REE @A
— Group entities in PRC —AEERFENER 82,234 81,491
— Group entities in U.S. —AEENREENER 3,072 2,908

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to finance lease receivables, loan receivables,
pledged/restricted bank deposits, borrowings, bonds
payable and lease liabilities with fixed interest rate
(Notes 24, 25, 29, 33, 34 and 36). The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to loan
receivables, cash and bank balances and borrowings
with variable interest rate (Notes 25, 30 and 33).

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of saving/lending rate
promulgated by the People's Bank of China and SOFR
arising from the Group's USD dollar denominated
borrowings. The Group manages its interest rate
exposures by assessing the potential impact arising
from any interest rate movements based on interest
rate level and outlook. The management will review the
proportion of borrowings in fixed and floating rates and
ensure they are within reasonable range.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. EFRTH ®
Financial risk management objectives and MERAMREEEEREE (&
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued) G E R (&)
Interest rate risk (continued) FI)E B f (#8)
Total interest income from financial assets that are D#E At ENEMEENTE
measured at amortised cost are as follows: WA ZBZBUN T -

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2024 31/12/2023

RMB’'000 RMB'000
8E BH=E
+—-H +=A
=+—H =+—H
ILEE IEEFEE
AR¥FTr ARETT
Interest income ) 2 WA
Financial assets at amortised cost BIE ATt E SRIEE 230,423 235,678
Interest expense on financial liabilities not measured at KA ESFABGIEZEME
FVTPL: (EERNSYG A
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB'000 RMB'000
8E BH=E
—EomE ==
+=B +—H
=+—H =+—H
ILEE IEFE
ARBFrT ARETT
Financial liabilities at amortised cost Z#IHN AT E 2 EMEBE 242,041 268,157
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. ERET A (@)

228

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

MERREEBRREE (&)

Market risk (continued) m5 g (E)
Sensitivity analysis R E DT

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for loan
receivables, cash and bank balances and borrowings
with variable interest rate at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the variable-
rate loan receivables, cash and bank balances and
variable-rate borrowings at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. A 25 basis
points (2023: 25 basis points) increase or decrease
represents management's assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates on variable-rate loan receivables, cash
and bank balances and variable-rate borrowings had
been 25 basis points (2023: 25 basis points) higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group's post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2024 would have decreased/increased
by RMBS&,729,000 (2023: decreased/increased by
RMB8,785,000).

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group's
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group's
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to trade
receivables, receivables from factoring business, other
receivables, pledged/restricted bank deposits, cash
and bank balances, loan receivables, debt instruments
at FVTOCI, finance lease receivables. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
to cover its credit risks associated with its financial
assets, except that the credit risks associated with loan
receivables and finance lease receivables are mitigated
because they are secured over various equipment and
machineries.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debtors. For finance
lease business and factoring business, the Group also
has delegated a team responsible for (i) designing and
implementation of overall risk management internal
control policies and procedures and establishing
appropriate risk appetite; (ii) designing and execution
of due diligence procedures; (iii) reviewing the
creditworthiness of customers. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model
in accordance with HKFRS 9 on receivable balances
individually or based on provision matrix.

The Group's debt instruments at FVTOCI only comprise
bank bills receivable that are issued and guaranteed by
the reputable PRC banks and therefore the credit risk is
considered to be low.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks. However,
the credit risk on pledged/restricted bank deposits and
cash and bank balances is limited because the majority
of the counterparties are banks with good reputation.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 54%
of the total trade receivables was due from fellow
subsidiaries (2023: 56%). The Group has concentration
of credit risk as 76% of receivables from factoring
business was due from fellow subsidiaries (2023: 55%).
The Group has concentration of credit risk as 71% of
loan receivables due from fellow subsidiaries (2023:
47%). The Group has concentration of credit risk as
49% of finance lease receivables due from fellow
subsidiaries (2023: 96%).

42. TR T A (&)

MERREEBRREE (&)

EERBERBEFE (&)

AEERBEERR AEEEE
BEZKk—HAEEEEEREFEER
B EEEMAEMEERER X
FEfR B BN ER A 8 M W B B HR (R IR o
MMEEEEBRFREXHMS
FEBTHEZEZFES(NRKRE
1 & T R K E IR AT A BB R
RERF WREBEERARE
F (DR RAITERBERRS
(INVBEERHEEBR UL &
EERBEEBMBREERFIRE
REMEEB BRI EEHIIRREE
R fE ¥ B WS BRE T R E FT (G o

ENTERNRATESAEMS
HWASTEZEBTAEZEOERE
Z RFRIPEIRTTE B R IERAFE
WIRTTRE RILEERABRERS
e

FEBZEERBRETREFENRS
TFRITZARBHEET AT EEA
S RBRHRTERKRIRERIBTHE
HZEERBRAR REA/KIEBD
HFOREERFZIRIT

R FEWE ZER AR RERI54% (Z
TTZF 156%) AEKERNE
NEFE FIt~EBEEEERR
EhBER BN KRERIEES B
WERIEMT76% (ZE - =4 :55%)
AEWERNBATRIE FHILE
EEEEERREDE N - ANE
WEHN71% (CTEZ=4F :47%)
HAEWEBEZRMBARER  HILAE
EEECEERREDE T - BNE
WREFRERIEN49% (T =
F:96%) AEKERMIBATE
oA EAEREEERMETDS
Ao
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. ERET A (@)

230

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the
simplified approach of HKFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with
significant outstanding balances or credit-impaired,
the Group determines the ECL on these items by using
a provision matrix grouped by risk portfolio, which is
estimated based on the financial quality of the debtors,
historical credit loss experience and the past due status
of the debtors, general economic conditions of the
industry in which the debtors operate and assessment
of both the current as well as the forward-looking
information that available without undue cost or effort
at the reporting date.

The following table provides information about the
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are
assessed based on provision matrix as at 31 December
2024 within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired). Debtors
with significant outstanding balances or credit-impaired
with gross carrying amounts of RMB2,733,642,000 and
RMB73,314,000 respectively as at 31 December 2024
were assessed individually (2023: RMB2,688,208,000
and RMB36,452,000 respectively).

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

MERREEBRREE (&)

EERBERBEFE (&)

MEWEZRRME > FEEEH
RAEAYHBREENFIRPHME
BT AR ERAREEREFEB
BB - RABEAKREERENL
EERENESIN FERBBE
RAREAREGDENREEEEE
ZERENBERESEHER LR
BEBANMBER EREBA
BN R ESEEEHERER R
BANEEET RN —REERR
MURHR&EHERFEERAANDY
FITMESRIRTE S BIRA AT
ME RETEE

TRV EHEVKEZEREER
S ONER ZERNE S RN
E2HEAEERE (BEEHE)
NER_ZE_WE+_B=+—
HRNBEEET G -N T OF
+-B=+—HEEBEAXKEE
EHEERE REEED A
AR 12,733,642,00070 & A R I&
73,314,000 0 (ZE_=F: DHIA
AR #2,688,208,00070 & AR &
36,452,00070) EH A EEFT
fhe
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. ERET A (@)

Financial risk management objectives and MERAMREEEEREE (&
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment EEREREEFEG (&)
(continued)

31/12/2024

Trade

receivables

- Gross

Average carrying
loss rate amount
RMB’'000

“EME

+=B

=+—H

FE Uk

B2 IRM

THYEEE —RESE
ARET T

Low risk type customer EREEER 2.48% 241,017
Normal risk type customer FREREERR 3.96% 3,318,936
Total w85t 3,559,953

31/12/2023

Trade

receivables

— @Gross

Average carrying
loss rate amount
RMB’000

=
—_—

+=A
=+-5

RIS

5 8

TIOEAE - REEE
ARETFT

Low risk type customer BEREEER 2.44% 226,677
Normal risk type customer EERRBERR 3.56% 3,018,892
Total Hast 3,245,569
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. EM T A (@)
Financial risk management objectives and MERAMREEEEREE (&
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EERERAEF G (B)
(continued)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL TRETHRABLAEMERE S
that has been recognised for trade receivables under RREDZNLPARAEERESE
the simplified approach. go
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
MY 2T
FEEHR FEER
(REEHE) (EERE) o
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
As at 1 January 2023 (restated) RZE_=fF—-F—H
(EE5) 240,917 56,291 297,208
Impairment losses recognised BEARESE 22,794 - 22,794
Impairment losses reversed B ERSE (18,544) - (18,544)
Exchange adjustments R R 123 - 123
Write-off s - (19,839) (19,839)
As at 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+"A=+—H 245,290 36,452 281,742
Transfer to credit-impaired BREEERE (36,862) 36,862 -
Impairment losses recognised BRDHERE 19,238 - 19,238
Impairment losses reversed BRLIREHE (11,464) = (11,464)
Exchange adjustments ERRE 167 - 167
Write-off 35 (1,153) - (1,153)
As at 31 December 2024 RZZF-NFE+ZA=+-A 215,216 73,314 288,530
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liguidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.

42. TR T A (&)

MERREEBRREE (&)

EERBERBEFE (&)

HEBHBTNEBSADHEEYH
A% B WA R A K (W&
HBABBRIMBRERR) > &
5 B R BE R U B 57 BR AR - B AR P
W & 5 R A HETTEN M AN o

None of the trade receivables that have been written off
is subject to enforcement activities.

For finance lease receivables, the Group has applied
the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL.

EFEEEE-

The following tables show reconciliation of loss
allowances that has been recognised for finance lease
receivables.

AR IR R AR o

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

TREHIFEKBER

PEWREEEMIEMNS A&E
ERAEBMBHRSERFIHT
W R Z R 2 RREEBIE

BEIRRESS

(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

20N 2RI

FEER FEEHR
(BRiEERHE) (EEHE it
ARETR ARETR ARETR
As at 1 January 2023 RZE-=F—A—H 10,857 2,923 13,780
Impairment losses reversed BEERESE (115) - (115)
Write-offs ! = (2,700) (2,700)
As at 31 December 2023 N\ ZEZ=F+"A=+—H 10,742 223 10,965
Impairment losses recognised BREDAESE 6 - 6
Impairment losses reversed BERHESSE (1,111) - (1,111)
Write-offs 55 (2,254) - (2,254)
As at 31 December 2024 RZZF-NE+ZA=+-H 7,383 223 7,606

233




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. M T A &)
Financial risk management objectives and MERAMREEEEREE (&
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EEREREEFEG (&)
(continued)
The following tables show reconciliation of loss TREIIT R BIRIBETS 2 BULHR
allowances that has been recognised for receivables IHMERNEEREN IR

from factoring business.

12m ECL
RMB'000
12{8R
REGEER
AEEFR
At 1 January 2023 R_E-=F—F—H 2,418
Impairment losses recognised BRIAESE 304
At 31 December 2023 RZE-=F+"A=1+—H 2,722
Write-offs sy (517)
At 31 December 2024 RZZF-ZNE+ZA=1+-H 2,205
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. TR T A (&)
Financial risk management objectives and MERAMREEEEREE (&
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EERERAEFE (&
(continued)
The following tables show reconciliation of loss T 2R & L E At FE U R IE R SR B S
allowances that has been recognised for other BREEHHR
receivables.
Lifetime ECL
(not credit-
12m ECL impaired) Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(restated) (restated)
217
12{8R REER
RUGEEFE (BEEAE EH
AEETR AREBTR ARETR
(&%) (&%)
At 1 January 2023 R_E”_-F—F—H 1,321 346 1,667
Impairment losses recognised BRDAERE 749 - 749
Write-offs i - (80) (80)
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ-F+°A=1+-H 2,070 266 2,336
Impairment losses recognised BRDAESE 973 - 973
Impairment losses reversed EREHESE (27) - (27)
At 31 December 2024 RZEZRE+ZA=1+-H 3,016 266 3,282
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

The following tables show reconciliation of loss

42. TR T A (&)
MERREEBRREE (&)

EERBERBEFE (&)

NREHI TR E RIS B R R

allowances that has been recognised for loan HHER
receivables.
Lifetime ECL
(credit-
12m ECL impaired) Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
217
1288 BEEH
REGEERE  (EEAE) i
AEETR AREBTR ARETR
At 1 January 2023 A B =&—-A—H 18,790 3,500 22,290
Impairment losses recognised BREDAESE 155 - 155
Write-offs i34 - (5) (5)
At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=F+"B=1+—H 18,945 3,495 22,440
Impairment losses recognised ERDAESE 1,198 - 1,198
Write-offs ik (12,224) - (12,224)
At 31 December 2024 RZEF-ME+ZRA=+-H 7,919 3,495 11,414

236  SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

' LERSERRESH FTRIBMERAT 2024 £



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and bank
balances deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors

the utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants.

The amounts included below for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
different to those estimates of interest rates determined
at the end of the reporting period.

The following table details the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are variable-rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from the interest rate
at the end of the reporting period.

42. TR T A (&)

MERREEBRREE (&)

B E 2 g

FEERDESTRARE ~EEE
RREFEEBR A BHKFHER
ERIRTER  URTEBRZER
HES T REIRERERBFTHER
WEE EEEERENNERE
I ERTEERZL -

(CRE-IES-EEoRl) = E N
BEZHERME AU RLIETE
TMERZAIENRTAEMAZH

TRIREHEEEHRFAMEI
ERFTEERERNRFTOE
HE - ZRDIRBEERKTEREE
THMERNRFEARNERAEREN
RGEFEREREMBR - ZXERE
MNERFTERERNE AN B R
FEF R RIRE R Z KRR
THRBIRFEK
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

42. TR T A (&)
MERREEBRREE (8

Liquidity risk (continued) REEEZEE (&)
Liquidity tables ME)E LK
Weighted
average  On demand Total Carrying
effective  or less than Over undiscounted ~ amount at
interest rate 1 year 1-2 years 25 years Syears  cashflows  31/122024
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZE-mE
miEFsy BEXS FBERE +A=t-A
1S DitE 1528 2558 2isE WEAE MIREE
% AEETR  ARETR  ARETR  AEETR  AEETR  ARET%
204 Z3IRE
Non-derivative financial liabilities Tt ERAR
Trade payables ERERER 1,167,486 - - - 1,167,486 1,167,486
Construction cost and retention payables BENARENRESE 48,503 - - - 48,503 48,503
Bills payable EfZE 926,475 - - - 926,475 926,475
Other payables EHEATE 8.0 1,780,365 103,102 23,658 - 1,907,116 1,904,511
Lease liabilties HEAR 4.15 49,144 43,223 69,146 54,062 215,575 189,980
Bonds payable EfiE5 3.75 35,900 35,900 1,010,471 - 1,082,271 996,833
Borrowings (6
-~ fired-rate -BERE 353 1,440,89% 182,048 113,792 - 23973 1,767,813
- variable-rate kS 5.86 419,141 141,593 866,891 - 1,421,625 1,238,520
5,867,899 505,866 2,743,958 54,062 9,171,785 8,240,121
Weighted
average On demand Total Carrying
effective or less than Over  undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years cash flows 31121203
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RIBZZE
gy ES e FEERE +2A=T-H
BRRE E 1225 1E5E BESE MERT NEREE
% NEETT AEBTT NBEFT AEBTT AEETT NBEFT
a3 I3IzE
Non-derivative financial liabilities kit eman
Trade payables ETERER 1,157,410 - - - 1,157,410 1,157,410
Construction cost and retention payables BENAREARES 75,264 - - - 75,264 75,264
Bills payable EfZE 612,207 - - - 612,207 612,207
Other payables EtEATE 75 1,945,501 103,000 126,658 - 2,175,159 2,161,281
Lease labilities HEAR 475 29,902 26,686 43254 39,529 139,371 127,268
Bonds payable EfES 375 35,900 35,900 1,046,371 - 1,118,171 995,405
Borrowings [
-~ fired-rate -EEHE 325 684,799 505,050 - - 1,189,849 828923
- variable-rate L LS 758 2,656,201 1,398 - - 2,657,599 221,71
7,197,184 672,034 1,216,283 39,529 9,125,030 8,175,479
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42. TR T A (&)

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments

Fair value of the Group's financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives information
about how the fair values of these financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Fair value as at
(RMB'000)
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
BALA'FEHHEG;FAHE ()\E%Hn:)E
T8 128
=+-H =1+—H

ETMIANATEE

FEFUEEMRERL FEHE
HEMEEREME B 2FE

rEBBOEREEREHREER
BREPHRBE L FEFE TRHE
JIERINPEBERZSTFEMEE RE
MEBRAFEZER (LHEZ P

REERERE AR -
Fair value Valuation technique(s) and key
hierarchy input(s)

DTESH EELERRRBABE

Financial assets (liabilities)

EHEE (BR
FVTPL - Foreign exchange swap 3,427 (7,653)

BAFES ARL S E-NEER

FVTPL - Currency option 9,765 -

BATES ARLtE-SRIR

FVTPL - Interest rate swap - 37

BAFES ARL s E-FFEH

Level 2

E

Level 2

E

Level 2

E

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows
are estimated based on forward
exchange rates (from observable
forward exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period) and contracted
forward rates, discounted at a rate
that reflects the credit risk of various
counterpames \

EREERE *Xfﬁémﬂﬁ%@ﬁﬁ
Ex (XEH&W%E’EE’J\T&E@@H
ET)EZD 'Ji%ﬁﬂttﬁﬁﬁ’?ﬁfiﬁ%%
HEAEEREOLEER.

The Currency Option comprised of
Seagull Option and Collar Option.
The key parameters applied are
estimated CNY/USD exchange rate
(from observable CNY/USD exchange
rate at the end of the reporting
per\od) (note a)

& HHI&E@@%E%&%D%%HM&@JEP
TEEMERSNEAT RS En
B (REXREERATER AR
%/ ETEX) o (fiEa)

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows
are estimated based on forward
interest rates (from observable yield
curves at the end of the reporting
period) and contracted interest rates,
discounted at a rate that reflects the
credit risk of various countergarties.

BEReRE - AKRBEREREED
%‘J (XEN& BRNIEZRY &

i ?) KE;E BRI H
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (continued)

Fair value of the Group's financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis (continued)

Fair value as at
(RMB'000)
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
EALA'FEFHEG;FAHE MMHE)E
+ZH _TI5
=+-H =1+—H

42. TR T A (&)

ETMIANATEFE (B

FEFUEEMRERL FEHE
HEMEEREME B 2FE
(&)

Fair value Valuation technique(s) and key
hierarchy input(s)

DTESH EELERRRBABE

FVTPL - Investment funds 72,987 86,910

BATES ARG E-RERS

FVTPL - Structured deposit 217,509 -

BATES ARD s E-ERIEER

FVTOCI - Debt instruments at FVTOC] 310,797 344,211

(a) A seagull option is a three-legged European option trading
strategy which implemented using two puts and a call or vice
versa. The Seagull option entered by the Group involves two
call options and one put option to minimum risk. The collar
position limits the return of the portfolio to a specified range
and can hedge a position against potential volatility of the
underlying asset. It is created through the usage of a protective
put and covered call option.

Level 3

E=R

Level 2

E

Level 2

g
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Income approach - in this approach,
the discounted cash flow method was
used to capture the present value of
the expected future economic benefits
to be derived from the ownership of
this investee, based on an appropriate
discount rate.

WAE-IERET RRERRERE
HEEGREZSREHRNEREN
GNBBRRCENERRE (28
RRREHE)

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows
are estimated based on forward
interest rates (from observable yield
curves at the end of the reporting
period) and contracted interest rates,
discounted at a rate that reflects the
credit risk of various countergarties.

BRFERE - ARBERERERD
%‘J CRERREBANTRE NG

LHhis) RENFIRMEH BREEH
%751 ERRA LRI o

Discounted cash flow - future cash flows
discounted at a rate that reflects the
credit risk of various counterpartles

Eﬁiﬁfﬁﬁmi RREEHTHES
O ERERNATBERE

PEE

(@) BEBIARE-—EZERRINERHAE
5 R W EE BN —(E
BRI RR 2 - AE BB AR
e w18 505 B K — {58k AR A
DUBME R R - SAOBET IR EHE S Y
(O] ¥R PR I 72 45 € % & 7y > I 7] # ¥ 48
B ER BT REH FET - HTHE
BERRELERIRLBELER
HAMERE DL -
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (continued)

42. TR T A (&)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value

measurements

ETMIANATEFE (B

FZRRTEFAENEHER

Financial

assets

31 December 2024 —E_mE+-HA=+—8H at FVTPL
RMB’'000

BaTE

st AR

EZ

EMEE

ARBTR

Balance at 1 January 2023 B =F—HF—BHZ&ER 119,729
Repayment of investment principle BRKEARE (12,636)
Change in fair value NEEE (20,183)
Balance at 31 December 2023 AN E_=F+_RA=+—HZ4&ERR 86,910
Repayment of investment principle BERELS (19,709)
Change in fair value NEEEE 1,656
Exchange adjustments bE 2 B2 4,130
Balance at 31 December 2024 R_E-_NE+ "B =+—HZ&E& 72,987

Fair value of financial instruments that are R A SRAY £ T B A2 F
recorded at amortised cost 2]

EERR ZFTEOVBRERPRE
BIERAEARNEREERERE
RAVREEREA A FERE

The directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in these consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.
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43. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 43.

ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flow were, or future
cash flows will be classified in the Group's consolidated
statement of cash flows from financing activities.

MEGHEENARZHIR

TREFAESERRBELIHAELE
NaE2H (BEREAIFREE
) MEZBMELENEREE
HRENREME TS ZAERIR
BREBAEMRADIE

Bonds Dividend Lease
Borrowings payable payable liabilities Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Note 33) (Note 34) (Note 13) (Note 36)
faR iR EfikE HEaR &t

AEBTR AEBTR AE®TR AEETT NEEFR
(W3t33) (M3#34) (Hfz13) (Mi3£36)

At 1 January 2023 BZE-Z%-B-H 3,364,020 993,977 = 133,400 4,491,397
Dividend declared BERRE - - 732,632 - 732,632
Interest accrued iy} 232,257 35,900 S 4,814 272,971
Exchange adjustments EREE 38,608 - - 1,432 46,040
New lease g - - - 26,604 26,604
Financing cash flows BERLTE (588,241) (34,472) (132,632) (44,982)  (1,400,327)
At 31 December 2023 RE-ZE+-A=1-R 3,046,644 995,405 - 121,268 4,169,317
Dividend declared EERRE = . 865,988 - 865,988
Interest accrued stHIE 206,141 35,900 - 7,531 249,572
Exchange adjustments ERHE 31,637 - 4,600 1,822 38,059
New lease g - - - 101,031 101,031
Financing cash flows HERSTE (278,089) (34,472) (870,588) (47,6712) (1,230,821)
At 31 December 2024 RIECME+ZF=+-H 3,006,333 996,833 - 189,980 4,193,146
44. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 44. T EIIFRERXH

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
endorsed bill receivables of RMB910,563,000 (2023:
RMB303,105,000) to settle the trade and other
payables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45. FAEA TR 5

(a) The Group had the following related party () R"EBEE_Z_DNEFE+_A4
transactions during the year ended 31 December =t+—HEFER xEEBAB
2024: THRAEALRS !

2024 2023
RMB'000 RMB’000
“EmE —TC-=
ARBFTRT ARETT
Sales to fellow subsidiaries HETFRRWE AR 422,304 426,469
Sales to a holding company HE T —RZERAE] 139 1,114
Sales to an associate HET—HEBEQE 11,512 24,606
Sales to an associate of HEF—MBEZERATN
a holding company —RBE A8 4 -
Distribution made through BEEARKBABELDH
fellow subsidiaries 3,169,195 3,542,500
Logistic support services provided BREBABRMEZ
by fellow subsidiaries M 2 F5 AR5 73,513 105,914
Purchases from fellow subsidiaries @[5 % Mt /& A &) % i& 633,963 911,787
Purchases from a holding company 6 —B1ZERAFIRKE 1,098 1,363
Purchases from an associate M — B E AT RE 224,521 241,684
Purchases from an associate of m—EER AN
a holding company —EBE QB 32,374 46,928
Operating lease income from REBRZRMEABZ
fellow subsidiaries KEHEFWA 9,238 8,698
Operating lease income froman  KE—BBEATZ
associate KEHEEWA 2,021 1,973
Operating lease income from an  RE—RBZER AT —FR
associate of a holding company BE A B 2 KEHEE WA 742 742
Finance lease income from REERHWBRABZ
fellow subsidiaries MERAEWRA 25,523 37,827
Interest income from factoring REERMWBLABREBER
business from fellow subsidiaries — ZFE WA 9,102 8,291
Other service provided by BRMNB ARG Eih
fellow subsidiaries AR 75 64,510 48,877
Other service provided by an —EEZER AT — B E
associate of a holding company NEREZ HMARF 3 -
Service provided to ml[E % Y A B4R tHh 2 AR 75
fellow subsidiaries 8,484 8,616
Service provided to an associate [ — B E A TR ME 2 R 5,165 7,322
Interest income from an associate KB —MER A BN —[E
of a holding company k= /NI ISV N 166 436

FEU {FREE AN LHRIBERE
IEEH M sE24~2527~30
31320

Details of amounts due from/to related parties are
set out in Notes 24, 25, 27, 30, 31, and 32.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 B E_Z _NF+_B=+—HIEFE

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45. FIEALR S @
(a) (continued) (a) (&)

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the BHE_Z-_MNF+ZA

principal of the finance lease business provided —t+—BHLEFE - ZEEMH

to fellow subsidiaries by the Group amounted to BaMBARREBEZME

RMB203,800,000 (2023: RMB14,600,000). HEXEBAZTEASARE
203,800,0007¢ (Z&E =4
A B #14,600,0007%) ©

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the BHE_Z-_MNF+ZA

principal of the factoring business provided to =t+—HEFEE xEERFA

fellow subsidiaries by the Group amounted to A BARRME Z RIBET

RMB 150,000,000 (2023: RMB116,000,000). A& EEA ARM150,000,000

T(ZTE - =ZF )\EW
116,000,0007T) ©

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the BHE_Z-_=_+2ZA
subsidiary of the Company acquired interests =+—HLEFEE > AATNE
in Weigao New Life from subsidiaries of Weihai REIMEESESEENB A
Weigao International. Details of the related party Tﬂﬁlﬁﬁfﬁmﬁif*ﬂﬁﬁﬁ 2
transactions are set out in Note 39. R 2 FBEHNHIEE390
During the year ended 31 December 2023, BHE_Z-_=_+2ZA
the Company participated the asset backed =+—BIFE AR
securitization abs issued by Weigao Holding HEESEBERABRTEES
involving account receivables with a carrying HFE A REEERA AR
amount of RMB220,521,000. The Company 220,521,00070 B9 FE UL BR &R ©
transferred all risks and rewards associated with A B B 5% 3 PR UNBR A
those account receivables to Weigao Holding, and BBy — ) B B K [B] 3R 8 52 T
therefore derecognised the account receivables. BEER AT kAL EE
R EUR AR TR ©
(b) Compensation of key management (b) EEEIEASHIIREM
personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members RERNEERETEEEEN
of key management during the year was as Hp ERVFHEUT -
follows:
2024 2023
RMB’'000 RMB’000
—EmE —ZT”=
ARBTR ARBTT
Short-term employee benefits KR EEERN 10,920 11,430
Post-employment benefits BER B = A 279 259
Share-based payments LURR 1R A E BT 10,984 10,984
22,183 22,673
The remuneration of directors and key executives is EERTETHAENEFM
determined by the remuneration committee having ThHFMNEZE g ER AL
regard to the performance of individuals and NRIBRTIZEBEMEE

market trends.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZEZ_Z_F+_A=+—HIFE

46. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group,
in funds under the control of trustees. All Hong Kong
employees joining the Group are required to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme.

No forfeited contribution under the scheme is available
to reduce the Group's future contribution.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the government of mainland.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute 16% for
the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: 16%) of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

Argon sponsors a 401(k) retirement savings plan
for all Argon employees. This plan includes both
employee contributions as well as employer matching
contributions.

Other subsidiaries in jurisdictions outside of the PRC
contribute to statutory retirement plans on behalf of
their employees which in many cases are managed by
the government in those territories. Those subsidiaries
make periodic contributions to the statutory retirement
plans as required and contributions are generally
determined as a percentage of employees' basic salaries
or a fixed amount per employee per calendar year
depending on the jurisdiction.

The contributions paid and payable to the schemes by
the Group are disclosed in Note 11.

46. 3B A&7 5+ E

FEBR_SEZF+_H2ER
BRI ABEEstERAMRILZ
BEMAREFE - ZFFAEZE
ENDHARSARECES BAE
EzEE AT AE PIAMBEAE
Bz EHBREEHNASHBAFIEAR
E5tE e

IRz ez 5t 830 5202 WA R BT A 1E R
DA 2R AR

FEBZTENBARZEES
MAEBRREEZEREERIK
BANGEIZRE - RBE_ZT M
F+TA=+—HLFE ZEM
BRBIARHENAEZ16% (ZF
= 16%) MRRER FTEIH
MUERBHFTEES - AEREY
RINEH B 2 E—SERIELE
EZ ke

EIRAMAEEIRESRMH401(Kk)E
REETE - ZtEBIEREHR
UK R F UCER R o

REMUINEE & EH MK E A S
REEEESEEZERMAKS S M
EFZHERT &I HZEM
ENHFEE -ZEMBLRERE
KEHREE RN B BH
HEERREEEATEMNA DL
BERiEeEEHEFESARE
EREEZRETE -

AEBMZESEENREMHMH
RIS 1R R EE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 47. Z AT X EM B AT HE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries as at 31 \TENERZEZ=F+"H
December 2024 and 2023 are as follows: _—f— H> XABIWEABNFIE
mr:
Paid up issued/ Effective equity
Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2024 2023 2024 2023
BETES/ B“+ZBA=+-H
WEARAE i HMEE EEEEZERRE TEER
% (EH) % (1)
ZEImE CZEC=F ZEIME 2R
Weigao Orthopaedic* PRC RMB400,000,000 50.63 50.63 21.55 21,55 Manufacturing of
(LREEERMBRNERAT) orthopaedic medical
device products
LEREERMHRAERAG HE AE400,000,0007 LEBNBEREER
Beijing Weigao Yahua Artificial Joints ~ PRC RMB70,000,000 - - 72.18 7218 Research, services and
Development Company Limited* sales of medical devices
FrEEEEATHSREEERAR)
TREBTEAIRBHEERAT & AE#70,000,0007T BERBEORE -RER
15
Changzhou Jianli Bangde Medical PRC RMB65,000,000 - - 72.18 7218 Manufacturing of
Devices Co., Ltd* orthopaedic devices,
(ENENAERERHERAR) implantation materials
and artificial organs
EMENSEREZRNERAT HE AR 165,000,0007 LEBHRE BEMN
RAERE
Weigao Group (Weihai) Medical PRC RMB950,000,000 25 25 75 75 Wholesale of Type |
Products Marketing Co., Ltd* medical devices,
(HEEE (FE) BERRREHE surgical devices and
RAE) other disposal medical
products
BEEE (FE) BARRERERAS T AR 1950,000,0007C WEE-EEERE-F
R EREM— R
BEM
Weigao Group (Weihai) Medical PRC RMB1,309,070,000 19.21 19.21 80.79 80.79  Wholesale of Type |
Products Material Supply Co., Ltd* medical devices,
(BRER (5 BAROMEEES surgical devices and
RAE) other disposal medical
products
BEEE (FE) BRNaMEHEE T AE1,309,070,0007 WEE-EEERE-F
BRAR R EREM— R
BEM
Weihai Jierui Medical Products PRC RMB114,030,000 817.70 87.70 12.30 1230 Manufacturing of medical
Company Limited* PVC granules, plastic
(FEZREARAERAR) packing bags and carton
boxes
BEZRERERERAT alE] AR 114,030,0007 SEBEPVCITE BRE
ERRER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_MF+_HA=+—HLFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Paid up issued/

47. ZRB X EZM B A E]

(&)

Effective equity

B

Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2024 2023 2024 2023
BETER/ B“+ZB=+-H
WEAE%HE EuE &S FEARIEZRRRE TERH
% (EH) % (1)
ZEBCME ZZ"Zf ZEIME 2R
Shandong Weigao Group Logistic PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100 - - Provision of logistics and
Company Limited* storage services
(LREEERMRERAR)
UREREENAERAT HE AR20,000,0007 REMR R EERS
Weihai Weigao Jiesheng Medical PRC RMB20,000,000 - - 95.9 95.9  Trading of medical
Devices Co Ltd.* products
(FSEmERBESNERAT)
Fﬂ?/’éﬂzm? %%%%%ME RAF HE AE120,000,0007 EEE
Weigao International Medical Co., Ltd.  Hong Kong HKD207,699,690 100 100 - - Investment holding and
(AEERBEERAD) trading
BEEREEERAR 5 207,699,690 7T REZRRES
Shandong Weigao Financial Leasing PRC RMB620,000,000 - - 100 100 Engaged in various
Co., Ltd.* financial leasing
(LEFEHEREERAR) business of medical
equipment
LRABREREARAT S B #620,000,0007 REERRENERRE
HERS
Weihai Weigao Medical Device Sales  PRC RMB150,000,000/ - - 75 75  Trading of medical product
Co., Ltd.* RMB200,000,000
(AEEEERBNHERRAT)
BERHEEREMHERRAR HE AR 150,000,007,/ BERRER
AE%200,000,0007
Shanghai Weigao Financing Lease PRC USD45,000,000/ - - 100 100 Engaged in various
Co., Limited* USD50,000,000 financial leasing
(LERBRERERRAD) business
LERBHEREERAT HE 45,000,000%75,/ tERENEHERH
50,000,000% 7%
Taian Weixin Medical Products PRC RMB800,000/ 1 1 99 99 Trading of medical
Co., Ltd.* RMB30,000,000 products
(GZTHNERERERAR)
RETENERRNERAR e AR 800,000,/ BERRER
AE%30,000,0007
Anhui Weigao Orthopaedic Medical. ~ PRC RMB20,000,000 - - 72.18 7218 Sales of Type |, Type Il and
Device Co., Ltd.* Type Ill medical device;
(RHEBEHEERHERAR) Enterprise management
advisory services
ZHRRERBRENERAT HE AR 120,000,0007 BEE-HB FER

E-EBERE
CEEEBERRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL le
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (&)

R EEMBATFRE

(continued)

Paid up issued/

Effective equity

Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct)
2024
BETER/ AMZBE+-
WEAE%HE EuE &S FEARIEZRRRE TERH
% (E#)
ZEomE
Shandong Weigao Hai Xing Medical ~ PRC RMB70,000,000 - Production and sales
Devices Co., Ltd.* of Type lll medical
(LEEEEERERHERAR) implant material and
artificial organ (6846);
production and sales of
Type | medical devices.
UREBEERRRMERLR HE AE70,000,0007 LERBEF-HERA
MNIHBRAERE
(6846); £ ERHES—
ERERE
Sichuan Weigao Tianfu Medical PRC nil/RMB20,000,000 90 Research, sales of
Technology Co. Ltd.* medicines and medical
(BN BERRERAR) devices
mIEERFRERKERAT il &/ AR 20,000,007 BERERRENRE
HE
Jilin Weigao Bao Ren Medical PRC RMB39,616,810/ 65 Wholesale and retail of
Products Co., Ltd.* RMB50,000,000 medical products and
(EHeRsECERELERAT) medical devices
EHEERECERRRERAT 4@ AE¥39,616,8107/ HERTEERERK
AR H50,000,00078 BR&G
Weihai Weigao Yi Kang Medical PRC RMB30,000,000 10 Sales of medical devices
Device Sales Co., Ltd.*
(REREERRERMHERRAR)
BERSERERENHEESRAT +@ AE130,000,0007 HEBERE
WW Medical and Healthcare Cayman Islands ~ USD46,000 - Investment holding
Company Limited
WW Medical and Healthcare HERS 46,000%7 RERR
Company Limited
WW Medical and Healthcare us. UsD1,000 - Investment holding
Holdings Corporation
WW Medical and Healthcare el 1,000%7t RELR
Holdings Corporation
Argon Medical Devices Holding, Inc. ~ U.S. USD1/USD2,000,000 - Investment holding
Argon Medical Devices Holding, Inc. £ 1%71,/2,000,000% 7T REER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE _Z _UF+_B=+—HLEFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 47. F AT EEMEB AT FEHE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (48)

(continued)

Paid up issued/

Effective equity

Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
BETER/
WEAE%HE EuE &S FEARIEZRRRE TERH
Weihai Weigao Medical PRC nil/RMB10,000,000 Sales of medical devices
Products Co., Ltd.*
(EEHBERRRERAT)
BEHEERERERAT e &/ \E%10,000,0007 BEBRERE
Shandong Weigao Jiahe Pharmaceutical PRC RMB10,000,000 Sales of Type |, Type Il and
Technology Co., Ltd.* Type Il medical device;
(LREEERBENEERAR) Biotechnology Extension
Service
UREBEREERNRERAR HE AEH10,000,0007T HEF—H F_HERE
“HBERRE £YR
it B AR %5
Argon (Shanghai) Medical Devices PRC USD3,000,000 Sales of Type Il and
Company Limited. Type Il medical device;
(BIR (L) BREMBRAT) technical services and
technology transfer.
ER (L5) BREMARAT il 3,000,000% 7 HEE_ENE-EERE
R BARBEREMS
B
Argon (Weihai) Medical Devices, Inc ~ PRC USD1,400,000 Production and sales of
(B3R (08) BERMARAT) Type Il and Type Ill. Sales
of Type I. Information
consulting service.
ER (615) BRBMBERAT il 1,400,000% 7 TERBESE_ERE=
BoHEE—B-ERH
R -
Weigao Puri* PRC RMB104,275,000 Production and marketing
(LEEEEREEREERAR) of medical polymer
materials and products,
injection puncture
instruments
UEREEREEAEERAT HE AE104,275,0007 tERHERRE D FHM
BRER IHEN
B
Shandong Mingde Biomedical PRC RMB20,000,000 Production and marketing
Engineering Co., Ltd.* of medical polymer
(LEBEENB2IRERAR) materials and products,
injection puncture
URARENESTIRERAR e AR20,000,0007 LERBERAEN T
BRER IHEN
B
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL ZIS B X EMB ARG
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (&)
(continued)
Paid up issued/ Effective equity
Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2024 2023 2024 2023
BETER/ B“+ZB=+-H
WEAE%HE EuE &S FEARIEZRRRE TERH
% (EH) % (1)
ZEBCME ZZ"Zf ZEIME 2R
Shandong Weikang Medical PRC RMBS5,000,000/ 100 100 - - Research and sales of
Technology Co., Ltd.* RMB10,000,000 medical devices
(LEHERENEERAT)
URERERRKERAT HE AR 5,000,000/ MERBERERE
AE%10,000,0007
Shandong Weigao Orthopaedic PRC RMB10,000,000/ - - 72.18 7218 Sales of medical devices
Devices Sales Co., Ltd.* RMB50,000,000
(LEHBERBRENHERRAT)
LURHEEHBERRHEESRAT +E AE110,000,0007,/ HEBERE
A %50,000,0007
Sichuan Weigao Orthopaedic PRC RMBS5,000,000/ - - 72.18 7218 Sales of medical devices
Devices Co., Ltd.* RMB50,000,000
mlgEERBEERARAT)
M EEEHERSMARAS e ARM5,000,0007,/ BEBRERE
A %50,000,0007
Fenwei Healthcare Technology and PRC RMB40,000,000/ 100 100 - - Research, services and
Development (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* RMB50,000,000 consulting
EREARRNREE (L§)
BRAF)
BRERRERRER (L) HE AE#40,000,0007c,/ B IR R s
BRAF A 50,000,0007T
Weigao Medical Korea Co.Ltd. Korea KRW 173,180,000/ - - 100 100 Sales of medical devices
(HEERREARAR) KRW 168,000,000
BeEREEERAT 3G 173,180,008 75/ BEBRERE
168,000,00088 7T
Shandong Weigao Blood PRC USD55,000,000 - - 100 100 Research, services and
Technology Limited* sales
(LREBmREAERAR)
LREE MR ERAR e 55,000,000 7% HE RBERHEE
Shandong Weigao Pharmaceutical PRC RMB45,000,000 - - 95.9 95.9  Production and Sales

Packaging Products Co., Ltd.*
(LREEEEEEHRERAT)
URHEEEORRRERAT HE B 45,000,007 TERHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

TME+ZA=+—HILEFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 47. F AT EEMEB AT FEHE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY =)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE_—Z

(continued)

Paid up issued/

Effective equity

Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2024 2023 2024 2023
BETER/ B“+ZB=+-H
WEAE%HE EuE &S FEARIEZRRRE TERH
% (EH) % (1)
ZEBCME ZZ"Zf ZEIME 2R
Weihai Hongyangrui Information PRC RMB217,777,770 - - 80.15 80.15  Computer technical
Technology Center services and sale of
(Limited Partnership)* electronic products.
(FELBRERRMRO (BREH))
BEshBERER MR (BR %) HE AR217,777,7707 STRBRERERETE
e
Shandong Weigao Weinasi Medical PRC RMB15,250,000/ 90 90 10 10 Development, services
Technology Co., Ltd.* RMB20,000,000 and sales of
(LEEERABBERSERAR) medical technology
development.
UEE=EARBRNEERAT  RH AE 15,250,007t/ BRRMNRE  BHER
AR20,000,0007 Bo
Weigao (Beijing) Medical PRC RMB4,500,000/ 100 100 - - Research, sales of
Technology Co., Ltd.* RMB50,000,000 medicines
(Em (bR BEHEERAR)
BB (iR BERRERAT HE AR 4,500,000t/ BoiE #HE
AE#850,000,0007t
Shandong Weiteng Medical PRC RMB35,000,000/ 1 1 99 99 Sales of medical devices
Products Co., Ltd.* RMB50,000,000
(LREFERRRERAR)
LURHERENRERAR HE A 35,000,000,/ femEn s
AE#850,000,0007t
Global Healthcare, Inc. us. USD3,791,097/ - - 51 51 Distribution of medical
UsD10,000,000 devices
Global Healthcare, Inc. £S5 3,791,097 7,/ BBERENDH
10,000,000% 7T
Henan Weigao Orthopaedic Medical ~ PRC RMB50,000/ - - 72.18 7218 Technology development
Technology Co., Ltd.* RMB10,000,000 of medical devices,
(TEEEEHBENEERAR) technology consulting
and service. Sales of
Type |, Type Il and
Type Ill medical device
AEERERERRLERAT HE AR 50,0007,/ BERENRMHE-
AE10,000,00070 Bl A R R o
iﬁ'ﬁ%—xﬁ E_ER
E-HRERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL le
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (&)

R EEMBATFRE

(continued)

Paid up issued/

Effective equity

Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2024 2023 2024 2023
BETER/ B“+ZB=+-H
WEAE%HE EuE &S FEARIEZRRRE TERH
% (EH) % (1)
ZEBCME ZZ"Zf ZEIME 2R
Shandong Weigao Yahua Orthopaedic ~ PRC RMB1,100,000/ - - 72.18 7218 Sales of Type I and Type Il
Device Sales Co., Ltd.* RMB10,000,000 medical device
(BT ERREMBER R,
URRREERRRMBERD ’A HE AR1,100,0007,/ BEF-ERE_FER
AE%10,000,0007 #
Weigao (Jinan) Orthopaedic PRC RMB1,000,000/ - - 72.18 50.53  Sales of Type I, Type Il and
Device Co., Ltd.* RMB10,000,000 Type Ill medical device;
(@B (B BRMEERAT)
Be (BB BRMEERAT HE AE 1,000,000/ BEE-B E_ER
AE%10,000,0007 B-EBRRE,
Weigao (Shanghai) Orthopaedic PRC RMB1,000,000/ - - 72.18 7218 Sales of Type |, Type Il and
Device Co., Ltd.* RMB60,000,000 Type Ill medical device;
(@B (L8 BRMEERAT)
BB (LB BRMEERAT HE AE 1,000,000/ BEF—H F_HERE
AE60,000,0007C “BEERE,
Rad Source Technologies, Inc. us. UsD10,634 - - 100 100 Manufacturing and sales of
RBRFREERAD) X-ray based irradiation
machines;
HBRHHEERAT £S5 10,6345 7 XFHBRENRERE
&
Rad Source Medical PRC UsD2,000,000/ - - 100 100 Manufacturing and sales of
Technology Co., Ltd. USD8,000,000 X-ray based irradiation
(RERy (FE) BERHERAT) machines;
HERE (hE) BERRERAS  FE 2,000,000% 7%,/ X%ﬂ&?ﬁaﬁ”ﬁ HRERE
8,000,000% 7T £
Shanghai Weigao Gaojingchuang PRC RMB20,000,000 - - 72.18 7218 Production and sales of
Medical Technology Co., Ltd.* Type I, Type Il and
(LEREREBENEERAR) Type Il medical devices.
LERBRABRNEARAT e AR20,000,0007 LERBEF-B B
BRE-BEEZE.
Zhejiang Weigao Medical PRC RMB9,000,000/ 1 1 99 99 Production and sales of
Products Co., Ltd.* RMB50,000,000 Type I, Type Il and
(HIRERARERERAD) Type Il medical devices.
WIHEERERERAT HE AR 9,000,007,/ LERBEF-B B
AR 50,000,0007 BRE-BEEZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

R e MBI MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_MF+_HA=+—HLFE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Paid up issued/

Effective equity

47. ZRB X EZM B A E]
(&)

B

Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2024 2023 2024 2023
BRTRS/ B“+ZB=+-H
WEAE%HE EuE &S FEARIEZRRRE TERH
% (E#) % (F%)
ZEBCME ZZ"Zf ZEIME 2R
Tianjin Weigao Hainasi Medical PRC RMBS5,300,000/ - - 66.6 66.6  Development, services
Technology Co., Ltd.* RMB11,377,200 and sales of
(RERBEMNBEBRRERAT) medical technology
(former name Shandong Weigao development.
Hainasi Medical Technology Co., Ltd.)
RERREMRERNEERAT  FE AR 5,300,000t/ BRRMNRE  BHER
EBELERSENTEERNS ARE11,377,2007 o
BRAF)
Shanghai Shuruikang Medical PRC RMB14,261,000/ 100 100 - - Production and sales of
Technology Development Co., Ltd.* RMB20,000,000 Type I, Type Il and
(LESHRERNREREBERAT) Type Il medical devices.
Sales of Type Il and
Type lll ray devices.
BN RRERRKERERAT il AE14,261,00070,/ YERHEF-B 5
AEK%20,000,0007 BRE-BEEZE
HEE_BRE=BN
Hefhe
Shandong Weigao Blood Transfusion ~ PRC nil/RMB50,000,000 100 100 - - Production and sales of
Technology Equipment Co., Ltd.* Type |, Type Il and
(LEFERnETERERAR) Type Ill medical devices.
Sales of Type Il and
Type Ill ray devices.
URERHNRNERERAR e &/ \R50,000,0007 LERBES B 5
BRE-ERERE-
HEF_BRE-EN
BIES:
Weigao(Suzhou) Medical Technology ~ PRC RMB7,194,318/ 90 9 10 10 Production and sales of
Co., Ltd.* RMB10,000,000 Type |, Type Il and
(FiE (E) BERRARAF) Type Il medical devices.
Sales of Type Il and
Type Ill ray devices.
B ) BRREERAT HE AE7,1943187T/ YERHES-B B
A 10,000,000t ERE-EEERE
HEE_BRE-EN
Jchthe
Shanghai electron Microscope Medical ~ PRC RMB6,980,000/ - - 100 100 Production and sales of
Technology Co., Ltd.* RMB10,000,000 Type I, Type Il and
(LEERRENEERAD) Type Il medical devices.
Leasing of Type Il,
Type Il medical devices.
LEERERNRBRAT HE AE86,980,0007T/ TERFEF B EZ
AE10,000,0007 BRE-BEEZE
HEF "B 2-BEB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL ZIS AXEMBATFS

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (48)
(continued)

Paid up issued/ Effective equity
Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December
% (direct) % (indirect)
2024 2023 2024 2023
BETER/ B“+ZB=+-H
WEARAE i HRES SEEELZERRE
% (EH) % (1)

ZECmE —T--F ZBCME C“ZCc-E

Principal activities

TEREH

Tianjin Yangfan No. 1 Enterprise PRC RMB26,671,000 - - - -
Management Consulting Partnership
(Limited Partnership)*

(RERM—RCEERADABLE

(BRa%)
REGN-SKEXERLAABEE $E AR 26,671,007
(BRa®)
Tianjin Yangfan No. 2 Enterprise PRC RMB17,184,000 - - - -

Management Consulting
Partnership (Limited Partnership)*
(RRBEN_REXEERNAELE

(BlRAE®)
FEGN_BEXERAACHLE  FE AE17,184,0007
(BRa®)
Tianjin Yangfan No. 3 Enterprise PRC RMB17,790,000 - - - -

Management Consulting
Partnership (Limited Partnership)*
(REEM=REEERARSBLE

(BER&E)
FEGN=REXERAACHLE  FE ARH17,790,0007T
(BR&E%)
Tianjin Yangfan No. 4 Enterprise PRC RMB18,079,000 - - - -

Management Consulting
Partnership (Limited Partnership)*
(FREANOREEERTHCHCE

(BRa%)
REGNOREXERAAABLE G AE 18,079,007
(BRa®)
Tianjin Yangfan No. 5 Enterprise PRC RMB20,406,000 - - - -

Management Consulting
Partnership (Limited Partnership)*
FEHNLRCELERANBLE

(BRE®)
FEGNAREXERAACHLE  FE AE 20,406,007
(BRa®)
Tianjin Yangfan No. 6 Enterprise PRC RMB17,005,000 - - - -

Management Consulting
Partnership (Limited Partnership)*
(REENARELEETNEBLE
(BIREH)
FEGNAREXERTHABCE +E AE 17,005,007
(BR&E%)
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Enterprise management
advisory services

CRERERRE

Enterprise management
advisory services

CHERERRE

Enterprise management
advisory services

CEEEBRRE

Enterprise management
advisory services

CXERERRE

Enterprise management
advisory services

CHERERRE

Enterprise management
advisory services

CEEEBRRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE_—Z

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Paid up issued/

(&)

Effective equity

B

—mEtZASt—BLEEE
47. EABEEMBAE

Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2024 2023 2024 2023
BRTRS/ R+=B=+-H
WEAE%HE EuE &S FEARIEZRRRE TERH
% (E#) % (F%)
ZEBCME ZZ"Zf ZEIME 2R

Tianjin Yangfan No. 7 Enterprise PRC RMB17,540,000 - - - - Enterprise management
Management Consulting advisory services
Partnership (Limited Partnership)*

(REAMLRELERTHCHOE
(BRa%)

FEGNCREXERLAABLE $E AR 17,540,007 CRERERRE
(BRa®)

Tianjin Yangfan No. 8 Enterprise PRC RMB19,153,000 - - - - Enterprise management
Management Consulting advisory services
Partnership (Limited Partnership)*

(RRBENN\RCEEERNAYLE
(BlRAE®)

FEGN\REXERLAARCE $E AR 19,153,007 CHERERRE
(BRa®)

Tianjin Yangfan No. 9 Enterprise PRC RMB18,974,000 - - - - Enterprise management
Management Consulting advisory services
Partnership (Limited Partnership)*

(REEMAREEERARSBLE
(BRa®)

REBNARCEEREABLE HE ARH18,974,0007 CEEEBRRE
(BRa%)

Hunan Wei Gao Gaochuang PRC RMBS5,000,000 - - 72.18 72.18  Development, services
Medical Technology Co., Ltd. and sales of

(HEREsEERRERAR) medical technology

development.

HEEEEERERRERAT HE AE5,000,0007 BRMNRE BBER

HEo

Shandong Weigao Ruike PRC RMB20,000,000 2.78 20 97.22 80  Production and sales of
Medical Technology Co., Ltd. Type |, Type Il and

(LEEEHEBEEMERAR) Type Ill medical devices.

LR EHEHERRTBRAT HE AE 20,000,007 LERHEE-8 FZ

ERE-EEERE

Shandong Weigaorui New Medical PRC RMB20,000,000 3.03 20 96.97 80  Production and sales of
Technology Co., Ltd. Type |, Type Il and

(LEEEHNEEEMERAR) Type Ill medical devices.

LB SR EERTBRAT HE AE 20,000,007t LERHEE-8 FZ

BERFE-BERRA-

Weihai Wego Medical PRC RMB6,630,000 100 100 - - Production and sales of
Materials Co., Ltd. Type |, Type Il and

ERE=ERMNERAR) Type Ill medical devices.

BEERERMEBRAT HE AE 6,630,000 LERHEE -8 FZ

BERF-ABERRE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE_Z_NFE+_HA=+—HILFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL le
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (48)
(continued)

R EEMBATFRE

Paid up issued/ Effective equity

Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2024 2023 2024 2023
BETER/ B“+ZB=+-H
WEAE%HE EuE &S FEARIEZRRRE TERH
% (EH) % (1)
ZEBCME ZZ"Zf ZEIME 2R
Weihai Weigao Hande Medical PRC RMB15,000,000 - - 100 100 Production and sales of
Technology Co., Ltd. Type I, Type Il and
(FEREEEEENEERAR) Type Il medical devices.
HERSEEERNEARAT e AEH15,000,0007 LERBES B 5
BRE-BEEZE
Weigao International Holding S.G. USD758,372/ - - 100 100 Investment holding
Corporation Pte., Ltd i USD5,000,000 RELR
75832%7/
5,000,000% 7
Wego Medical (Thailand) Co., Ltd THA THB3,000,000 - - 99.60 98 Sales of medical devices
RE % E1$%3,000,0007 HERERE
Weigao New Life PRC RMB15,000,000 - - 72.18 7218  Production and sales of
(LERBHERBRHERAR) Type |, Type Il and
Type Il medical devices.
URHEHREREBMBRAT HE A 15,000,007 YERBES-H 5
BRE-BEERE
Weihai Liansheng Medical PRC nil/RMB2,000,000 - - 72.18 7218 Production and sales of
Equipment Co., Ltd. Type I, Type Il and
(FEHEBERHERAD) Type Il medical devices.
BEREBRENERAT HE %/ AR %2,000,0007 YERBES-H 5
BRE-BEERE
Zhejiang Quantum PRC RMB20,000,000/ - - 48.28 4828  Production and sales of
(I2FBREMERAR) RMB22,857,143 Type |, Type Il and
Type Il medical devices.
MIBFEREMERRE il AE120,000,00070,/ YERHEF-B B
AE22,857,1437 ERFE-HEBERE
Hunan Discovery Quantum Medical PRC nil/RMB2,000,000 - - 48.28 4828  Production and sales of
Device Co., Ltd. Type I, Type Il and
(HEERETRESNERAR) Type Ill medical devices.
AREREFRERNERAD HE %/ AR %2,000,0007 YERBES-H 5
BRE-BEERE
Shandong Weigao Precision Technology PRC nil/RMB20,000,000 - - 72.18 7218 Production and sales of
Co., Ltd. Type |, Type Il and
(LEEBEBEINEERAD) Type Il medical devices.
UEEEEIRLARAT HE %/ AR 20,000,007 YERBES-H 5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_MF+_HA=+—HLFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 47. ZREEEMB AT FE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (#8)
(continued)
Paid up issued/ Effective equity
Place of registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries registration  capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2024 2023 2024 2023
BETRE/ ®+ZB=+-H
WEARAE i HRES SEEELZERRE TEER
% (E#) % (R#2)
ZECmE CZECCF ZEIME 2SR
Huangshi Weigao Medical Technology ~ PRC nil/RMB20,000,000 100 - - - Production and sales of
Co., Ltd. Type I,Type Il and Type IIl
(FERERERENRARAR) (i) medical devices.
EREBERNRARA) HE Z/ \E%20,000,0007 LERBEF-B B
ERE-HEBERE
Shandong Weigao Logistics Co., Ltd. ~ PRC RMB1,000,000/ 59.18 - 40.82 - Provision of logistics and
(IEESWRERAE) (v)* RMB245,000,000 storage services
URERDRERREY) il AE1,000,0007T,/ REMAREERS
AE#245,000,0007
Shanghai Guyuan Medical PRC RMB8,000,000/ 40 - 60 - Production and sales of
Equipment Co., Ltd. RMB20,000,000 Type |, Type Il and
(LEERBBRERERAR) () * Type Il medical devices.
LEEBBREMARRE) il AE18,000,0007T,/ YERBES-HFZ
AE 20,000,000 ERFE-HEBERE
* For identification purposes only * (LTl
Notes: B 5T
() None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the () BENBABNERZETEMERE
end of the year. #o
(i) In the opinion of the directors, there is no subsidiary that has (i EZEEIDH BEEEHLAEEBEKX
non-controlling interests which is material to the Group. HEZIFERER B AR
(i)  Huangshi Weigao Medical Technology Co., Ltd. were (i) EABSBEMRARAINE
established on 29 August 2024. “HENBZtHAHEMKIZ
(iv)  Shandong Weigao Logistics Co., Ltd. were established on 26 (ivy WEESYRBERABN _-ZEZME
June 2024. NAZHREMBKIL
(v)  Shanghai Guyuan Medical Equipment Co., Ltd. were established () LtEEERBEBEMERATN_-E
on 10 September 2024. “mEAB+HEMRIC

48. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 48. SREHEEH

There is no significant subsequent event after the R EHEMEERBERESEE.
reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 B E_Z _NF+_B=+—HIEFE

49. COMPANY'S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

49. ZRBZMHER AR

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

POSITION
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB'000 RMB'000
—EDNE —ZE-=
+=A +—H
=+—H =+—H
ARBFrT ARETFT
Non-current assets JEREEE
Property, plant and equipment EN e 2,635,196 2,802,923
Investment properties KREYE 409,948 361,389
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 291,216 254,041
Investments in subsidiaries KRB ABNKRE 1,635,540 1,551,684
Interest in an associate R—EBE AN R 1,470,443 1,347,791
Interest in a joint venture R—EaEtEN#ER 284,117 321,857
Deferred tax assets RIERIBE E 66,788 65,077
Deposit paid for acquiring property,  FHUNIEYI = BB MK H
plant and equipment B z#EE 51,503 69,859
Prepayments A1 76,925 68,757
6,921,676 6,843,378
Current assets MENEE
Inventories E7E 633,347 548,116
Trade and other receivables FEUL B 5 R 70 K E A FE UK
FRIE 4,265,444 4,447,222
Financial assets at fair value through A F{Eit AIBHTEZ
profit or loss SRHEE 13,192 371
Debt instruments at fair value through #AFEzH AEMEE KA
other comprehensive income STEZEB LA 116,660 159,239
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U B 8 A Bl 7R I8 7,766,170 7,120,946
Pledged/restricted bank deposits BRI ZREIRITFER 237,851 200,159
Cash and bank balances RE KMIBITEEER 1,954,366 1,721,481
14,987,030 14,197,534
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade and other payables FET B SRR E A
RIE 2,387,117 2,281,635
Contract liabilities =R ON=N| 296,110 260,786
Borrowings EE 799,496 300,000
Financial liabilities at fair value BAFEFABRSTEZ
through profit or loss ERMEE - 7,653
Amounts due to subsidiaries NN NGRS ] 3,891,982 3,532,039
Lease liabilities GEN=8=L 17,457 10,603
Financial guarantee contracts THEEREH 8,466 7,497
7,400,628 6,400,213
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZE _Z _UF+_B=+—HLEFE

49. ZATZHMBRAR @)

49. COMPANY'S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION (continued)

31/12/2024 31/12/2023
RMB’'000 RMB’000
—EBomE —T=

+=8 +ZA

=+—H =+—H

AREFR ARETT

Net current assets BB E R ER 7,586,402 7,797,321

Total assets less current liabilities WEERREAR 14,508,078 14,640,699
Capital and reserves BAR K #E

Share capital & A 457,063 457,063

Reserves s 12,965,481 12,638,658

Total equity R AR KB 13,422,544 13,095,721
Non-current liabilities JEREBERE

Borrowings il - 498,497

Bonds payable &S 996,833 995,405

Deferred income 4R JE U A 13,036 13,052

Lease liabilities HEas 70,693 38,024

Financial guarantee contracts HBIERESH 4,972 -

1,080,534 1,544,978

Total equity and non-current liabilities # % K IE R BN & EARZR 14,508,078 14,640,699
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49. COMPANY'S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 49. ZABZHBIRRAR @
POSITION (continued)

Information about the movements in reserves of the BREARABSNREHARZHEED
Company at the end of the reporting period includes: ZENBE
Statutory
Share Other surplus Retained
premium reserves reserve profits Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
EERE
R M8 Hithf#E fikE gt Bt
ARETR ARETE ARBTR ARETR ARET:
At 1 January 2023 RZE-_=F—F—H 2,743,144 414,655 226,117 8,315,208 11,699,124
Profit for the year KEERF - - - 1,593,673 1,593,673
Share-based payments (Note 38(a)) MR AERAR
(Bt5%38(a)) - 42,426 - - 42,426
Dividends recognised as distribution RAHPEHRE - - - (696,565) (696,565)
At 31 December 2023 RIBZ=F
+ZB=+-H 2,743,144 457,081 226,117 9,212,316 12,638,658
Profit for the year AEE G - - - 1,154,984 1,154,984
Share-based payments (Note 38(a)) R AERAR
(Hi5E38(a)) - 22,891 - - 22,891
Dividends recognised as distribution DAEDEHEE - - - (851,052) (851,052)
Appropriation of statutory surplus reserve REVEEREMER - - 2,415 (2,415) -
At 31 December 2024 RZEZME
+-A=+—-H 2,743,144 479,972 228,532 9,513,833 12,965,481
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